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fepRr fareg 3 aMfdep Hat 1 qRT yHTa HoTel!
¥ B gdl ©l 39 RS ARA b
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& gfaffear 7 9rr forn | g & WRER)
SRR d% @1+l gu ¥ e foar T 7
UAUaUH Adrerd dl TSI A §d gIRT
oI T T R |

AHfI® TEAS (Bidod) YR 11 9 IV
&1 fawra=

R13M.dd GRT AT AR & (A= qgegall R
FIAI BRI FRTR BT P Hol@wy al
BT UIR ST {3 1Y | STeboTel UoR o H
MM e JABIdH (IR IR GBI B A
A < ¥ B Y e DI 2fivet foar T
2| AR Hdl § IAR Fe1d W SIaT 3R
Afafmtaml R e | AFeRT &1 S
2| Remeh vl & weul # Saraed |
ATl soarell Ud fashdrsil &I gote AR deim
ggd Rl W W g usar 21 s6e
arfaRe, fafame el & 91 &v 8iR
I SIREA BT FART B & forg f fa<i
HRITT BT 37U §eIdh A 3 Haferd SIRaH Bl
Al e HRAT BICT 8 [STD1 Mol ID)
39 A H UAS AHE B aRdfdd DIEd Bl
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I T SR fhaT ST 2 | oA qi |
ot i &1 faerergor w1 # Ayl
el BRI Hel Fad! & Filfd drEal §
TSl A gfg @ik w1 A faxiia daex & i
R BINEAR 919 IS Fahd © difd s9d 0T
T SR AT Hog garfad s 2 |
JAbod YR IV 3 R Q9 9 Ui fgHdl &
MR R AERNT &5 & Hae= & fory Afaerd
SR & 3regdE W 9 A w71 gfd
TSGR AN Ugell & Ugd Ieed
7T 3T URART @& Ty Srary g1 3R G
ST ©, 31T Db A HAIfl, |rdstid
JMER W HASd drRiwHl duT o= M
Al & gRT MR U1 GIH B & fold
< W YIS 39dl BT eI PR BT YA
e T |

20. Reral 9 gwer 4ea gaois
(TTgad) oS a)
20.1 U] NolTS T TS 31T b Bl U U8

g foTa g1 W MR @ F8 IRl H IR U
FEiRa o@fer & Rereh smardl & qeai &
[ABIH AL BT & | ST ST 9 =1
foq #=re, MRA AR & e w9y
2005—06 ¥ I PRI YH [haT TT LT TR
R YA GABIDB IR B DI AGeRIdl W
faaR @ & fory v urere swmae faan
AT | 3D 9 IRT # Rereh gkl &
AR BT g1 M & U Jelrg 2007 H
IS STRT forar T a9 2001 &1 MR a9
HATd gY a9 2005 b & SIT TMAS fhT 7T |
URICTE JEIAT H 5 TRl JAT SIIfs, AT,
faeell, Prerprr 3R gwg &I e fbar|
UIele @ ®U H 5 IERT ®f g3+ fhar Tm
3R D 918 TATAET NolrsrT BT IR B
80 &9 3R ¥l @I enfAe far war ger
SRR, YT, ol@s, Jul iR R | TAgad!
IS H 319 15 &R M & 3iR o,
2009 (S[E—feamR) T& S fhar 1 7 |
319 TAUAET NOlSHT BT 2007 MR IY HFHY
UA® BHTET STl fhar ST # |
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A

I 20.1
TUadl Yofisad - Y& fagvang
g MR YH g3 fordH 5
AERI—dTGw, AU, fIoell, PIadr AR
qE B WA [HAT S 97 @ A= el
&1 yfaffere o=a o |
g 4 Rerelt wRkEl o wnfie faar
qTE H YT A4 AR STeT SUAIT UR iR,
TR ARl &l e R & ford
faee fe T |

SRIUIRTE R HIISMS & AT ol & |
ETIT B ol 2001 Bl SMYR oG foram 17|
2001—2005 3AfY & TRIF dIRIH MR R
qedl # AR Ferd Bl foram T 3iR 91 # &1
TR axgt 3rerTd 2007 T eI fohaT 7T |

U] Yoilsd BT fIWIR &Re &F T3 &R0
P IMAA BT TIT 7 IEASIETE, BRIGHETG,
o1, PIfed, TERIETG, SATR, YT, TETS, ol
IR = |

el JEIaH IR TTIE! Noiledd Bl &5 3iR
eI I fORdR BR & 8T, MR 99 2001 B
oI 2007 R T3 137 |

2007 MR I9 BM WR, TAVAE! ISSaT Bl
faaweR, 2009 T® eI+ &R foar T, T+ <
GHTE! eI (SRS 3R JeATs—aH=R)
oA o |

UAUE] YollSad DI 34 BHTE! Jerd b
ST & |

¥ TR H AU Nolledd dl g g 3
JTfOrh STARIAT Tl 35 BRI db TGTIT ST |

UAUTE] NolSaT Bl 63 eI dd AR H-e
BT IXIT & NTg STaTeR ATl 8 TS I8
AdYeHRor e & enfie fohar 1 8 8iR a9 g
SEERIERIpE;CEacanil

FABIH eI Aer fAfdy (Fenfara o auar gure)
P 1T TR 3T YUITeA! BT YANT HRD IATAT
TR |

AT & BT UIAAS SICT TS =T B
ol pAICH! /AL oAl @l HaAY
PR -Gl Toici 9 Thd fHaT S &,
S AR S1Mard Jedl T STl 3mard fo<
FHufrai iR b1 A W gwcer fhar Smar g i
S ARl gRT Y T emaN Ol WR
JERT BT B |
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20.2  UATTE! Nolledd & d8d A 15 IERl B fiRTae e, S 91€ gerEre (—30 ufoerd)
APl BT Bl H SF 2009 (SHARI.SH) Th AT TSI (—24 YIA2A) BT E |
San—aerd # AT ygRT el € (9 W& H 20,4 Rrwell IR AL TIARR, 2009 T SFETTA BReT
AP B @ F fiwell  srafd R, 12 e Rrwel sraf @ (SHad—sE,
(ﬁ?ﬂg—m, 20_08) @ SR 931 Ygf o] 2009) SRTF BT DI DA H gl UGl ol
g, ARl B M € YIS (6 Hfrerd), Plefebrar T ¥ gWE (2 ufiwd),  @ietrar (17
(14 wfaerd), ®weEe (12 gfkied), ger (7 gfcrerd), BrerErs (7 9icrerd), gedr (11 wiaerd),
gfirerd), JEHgEe (27 gfawd), o= (26 JTEAGIETE (1 Ufirera), I (19 Ufiee), oa=s
fererd), eRaTs, (2 uferd), gor (6 ), 3R (14 ufcrerd), gor (14 ufdrerd), gxa (11 ufdrera),
X (13 Tfcrerd) | TIgE (3 ), ﬂﬁw_(m gforerd) 8k

20..3  3rEHCMETE (27 ufdwe) iR 9= (26 wfererd) ® eqEE (26 vfoera) fo @ wawmEE (26

: RV yfcrera) # |aifde gig oS, SHa a1e o= (19
AGHTT B BT H AfHad gy I TS | VA
o N gfererd) derm WidTel (16 Uforerd) o oI+ 7 | 3
6 WX © ofgl [UBell 3@ & SRM i H Deeiee £ urgl gdl Med) af i i i
fiRTee <@t 1¢ Ferm faeel! (—7 ufdem), g
fiRrae <@ T8 SN feel! (—7 ufdremd), SaqR
(—24 Eﬁ%f?lﬁ) ATaTel (-8 El'[%l—?lﬁ) EENEIE (—30 (11 FI'[%I'Q'I?T) 3N Py (-8 qﬁ'%‘lﬁ) INCEE
giereTe), SRR (~38 wftrewd) SR wifed (-5 SRR (—11 ufrerd), § omai wwERr @
gferera) foTH & SIRIQR (—38 Ufrera) # daiferd B § e arfe ARIe ofrd |
TR—AR AR I ATHI$ (MR 99 : 2007 = 100)
B JATIR 99 2007 | SIS 2008 | JelTg—(aHFR 2008 | ARG 2009 | eIz aHFR 2009
feeet 100 124 130 121 113
CREST 100 73 76 58 59
s 100 112 117 124 126
BB 100 114 140 159 185
AhuTel 100 139 151 139 162
BT 100 96 92 65 81
LRI 100 100 121 136 145
qcHr 100 103 100 107 119
JABACTETS 100 106 100 127 128
Chail 100 104 95 120 143
SIIYR 100 119 115 71 63
KEEKE) 100 103 102 104 119
qul 100 101 97 103 117
qxd 100 101 98 111 123
Pifea 100 106 95 90 83
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21.

STEY TG F1 AT % o ST e A |

MR 2008 U1 2008 TdA2 2009 U1 2009 T2
2007 | 2008 U1 A 2008 TA2 | 2009TT1 A
fRett 6 -5 27 1
G 27 a4 -24 3
T 39 -8 16
A=g 4 -8 26 19
feoett 24 5 -7 -7
HEE 0 21 13 7
TeNEE -4 -3 -30 26
AR 19 -3 -38 -11
B 6 -10 -5 -8
CAEEAG] 14 23 13 17
[SECE 3 0 2 14
TS 12 4 6 2
e 3 -3 7 1
Ll 1 -4 6 14
GG 1 -3 13 1

200

100

75

50

25

B S-S 2008

IEX—AR ATAT I GaAbTh

s —faawr 2008 WM SE-S[T 2009 W TS —fauTER 2009 —3mER a9 (2007)

TS — AR 2009 SEAT-BIedHTar
BT oy 185 SAT HRaT R |

v #%‘gf&&&f PP

34

A

21.1
21.1.1

21.1.2

21.2
21.2.1

Py (T

SR &R AN UG JATarT HIfd, 2007 & T84
QAT - I SR A AR a7 3R et amr
P foTU g IR T WRDRT B TR J Th 75
T it Y IR &R =T § oy 59 @t @
IRT SRR Q& B_T & forg faxiy Suererar #
g 21 3T T TR TR S HATH, R
WHR - e el § Ia Q1 aFl DT ATaTd
SIRRAT bl YRT bR b [T "8 TRIaT b SATATA b
forg et AfL AT w1 AT B q'd
3 ST 9T BT AT ATRAS! BT WA fhaT 7
R T 7 W A1 FHE70r )1 |9 | 33 Ao
P qBT T IR 8T (2008-12) H 1100 HIS
BT B goC TERIT I 3 QT a9t & T 3.10
G NIRRT AH ST B DI FHGT B

11 9 g IToHT B SR 1 ARG B, 9P B
KON 1R 5 Ui ufa a9 a@ Afrs! & S |
U] GhdT DA DI 3@ 15-20 9¥ BN | A
TSI 2012 H FHTE 81 SQIT | SRIferd S,
ARl MR AfEeATell Y werfidar & ST |
Ig TS A= &3 & 9] AR T
T fasy pufer & AreH A fohanf=aa &F <
& Bl IMdF 3R TSB! & AfRST 3R
AT B TART B AFERT B & o

P sl ToiRT 2

A qeA

RIS 3MMATT §b = ATSTT & dad b IS
Torfl @ 2RTIa W 23 T FuTeTdT HRerE
¥ 58 ATdoI® &5 & §@ IR 6 3mard
foq dufrat € R 9 R EaER |
ATdSIh & & bl A, WAM.SD T URAE
RiSidbe §%, ToTg 99 96, A< 96 MH

A

21.2.2

21.2.3

21.2.4

HIRT I, JATSCS d M $f$AT 3R W 9@
3% HYR AT A fa<y dufray 7 =R
STAHC HBIg HUneE for, (TaSiumdt
for.), smard vd et o o fo. (gsa),
fear e wig=w wmaie o1, yasmsh
TR wreww for, &9 5 g o iR
SITAUHTS JAT BISRIT = fo1. &
T SRR A e o g

I AT S 3T U I8 RN SUTAA
HATR & e THdh § B B @M 2 AR
BrawH, 971, SR iR FENe H I
A W /AdeTiter drieenst # R
o S AT & IR § SITRedhdT UaT dRA &
oy smanfora @t g off |

MM Yd w8y TRt SULHEA HATSAT i
RABIRET & AR W 1.370.86 & gRI 8 I,
2010 P ITATH T A RGN JULHT HATHT
& Yo Ao Db Aeherd H G IS /R
& AT B TS AT ATST I Ha T Hei
R gal & oy i &t g | faar-fawst &
RO WY $H IS &b @RA BRI &g
TR U S8R A 10 83 |

30 I[F, 2010 T X037, §b o A= W
FUGRHKT WMl d & a6 2840
TN P 2,30,42,948/- %. & AT M
Srar yTw | wTwt 50 Sl H HATd T 19
gral @I AT < §Y 97,73,933.44 JUAT &
BEGRUNIREC NI

1 fereTa rorTd 3nfefe wErT Ao |

35

TP pod ATscl Yol & W | T AT
d & A1 Yol 25 Aar fo<1 Hufai &
HIETH { AT BT ShaT=ad &1 15| 22 TAR A
affees Wl & Pl 8.48 IS B. B
Afe! ra 3rrars fa<t bufri &1 et gul 16
TOIR ¥ 31fed ATl & 6.25 HIS . F qd
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[ERREIRPEIRCICaREIRINESINIE RS oY
o 51 ST g 212,22 HAS . & AV @]
TR HINATg Bl ST &l § 9T I8 ol B &
oty srrare fas puferal &1 aro Foi T
gl wendd I wft ddfea smam fax
Hufrat 3N ATASI b &3 % dhi b TeTel

Ud ydy feerat B Th uF WS AT ©
OTAH S 39 ATSTT BT JAHRTR AR
BB AT BT doft A foparf<rd &1 &
forg srgRig fopar = € a1 9T ZRvrard
3 TSI BT ITBTID AT ST Ah |

|
™

At s ered) i) ST WETaY, WIRd GRER
Ministry of Housing & Urban Poverty Alleviation, Government of India
e W B srara 2 @19 sErE A el T saeis S5 @ e dee

08 S, 2010, ) Reeh
Meeting with All State Level Convenor Banks on Interest Subsidy Scheme for Housing the

Urban Poor (ISHUP) on June 08, 2010, New Delhi __...\:

It'."j

V K BADAMI

aat

[l TT WAT FASH Db B d6d - (FrF 7 fow @ ©) - o v p. Rig, dyad |fua, o ud wed T S
HATTT, MRT RPN, .37.§b P debloile hRIUTD Feid, #ff SR, aqi, To1 .36 & Agmdyd, 2t d.&.

23. EARIIENIGE | HHI & o7 e W0 A U & | SIedre

231 S % JqAEC SIEIRZEARE QEECWQ;;N‘\IW 'fﬁétgfb_
. R EB' qz _a'l' C

23.1.2 % &1 YA ¢ 5 1O YUIERST B R Ud / AT bl =g Al

S TrATeh] o A Yot (i) a1 fa<t &g
aerm (11) 9% @t fAfdr= S Aronel enfe #
st & T armdes vF Suce &1 SWRid b
3TATdT, § BT JTATSE S, 2010 H TR B
5 IS U BefiT B BRA B
JevTge 3 foie Wi SucTer i 2

§F & IREN Al B yded, R ud

IR Ugd Ud SrSTels gad Tfadlel dqdrse

P HIETH W ST AR A 37 BT | §b

Pl dedTse H $9b HRIGAM/ Tfafafer,

IR, U YT IS $die Bl SIHdN)

JATfed g1 3% a1 & & & JeTse W 9@

& focfrg awe, smmar fa duf=a qom S9d!

SIS, AL Qd fqeprr gferdeHi, gepreri 23.2
31fe & bR A fa< bufral qen o 23-2.1
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23.2.2

23.2.3

23.3
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[T 3refteror onfe fey® wear # fAfed gran
€ Siifdh SIS Bl &9 ¥ @ §Y AT
(PRIERY) Rrgia & w0 7 &1 B 21 Fews
1987 (F=sia SIfAfRIM 1987 &1 W. 53) &
ATl b AFAR AT AT 81 50 IS BT 99
31eeT U4 U&e Qeres 81§ Sifh srfafras &
g_T 6(1) () & dd Fge A1 AR B
g AT 3P AT & AR B T 6(1) (@)
& TEd I TRE [~azrep Fge/amHifed fby
9d g1 TURE ewrel & dged § IR e
w@aF, a MR IS gRr Amifea, 9 b
WHR & ATHIRE T aA I59 WIR &
ANABIRD Fexr FqATRd B 2

ars = o afAfoat s &t g, 72 (@) et
P HEUTAS AT (5H), (@) 9 B ol
wed afafa (TAd) den (M) fAewret @
aRerferes Afafd QMR <f) a1 96 &1 PRIER
eI ~d Ud d8aR U= 81 9 | § Y, T
TJT IR & HRIDHAT - & qAT a1 7
=91 wfafet o1 fPaa afet vea @ g1 IS
afaferl @ dod Mafid ofdvrer A smaford &
STeh 2

23.4

€RT 45 T b I8 30 S, 2009 b dbi R
& Adg H I BT a1 faxirg Fteror fma |

e B JAQ-uREn AR [ U Bl
AT R & 918 Wk Rord & B 9
o |

o usten

Wi @ wRien- A9 SR TS Hul,
IS (FQ)) ETHR 75 foel & gRT §& &t
fa<t ¥ 2009-10 & fory & & @Al BT oAT-
R1.31. § o oy ifafde oda-wias Fga
o T B | oraT-wRieTdh @t KA & 34 Rure
P qSp-oraT & W ¥ far T B
IMARD T AHAA i THeT

IY¥ 2009-100 & foy §& @ eralR® o
W& BRI AR QU AgeT U B, T
faeell Gl TETHR | BT T4 |

J & THI! IoTR TS YaTel o foe ufafe
& AG-UATAT BT oGl UNIET B 9TEd
Tfafled TS @R HH AGE $.T9.
BIgell, T3 faeol! GRT HRMAT TR

24,

q¥ 2009-10 & SRM dls B U dob, |

FRIUTA® AR @ AT dod, oIET Tk
afafT &) o8 Jodb T nksifie afify & ve
3B AT Bl TS |

4% & Ry Hea | fetatad aied=
fm TTU-

Y 3Tl 7, ATSYUH, Yo Afad wRa
RpR fa<iia Jare faum fa J3re a1 st
TR I TS & AT YR 09.12.2009 A
R

A oRie SFR, IMSYUw, Afud, ey
PR, AN U4 e A fGumT &1 s
GRS P AER ATGUTH b AT TR 24.2.2010

q, S IHETg ARBR & 3MMard Td e
faer faamT § e afea 9|

T 2009 HI FAT Y & AMH [T &0
NRATT Rord 9 = srRdYers rfaf s 1934 &b

A
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241

T BN (&THaT) T Wt

% B PoT W B (GHAT) AT 30 I,
2010 I 89 off RTAH 7 A-owe <=1 WY wnfirer
2178 weft vd 7o T & R 9 SHas ay
2008 ¥, TWhal T UG T & RN BT URH |
1 99 & forq yde ufle] (Asric oofl) & w9 H
il fepam 1T | AEgaR Glaed gae |l
{8 Uda ufRiglsli b1 (¥hel-I) Hu Wl &
w0 ¥ foran g1 59k srfafRed, 3 Wil &
A1 7 FBHIRAT BT bl BT Harsli g Aqae
wR fged fear il ey & dRE, e
AfABIRAT BT Fo ™ a1 yae uflig, a1 Ferdd
Jgeh, Uh SU Yd€h, Udh HABIIEHD, Udh 3
HEIIED TAT Ueh TeT AATShR (Sef-gfe)
W ] ANIH/ HATGRT & AR W 9 B
REISGECRRERIRDI]
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afteroT

Td =& 9 gg Al ufderor gd gdee
faehT BTRITHHT | TSI b AT-1] T bl
AP BIIGH! BT AT Bl 21 39
gy & AR Pl 88 AfEBIRAT 1 (4=
HREIGH H arfle fAars 599 | 13
ferepTfRAT 7 Sfarisdia wrighaT & 9T forar
AT 75 FFARIRAT 7 AT TR &b BIRIBAI
7 e g e afkss, #en w4
PHf+rss a3t b STfBTRITTOT 2mfiret o |
JHfABINAT DI BIIHA H AT o1 oG I
TR B AR H A1 fopar T S {3 e
Sege 3 96 AT (UHSTSEIH),
WA Jdg AR (IMEemgyH), i d&
VARG (3MS4lY) T dleldl 3%
Uiiehoarel dfd T (Hed) ol

R1.311.4%, 75 faeetl # o 24 facaR, 2009
BT faxi faaxo &F w\sr gd fasersmor w
UHh ATARE UM HrRihA Mo o
AT DI AT fHar T o | 39 BrRiehA H
% & el 51 STHIRAT = 9 o |

24.4

24.5

feip 20 WAL, 2010 Bl T3 fooeft # &
& af¥ss fErpTRAT & oIy v 7ey diferd
g9 9T HRIGR THIET THAT rafrd
fear Tl s IWed # 9t aRs
TferamTRAT 7 Wit fora |
RHATIETAT (Hex) Aot

d% o1 U faeERal @ Agdr & fav @
"REET AT (R W) TR B g,
o o5 3 erfrsriTor efrear & e @ &
d% & a5 T oAl BT THSH B eTHaT
famfia @R 9d| I8 o 39 ST HH H
TEE Uiiggel & fory W g ol TS © o
d% & ¥l [ Ud ¥hol I1 & M1l & forg
RIS o |

3rara o & forg $-arf+i areasw

WRTT §fh 1 vd faxiir dxerme g & § oy
S dTel SAABINAT & A9 & deb -1 UTSqhH
B fav avq & Ao gg e fad wR -
AT DI BT YT Bl 2| T8 o foram T
f6 S ofeprRl udes uflig Aheargdd
AR BT W AT &b {7 qerdr < &g
SURTERT UTSISHH I IRT R oIdll & I b aR
4000/-F9 BT AFGT Y& fhaT Sy |

R1.31M.4%, s fAeen § faid 15 T 16 SHa, 2010 [ 2s.

TSI ]

B fPerdy/aeay mard/emar e

(Thiedd B duRie ffedm) s w 2511
I ST ST BT TS | 39 BRI F
SRAA BIS BUNH, AMleX 0 Ud
JTSHIRRT ASTHE Bl Afdaol forffics &

25.1.2

S A gaaisl BT AW fBar Tl per 51
NTYPHTRAT =1 yfygror 7 T fora|

.3 dPh, T3 foeel § 18 9, 2010 BT
"I A W Aedd (SRR T[S € Ue) W
e oFeR (srfafer wryon) emafora fopar
P AT B TP SfAf qTYOT 07 WRA, 2010
BT 3MNSP, 95 faoehl § A9 USU B3
STIUG-dlelsl TSy (W& fa<il dwe:
HROT Ud Fadh) v i smafora foan |
giss SIforamTRAT & oy gore IHie awe=

38

A

Y AT S HRA ARDBR B STHTST
& AHe MR THTIRTA Hraaad & foIg A
I 9 V&1 ¥ 3R §& # =) &1 yrfar & forg
ST Td gHrdt SuT fhy Y 2

R WRBR gRT S &=/ femmet o & SoR
=3 9 &1, a7 (3) & d5d STl (gl SRy
&, RS T §6 & qprei B fguredt uamtfrd
B, o AT fgar) Jgfed aRm enfe &iik
AR B & B W AEfd wraer B
TS fpam Sa g =4 & WANT &1 Ferd
™ & oy eremensi @1 e W oW
AT fhar SIrar g1 9% A, Aifed 9 W)
3T BT o’ fewt/3iit # forar <iran g o
% & 9t FfABIRAT BT ATARD $-TeT A U
SIGIR

2513

25.4

255

25.6

25.7

25.8
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d% & AR B B A It B T3 B
gorar < & foay gfuay fR=d I "
AT ST €1 15 TR, 2009 ¥ 14 fAdwrR,
2009 T® AT AT AT &b SR AT
gferfirdren &1 emare fopar R R
g% o ATRIRAT 1 9g9¢ B Jof A&l o
fewar forar| 39 SRIF 'STaTeR dTed 8% UR
< A A gt yefRia fopar Tl

d& 1 foelt o fRya do vd faxii =i &
faU S, 2009 H ISI-WREY ATY AT
Tfr T 1 Mo fohar R 12 St &
23 rfyeRAl 1 gfernfiar #§ 9rr form el
gieRfar & oy aed SRmEl 9 dew™
oyt @Y 3 fopar wam el wfenfiar &
faorlt ufcnfrl o1 e, fedia don qalg
IREHR A IR (haT 17|

d% & AHIRAT & gN Hraterd= wral |
2= & T BT gerar o1 & oy - iR
faffr=1 drcare= TSl &1 ue foam T g
d% @ fafduniir o e afaf
¥ fafim (e M 4 @ 9R) doh
RN B STt & R ARSI b ATI-|1d
g ST BT HI ASTHTNT & ITHT IR
BT THET BT A B

3GTER, 2009 ¥ I AN % & NS
gt srated & dva oyt |fafa |
ST fhaT 3R B8l o AT TRIT ) <aeier
2l §5 ¥ ufaf=fr sraterm 7 afafa & s
BT BT BT AT BT Soerd BT
IO AT B ISR T BRIBH B
B YD AT 1 b forg afafie wratery
T ARTEAT DT |

8 HATAA o ISIHINT fAUTT & FSemgaR 96
B IGATSC BT FAIDIS Bic H IS BT
T gAEh W E, ool RIS
BRI AT T BRA, 2010 § Y Hgard
Y AT AT B

TS AT §% BT fEl & T & forg faeeft
TRT ISTHTYT BRI AfAfd & gRT AR

A

39

25.9

AR AV RSN Hies” b UUH REBR 3
DA fhar ATl sHh | &, oot d@6
U # 9 & a1 AfABTRAT & okg i Fh1a
feg gl

% B gRT TR DI S arelt fo=al JA1RIH
€ UfaT IAEART AR = 1A ATST-Fo,
AR B - fqvg-axg H W wHEd
Ffita & Bl 39 ufFer &1 Reell 96 TR
RISTHIST SR AAfd & IR A AR
X a4 Al v RHR ¥ REpd a1 )
AP A1 B, b Y gFbT 7 IRad YR
TR W 4R Rod do gR1 i
AR #§ 2007-08 TT 2008-09 # TG
REHR T o 2

26.1

S &g |

9 Bg, . AT §b

T &5 9% & &I Hrterd § w@fid fe
AT ATl §9 S sk BT ST gD FuTd!
TRV &b SIRY AR S 3R ST A
3T DI JAGTSTDH a1 21 a9 1989 H S
F5 b UR™ § 599 95 I IR g 21 59
T D1 gl el vl A quin wEferd
RAGIT H  [RAPI  WAed  AIedR
foraRmr & wrem & ofaRa & forar 21 s
Fes I & T AT WA Bg b W H
P DA € 3R Ale] SINRebal a1 AT
MTAT, 37T, dhapl, SARGH Jdg qd 31




arffe RUTE 2009-10  ©  ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10
& forq & & fmIRal ot semd o & & P 3R 98 & &1 39b A1 g, Rl smary
foy d& & gcie & AIeM | a1 B FIHd KON TR Il &l IAD &1o1 )7 I (R IR
TRAROT AT T HaT 2 S 21 3% 99 H, IS AT 9 b AR
262 oS @ a9E d@, R R R R ol ghidh (YONSTH) il <=1 b1 5o S1fereh
argfen, A, seferE, e, ®en A YADBID B, b AR, THH A 15 I
wifeer, faa, JufRy s@nfE W 5500 <8/ TR 4 2 9 | WURT P el ¥ gl guls v B
AP BT U fAeTel e U B FF g 27,2 3fd: RRURT A fFves & fog, aga & Arat sweifq
= 3T WUE H qeur & W fdry Hifsar A aeTiRes Jfaesi # arafdes, fa<ia qe-ia!
JMATE, AT, YaeT IR 3T dh-Idhl/IR- I & U a8 AT &1 gaTwdT & a1
Tap-a! fau | e 50 I arfdre fageh ik TRR-¥ Td SRR-BE & 3T deTse TR
AR 0T/ Sl (e UfepTq ¥ <& 2 P1 A saTfe R fadesasa T &= &
27. AT SRR 2| 3W 7 had AEl-Td qorerd Faa
271 IRa® nfdie e, St 2008-09 F ARM ¥ AT 2T ST Waep, SAftg, Foft & sreifet
ST WIS WR 2T, TE 1t A efiv-efiv eIl arflel g @ e
S Y A AT S HeTH e B YRNER ey §9 Sl 21 399 TR &l
g BY vel ¥ §gd @ fefid STE IO AT et # e e
frrasiia <9 ¥ woer vd Wi R o6 el MR TR goreiy fHra=i «)
Sutdl W 3 Webe W Seu faity AR e siiv o 81 W |
B AbT AT 2l gefy, foeraeiia <9 27.3 IR ARG H Jaferd FAHR Maritg &4 3l g,

faepfrd refegavernsti & AT 1y= Hael &
pROT df¥gH FffTaaanet I afd wu A
guTfad o qoITfy, 819 Sveiv W | Arferd
MR Wud omuTRa SrefayaRer & Hg 3R
ATt A U & oIy sgafRrd & fora 2|
3 T YR BT 1ga=en 9 & 915, faea
Haifere gigeiier eferdwe g1 Wk &l W@,
IR B AT I8 ga1s S Ahal! © b
T Uh IuTe 3R WU SerRa sreferaser g
TefY, wRA famraeiier <o & TR § 8T
g, T, SHD! MBI (TAH SMaTsr B
ST 30 UfreTe) ITETar e & H R W& §
IR TBR SHa-aR a1 Tfafaferat der &x <&
M & &3 ¥ JER AR Dl g F R q@7
T SATAT BT A 8| F€ SIFAT b ot & fob
WRATT 3T BT 40 TfI9d 2030 dF I
NRT H I8 &1 B8N U 3R al I8 &7 Bt
A sneTRe Flagsil W sa@d S 3,
A AR g SeureTeerdn, arforfoys e
Tdd fApra & 91wy W ST dedl IO
e & @ R # 21 g el ek
AN P g card I Rerrsh dufia o

40

A

ST 2007 & 37T H 24.7 FAfera= garsar off ik
2012 % 3 26.53 Ao gt & o
P 3 Bl 3G FHEE & forg, N w iR
ToTTel & faf e get ux ofiR faxiir uer wr oY
H BT D SR ¢ | R, AT B DAl
& 3R UTHOT, QT &3 H U A1 98 B
;SN IR UG, Ql Uy H
fademwa Arce # Rifdrerar & smagadhar g
3TaT & ol By 9fH w1 FulRadd=, Bl wrr
abich H gy, ATET KON UR &S &R DI
Hogar @ b fay e wmEl @
fam=radxor, JA TET AN Kb Bl
[qepT, TRHT DIIHHAT BT UT8D AP AR
Tt o1 srAfaa den sreqsifad gt & SRed
P JTAR M, WS Td qATER AP
qaTard &1 famr, i & &) Amad YRRy
3R (Imfror et # EfaRT AT AT d IRy
TE-aRTAT H AT ST AT Sivdl) ARBTRY
T TR IMAT & oy Suged ASHIY g
AT U PO B &, Sl o DI AR
fRufa I fyes & forg wR IRTe™ &) a2

¥

Website: www.nhb.org.in

AL AT

(IR Red 99 @ Syl Wi #)

SHEEIRGEE]
2009-10
(S[etrg, 2009 ¥ S, 2010)




arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

ITR TS HU
RECURSECICAR

rEmaert o Rae

g f31d 30 S, 2010 H1 FATRIRT T 3Ma™ 96
& (AT R R (i) Fe= Jor-u= SR I aNe
P T Y b SAD A1 Fe™ oY Ud BT oarap!
ol e B gl ¥ i e §6 & udes @
STRETRIT 21 BART SRR BN oIETIRIeT & JMER
R 3 i faaRon R &= B

T VR H AT S0 W WG AGIE 7GR B
AR TETIRIET & §l 39 A HI 3me 2 fb 8x
ST ALK BN D Y oRATIIET B DI ATS]
TR B MR SHT omed o) fb i faxi faaxo
ez B | qad g oraTaien # AREN & dqHIT H
AT b WIS AR W SHT BHRAT AR F2 =i
Rl A wfirer o1 B g1 e H§ O ugeR
IEThRuT FAGHdl BT i BT iR e g1 fhy
T Y@ Ykborl a1 O 99 [y fderor &t
Hh AT A e B &1 g4 favar & b sl
STATIRIETT BHIRI T T IUYET MR & BT 2 |

T g FAER RAE o &

(@) | M & J8d go=-uF R a1 gd '
AT I 37T §p AfAfH, 1987 3R 30D
3feta gy faferEi qen e MY & q8d 3I-
I A 9 (VN I GUR v R dnT
e i) fafrad, 1993 & Suddl & AR
IR fopar I B

@) N, 96 g fafdrd onaw wR gifed $fa
qfeal JAR B T €, ST AP THT U A4
TS & AR UTT |

(M 39 Rurc # affiq gorm-u= iR @ vd a1 e
QT 9f23] & 3T 2

(&) STl B9 qE SR WEIGRO AW 8, 84 Ul

607, JMMHIY QT

26-T, IRIGHET s, s fSoeil-110001
Tl @ 23313807, 23316117, 23316125
BRI : 23310281

-7 info@aiyarco.com, aiyarco@eth.net

I 3R TR QU MY § iR T I
HAITSTTe qraT 2

AWM RAE A e & :

1. ga fAferRaa aal § 96 gRT & 8 dRas
IR TP & WTdl TR TS dTel 3D U9 B Hae |
N T o H oy §, wifh ST gRI
arft oifes ot form wirem ® ik wf¥ri ot
fReiRa & S 2

®) [ =R v S G U 871 @ ST
7 vee d 3w giear @ smfera e da i
WIS W ITGT 237.06 B BT 37V Il 37
qoraralt 7 enfher & (fowrdft we=m 17.1) |

@) ST AR H G 149.37 YIS WYY Ol
[aeI =ITATeTeT @ SI1GII @ STVIRYT H dab GIRT 37
YT % S AT H smAford ¥ dw o
NS B BT [BY 9540 FNIS TUY SV
SIfAvEre Bl A GINT b [T 53.97 BRIS BT
&7 ENad & (fewoft vz 17.2) 1

2. EA T A §F T (F) AGIHIT AAB-11 B
Sy [d7¥l SaR & Av-Hodien,  [orered
TRGTITT 3% TIarail Il BT 14.29 BRIS 6UT
T ¥ JU g3 & - ofd gv Wil a1 dvy
14.1 3@ SN (&) SAGIBNT A[TH-22 B AR
FHHATT B0 [ATEr ¥ IR &Y BT JT1qET
T&l BT - 0.93 BRI By, o™ I T TP
SIRRIRIT &Y Il T 3ifden qui g3l & &l
BISHY F¥TIcyC 3% dICs YPHISceH St
SISAT GNT SIRI IGIahNvT A1 BT SIUTerT
faar &l

3. @ STfcrRa, ST IR 1 3R 2 7 3
fewforal & refF, 8N I 7 3R g9RI qaH STHa R

A

(1)

arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

¥ T2 g4 Ay Y TRl & TR MR b B
Gl GRT AT F&R, I WR wivrl & |rey
Uf3d ST oY I AT S Jrfafe, 1987
IR =y fAf qen favy Ay & oo o=
3T deb (e aRAT YR 3R 7 AN AT
i) faffTs, 1993 & IuEdl & AR IqD
37E §TY Y fafveEi Ry aemifea g S
T A & & 3R 9 fFr=iferfad & qrrer § Wik |

TRV I Thd SI@TehR0T (gl @ 3T o :

db Bl JorT-ul Wil fewforl Ud 5w oRaTehvo
Hfcal & Wy uod 8, Jo-ud |94 gifod

R : T3 faoelt

dRRg @ 23 RIdWR 2010

fIaRor & A1 Siep © IAT S 59 UBR Al S J
IR fora T 2 fo SH 9 @t fadie 30 91,
2010 T D1 8! g et (R ot 21; 3fiR
dc 1 oM UG I+ oien S fewfor vd g
TR BT AT aY | §Y AT DT FE ST 2

Fd IR TS HIA
REERGECICAR

(T. &. T=)
HRER
HedT H&T 80169
THH TSITBROT AT 0011747




(1)

arffe RUIE 2009-10  * ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

TEH AETHE §6 G ERRE!
e ad EORIY S e ad
FT AU FT AU

450.00 1. goll I 450.00
1,791.99 2. yRfea A 11 2,072.41
0.00 3. oY 3R =Ify ofn 111 0.00
3,582.22 4. dis AR vV 8,351.81
2,248.13 5. SHRIRRI Vv 4,375.75
10,900.69 6. YR VI 6,457.21
76.51 7. MR &R <gar (Faa) 82.30
601.28 8.  TIe] <A 3R Wraem VII 688.67
272.49 9. 31 <UAY VIII 272.49
3.98 10. 9P 3N TIUHH B URT TIUAU STARIRRT
- Bl & AR (fewoht 22.3 &1 HaH ) 2.79
19,927.29 Ss 22,753.43
.0, PR T, 999 $AR AR, &. TS
AT YdEdh S-S D '
AR, A, =l
e U9 ydy feerd
IGCEICT
femR &. wlcd | wosh U @ | vare TR
fea | el frm | Ao R e | St T, Y

3 feeent, 23 Rrawr, 2010

44

(1)

arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

f&Ai® 30 S, 2010 H FATRATT
e ad G ST o au
FAS U FAS Y
1,498.30 1. 9P IR §b AN IX 1,789.02
1,230.05 2. fyaw X 858.15
16,850.96 3. RO SR A XI 19,836.66
20.76 4. W oR™EuRR XII 19.41
323.24 5. 3 URAURRI XIII 247.40
3.98 6. 9 IR TAUHA! B U TIUAT STHRIIAT
Pl B AFAR (SHH I @l GAfd<

& W H UG 0.04 B BUQ) 2.79
19,927.29 SIS 22,753.43
129.67 B RTH < XIV 78.88

oRY BT WAT B qreft fewmforgt XV

45

AN AHIRRG B e RUIE & AFAR
P IR YUS HUAT

TG AGTHR

TH TSTIhRUT AT 0011747

(T. @. 99)
YrferR
HSRIAT G 80169




(1)

arffe RUIE 2009-10  * ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

(1)

arffe RUIE 2009-10 © ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

&% 30 S, 2010 & T a9 & fIT

Taee v R RIS
FE FIY FAE FIY
1,272.90 1. SYRI 3R AR W @I 1,051.68
4.36 2. HHATRAT BT qa-, AT MR AATT o 8.67
0.09 3. e 3k afafa Aol & B ik g 0.15
0.12 4. ETIETT BT 0.08
1.37 5. s, &R, faega ofiR din 1.74
0.39 6. SFH Yo, IR, Tldd 3R el 0.37
0.03 7. fafr gwR 1.82
8. T AR, g &R fagme
0.53 (i) HEo1 SR oRkas AT 0.47
1.19 (i) fasimo= 0.26 0.73
2.62 9. | TeuE - 2.20
8.78 10. | TTell, MRS B JAT 3= fa<d G9R (YE-YIa ofdl &
oIy & 12.83 &S vy (RUwa 99 4.00 FRIS $UY) wAfzd) 16.61
3.32 11. | SURI W & Yobh 6.32
1.48 12. | a1 @ (0.16 HIs BUY (el 9y 0.35 d-Is ¥UY) & fAewr am&=n arr wafa) 0.97
7.58 13. | e=r &g 7.47
6.52 14. | <N R WU W IrQT fHar T @rs 0.00
6.77 15. | a9 wR qeusm/aRaET 0.31
0.00 16. | FfmfoRll & sfaRor W ET 7.51
(5.46) 17. | facel SHRIRAT 3R SURl & g i 1R 21f/ (™) 1.92
18.10 18. | I PR MU, 1961 B &RT 36(1) (vii ®) (1) F T gad 22.00
iR dferer o & forg wraem
0.06 19. | &9 W 0.07
0.03 20. | MR HR 5.79
114.50 21, | M IR 136.00
0.15 22. | M AW WY 0.00
235.62 23. | SFA oY &1 99 280.25
1,681.05 SIS 1,552.66
7.08 24, | 9 ge-gg uRfera (Y &1 sfaxor 6.59
15.70 25. | 3MT &R ARFTH, 1961 B G 36(1) (vii) B ATIR R yRfEa [ 1 sfawor 26.00
2.35 26. | HHAR Hearur Y P iR 2.80
202.33 27. | uRfEa Y o1 s 235.13
14.75 28. | JAH-UF Bl P AT 9.73
242.21 S 280.25
.U, HUR | TA. 9ed PR | IAR. &. qiS
eFT ydg® SESIEEEED ERECEED
IR, &,
3reer Ud udy e
s
floeR &, vled | Swsh v aw | e T | et d@g
[Eagicu | Ied fim | G AR W@E | Wh€ S, UL |
3 faeett, 23 R, 2010
46

A

T aw B IR} o ad
FAT BT FAT Y
1. | o7 qn AfH SR I AR R &
1,493.19 (i) =0T 3R 3R 1,338.20
87.03 (i) §& SR 105.87 1,444.07
474 | 2. | <A MY IR ATH R WY R A (AASRIT BT g B W 2.30 BAIS BUY
(et a¥ 0.64 TS TUY) & A9 Aled 32.35
39.49 3. | Frawr 4 sma 31.88
1.65 | 4. | faei @ At & emy 1.89
29.04 | 5 | TIAA B DI WIT 3R AP W A 9.11
0.32 6. | druar fafvma dfder w M 0.51
0.02 7. | W oRURET @ 9w ) A 0.01
9.81 | 8. |3 I (FU & YA-YTM B! ofdl & (Y 15.74 HIS JUY 22.89
(et a¥ 8.56 TS TUY) wfzd)
(5.00) 9. | arger fafwa wfdemt = e/ (81) 2.20
13.68 10. | 319 UM e W STl Y Haem 0.98
7.08 11. | e iR e f¥rdman (Fraer o 3ifde wraer= gfafia) 6.77
1,681.05 IS 1,552.66
235.62 12. | 3T ATQ Y ATH BT AY 280.25
6.59 13. | a9 ge-gs urfea Y @ exdiaror 0.00
242.21 S 280.25
AR GHANIE &I e RUE & AR
Pl IR TUS HUAT
TG TETHR
WH STl T 00117477
(T. &. @)
CIRIEIN
HERIAT A& 80169
47




[
| ."' | arffe Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

T3 30 S, 2010 Bl JAMRATT JATISH B SFTIET

e o ESLRl =
FE FqT AL Y
srgadt- 1
it
450.00 1, EIECR] 450.00
450.00 2. i ok g (e Rerd 9@ g1 guia: s1fireq) 450.00
450.00 450.00
srgeEt I
yRfera et (Fe TUY)
e AT gl HAeAn EHH L
1. ORféa F=ifer 1,217.87 235.13 0.00 1,453.00
2. fR Py (7 st e iR 971 arra aret amar (i) 256.72 9.73 0.00 266.45
3. 3T HR AW, 1961 DGR 36(1) (viii) 292.40 26.00 0.00 318.40
% JPAR a9y wRfE [
4. a9 ge-9¢ wRfea =Y 13.49 6.59 0.00 20.08
5. THIEE wRiaa 7.45 0.00 0.00 7.45
6. HHAN Hearor Al 4.06 3.06 0.09 7.03
S 1,791.99 280.51 0.09 2,072.41
$ 0.26 PIE HYY DI STARI WX 3fford 1ol Afed
48

()

arffe RUIE 2009-10 © ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

f&I 30 ST, 2010 B FATERATT Je-0= B ST

T ad Sl o T
FT T ERER
SR 111
@ 3R 7 o
14.75 HeT ¥ 3R BN o & AR A 9.73
14.75 Terg: fady Y &1 v () I &1 e &k 9.73 0.00
RINGECICIR RSB IS SIGIRG)
0.00 0.00
I - IV
Tis 3 fed=x
228.00 S (VR ARBR GRT TREYET) 168.00
1,050.00 NICAEIEIS) 1,050.00
570.35 HeTU: Y PO gie TR ARANT gear 510.72 539.28
890.00 I AN §& dre 6,410.00
i & 9
385.00 (P) P dis 205.00
452.00 (@) AT qiS 442.00
453.00 (M ey si@en afs 431.90 1,078.90
694.57 PEIRCIERIGICISS - 155.63
3,582.22 78,351.81
gt - V
SRR
166.71 1. mar fa wufral F sERIRnR 240.34
1,760.33 2. Trfior erar Ay & orefie bt | SRt 3,763.46
321.09 3. ST A T SRR 371.95
72,248.13 "4,375.75
gt -V
SR
wrRedtg Rod d@ 4 :
26.32 (P) o1 el 23.69
3,979.81 (@) fary gafd gfaen 0.00 23.69
I |l W
(@) wRa #
0.00 () <mafy SHRIRRN & faI%eg SUR (800 HRIS BUY &I AT
SRR & JTIRUNYSR & fIeg <fard) 770.00
3,070.00 (i) ATafyy o1 & HEW W YR 4,420.00
1,947.85 (iii) @O BrTeTa 47.58
960.29 (iv) SR FToTa= 0.00 5,237.58
435.30 (@) Rd ¥ qER 400.92
481.12 ATl IUR (AARMETA & I FRHR FRfa iR 795.02
STy Al @t ARdl & faveg fér)
10,900.69 6,457.21
49

A




arffe RUIE 2009-10  * ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

fas 30 S, 2010 1 FATRAA Joa0= Bl S

e o S
I T
STEREAT -VII
AT, QTG 3R qrae=
T A
51.65 () AT die IR <T A
3.38 (@) o afe IR e @rs
59.17 (M =T grel iR gl R <7 &t
39.82 (8) SHRIRMET W) < &S
169.27 (S) 3T BRI W T &
0.04 (@) ATARN IIR TR T AT
JATgRy ol & g wraems
0.42 (@) dartrga siftreRal & forg fafeear e
0.81 (W) IAHTI THGIBIUT
1.08 (M) U™
2.40 (=) @@ A= Rara
1.14 (S) WUIdl IqhT
0.09 @) e
3= T
4.13 (@) arger fafeerg <faemett & forg e
81.71 (@) AMe aRERmEt & fore uraem
72.52 () T &) IrfafH, 1961 @ gRI 36(1) (vii &) () B
T gad e diew =il & forg wrae
10.00 (@) wrdt gy aRefufrn & forg wraem
0.23 (¥) Tavay SHRIRMET & fog e
4.88 (@) =
3.15 TS &) WY R AT oo
27.11 JUATATES! & IUR R g g1 & wrieos &
T wRa WReR & B # wre Afdhn
12.41 e < ot
55.32 PSICIERICICISECINEURCIC]]
0.55 e 3R s aRATSIRIT & Hraad & fog Jua-sfice awmu [
601.28
I -VIII
SRICURILY
237.20 Y 1991-92 P fAuern & M oF-aa (fewoht 17.1 &1 i <)
35.29 ey FE T -Gl W < @ (fewht 17.3 &1 de o)
272.49
IR -IX
THg R & I9
@ T THe/IH
0.09 TR Rord §6 & o9 9y
3T bl & U A9 ¢
(@) e
16.49 (i) =re] <ran
1,018.32 (i) i & U ATEfY S
1.50 (iii) ST & T ATAfy ST (FHEAR Searr A7)
(@) YT & qIEv
461.90 @i & Ut Arafy S
_1,498.30

9.81
3.07
217.68
80.69
53.49
0.12

0.49
1.01
1.42
2.79
1.39
1.07

1.35
81.71

94.52
10.00
0.23
5.81

8.08
1,350.02
3.83

o a
FE TIT

()

arffe RUIE 2009-10 © ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

f&A® 30 ST, 2010 &1 FAMRAA Jo9=A B AT

364.86

8.17

193.62
7.40
22.36

25.60
66.11
0.55

688.67

237.20
35.29

272.49

1,361.93

426.89

1,789.02

e ad

i 7 |

66.00

6.59
447.38

5.11
0.17
0.53
0.53

673.00
0.32
45.00

~1,230.05

10,040.71
79.66

5,568.69
200.70
231.20

86.94

642.76
0.30

16,850.96

0.00

16,850.96

I

R

3T X
forrer

(GTTITT FeraT TSTY {od, Wil 41 B &l 7Y)
W wferferat
(et yares & foy ARNsTSTd & T dud)
Y g
(Adroeten yared & folv ARISIEUa & Ut §edp)
e fat =it & ¥R
HaT AU HUA & I/R
(@) =ggsret s B RS
(@) Tadd =T, ORIt 30.811.d. =ITAT B, & urAe] wroras H fyaw
KIS

Tt XI

o1 3R ¥

gafda

(@) amawT foa wuf-at

(@) FEpr Ay fod drmafea
FGrAT 4

(@) aifoifisas d®

(@) &t amfior d&

(M) e AgHR &

T Wb By g e o/ e §&
e VST

A drs, faewr wferaRor anf

qUA-gfdce & AT T 3R AHrs TRATST
Abe 0T AR 3w

gery : IR-furesert gR™|yRrl & fag e
e %o sik 3w

58.19

0.00

4.91
0.00
0.53
0.53

0.00
0.15
45.00

7,760.64
343.16
342.85

arq

58.19
749.90

4.91

0.00

45.15

858.15

10,860.57
92.89

8,446.65
53.15

382.85
0.55
19,836.66
0.00

 19,836.66

50

51




e Rare 2009-10

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

et 30 S, 2010 @t TR o & srgfrat

-XII

R gREafrT

(Brs FUT)

[$)]
N

)

o <t |0l w|o| o < | o =
= Ol =[N AN QIN ®
8 O || c|o| o|g|l v
. -~ NN
©
e w
=)
J%"%
=) —|o|lw|<x|o® 0| = ©
= S|l NN © S N
Q w|o|o|o|o o |lo o
. - - N
©
<
o
® 95
o ~|olo|~N|lo N~ | o ©
= ||| e |w o
8 N | v« «— | © O | o ©
. -~ NN
©
<
odr§
[x)
ol o o| o — | o] ®
el =T S |9 @
o|o o| o o |oe| o
.\)
wliwlo|lNn|lo N o] &
G Qlele|l|e o | NI ©
o|lo|lo|o| -~ o |N| N
o © ||l ®o|w| o © [ o
= Q| R el M
Q S|o|~|+~|®© o |lel w
. -~ N[ N
N~
e
-~
°o 95
o N|lo| |~ N[N N
s | N[N~ © — | o N~
N ™ 3| <
©
e w
odr§
)
ol o - | o - || o
elele| | o9 @
) o| o o| o ool o
E.u
N|o|lo|~ | ™ | o ©
olele|l= N S |® B
o|loco|loc|o|o o |o| «
o o|lwo|w|~|N~ o|lN| ™
= XIS <N =
8 < | v | N[~ NN~
. ™ < <«
~
e
-~
°© %
P
;%
d
7
i .O
&E
. 24
EIE.
E v le £ F
o
El el B
15 15

@ 0.50 oG U I HF Ui

arffe RUTE 2009-10 ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

Toreen ot S
T FIC
I XTI
=1 uR~iufr
1, TST YT
47.38 (@) d% SRR
10.22 (@) fraw
2. 13w, wrere, s1fie R, SEiw ok qded 2y
1.67 (@) H¥ar T AR A
(@) 1M TR THAS, ST SR faarfed & & AT &1
100.55 YU TS (TG TeTehR)
() fafag axgelt I
0.46 Jfere w1 MU 0.46
0.46 ey : Yragm 0.46
2.34 (7) gded =13
6.01 (¥) ARARMEYT & U STl
0.65 (@) 3=
4.03 3. T &) WY TR TSl YTeieq
149.37 4. I¥ 1991-92 & ey T8 Y oF-a7 (fewvft 17.2 &1 ey of)
1.02 5. JArredeR anfe & faer & fog ifim
323.24
A -XIV
b RE e (fewoft & arefiw wenf o)
16.64 1, T &R
398 | 2 € T oIl W (TAUAUTH) & STe ST
56.18 3. dereh FEI wfefaeRer (grdiew) | & fog @ 18 e
47.88 4. qraer fafemr dfder & SRT <aany
0.99 5. FSIEINEESICCa R ICURT
4.00 6. ared gfdadt ARl & HROT AT
T 129.67

49.02
5.11

1.68

24.93

0.00

2.05

6.01
0.97

ISR
ELER Y

54.13

35.64
7.05
149.37
1.21

247.40

2.30
2.79
26.12
42.87
0.80
4.00

78.88

53




()

arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

STt -XV
A BT W B atett fewafor

¢ et St
A
TIGHET SMTER TR 3TUHT ol IR el 2
JAT-UF qAT ¥ AR B AT A 37T
d% rfafrm, 1987 IR SHD 1EfF I9T U

AR 3a §p wA faf, 1988 @
TR IR o a1 2

o faaRon &) I sren o3 © fb yeee
T SITATI 3R GATTAMI Dl TR BT 8, Sl
3R st e R &t srafd & SRE Jfad
M 3R T BT yATfad Hea 2| yde fagary
BT o N faa—oll 1 IR &= H I
I fagmama iR 3fea gl arafa®
R $77 AT & = 81 ehd 2

R HETIAT
IR-fureTeR aRATRRIT @ Bred Fol 3R
SFRMT IR TS BT fEATd AIgHaT SR IR T
STt g1 IR-fwreaert uRyjuRm & ddy #
1ol b1 fesaTe Wi 3MeR IR /a1 S77an 2

I B HRIUT Hal (A o @Y o], TS,
fafde mir anfe) ®1 ToHe SR W AT ST 2l
faw

CRICEN

eTRa’ Siforai # afig fopar STaT 2

e, g sreurafd Hou/@rs &R gc-4¢ &l o
SR ATIR BT & M Afeufed fhar swan
ST 213 Fawr sifdwree & aRE ¥ 90 AT ad
=37 9t & 3 e fopy il 21

fraer, e Rudaar d& a1lRa fey S &
I BT ©, b1 URudaar I &TiRd”’ & wa &

It foram e 2|

54

A

(M

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.2.4

frael, g Sugde fonedt oY Soft 7 afigra 7t
fopa ST, @Y fawt & foT Sudter” & w9 |
e foma Sia 2|

HedlhA

(=)

e 1 e arTd fHaiRd B #

AT W T SeTetl/wHeE afaqfaal &t
TR & BT STl B

TR & Y @I fHAT T STl SR
3FAROT IR Yot fapaT ST 2

gfcyferl & STferwso B AR T Yy TSl
(arerTa 41 3rafdy o1 <) STfeRrEeT avTd & gl
form ST © SfR roa W gHTRa fHa S g

g fERY, S8l ISR Bl &Y IUe &, Dl Wl
e A1 IR 98 A HH W Je-ifha
ST & g4, 3R DI &8I, BT AN HRAA
Rod 4% gR1 FaiRa e & @fiexo &
AR A-R fHAT ST & 3R SH a9 3R
B O H AT S0 8, Sfafd ghg @1 ors faan
ST 21 greh Ry T Wil Yo uRafc
ST B

BT SIFAURUT B AN TR AT AT 2 gt WY
QT e Sifha Jeu/aRRe Jod W 31 ©
Tgt 1 IR BT aRIaR-aRER gRyaadr &F A
3rafer § enfara fopam e g1

AT AT ISR &, 30 I 1 9 B 8, W
Hedifehd feha STTdT 81 T8l AT &R Suelel el
&, 981 39 WO & oy areiR Je s
ol dOR SR SRafesw waiues
sfear/ursadl Stad tfyuer= sifw
SR/ Rerd 9 & fenfrde & orgar
MR aRgell AT Jod & ATER W el
ST &1 HedsTd, 3R PIg 8, BT AN WA
Red d& gr1 FaiRa Fraw & afiexor &
AR AON-gR BT ST 2 3R IH A9 3R
811~ oI ¥ |1 STl & Saih gheg Dl BlS e
STl 21 greh fBpY &1 Tl e uiRafdd el
fopar ST 2

3.2.5

3.2.6

3.2.7

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.2

5.3

arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

AN TR i fma S 2

fSaRi/are onfe & ddg 3 STal IW/He I
AeS] B IR gl @ (ol UTaern fapar
ST &

IMmar o U/ va= A SeT & gfdact
YRRI H 99 BT YuHyd Aoft & i afied
fepaT ST 8 3fiR 978 AT R 37e] ISR
T FHU, STel O wuf gy 8§ B
e geras & g Ffgad gaedt (Faa
REATRT go) SAH & S W1 B 81, B IMIR W
3R I® Wd H Ui HU 1 BIT Pl &R W
qedifera o Sre 2

0T 3R AW

T FEHN PN iR 3w e d6
(GRS /A fawr d@ (sl @
ST/ & gRT UTIT Sar & fory
ol & 9y # IRy grfier ema SR
(THIRUTS!) # AN BT 01 AR 1B &
SEIEENIDIRSIRIE

AT P AM®G, SU-HHG, WAl iR '
uReufr # afiga forar Sar 2 &k wei
Rerd @ grr MaiRa fadeawa amcst &
TR ATae T by S 2

AT 1 auie IR-FueIeN M & forg
TG TeTh fhaT ST &

AR RTd dep o feRnfveei & 1R 4D
TRl SR gda den ey aREuRr &
forq 3 ) arfaferm &t ar1 36(1) (vii) ()
& FT JTGETT B JeATUH | Al S 3R
T @ S TR T ST 2

Rt uRiufut

Wl aREURRT b1 Ui Wufed qeusrd
HeThr VaeRie ofiTd 1R fohar S 2|

1,000 YU ¥ HH NI dTell UR™URMAT Bl
o | gaTRd fepar STrar 2l

faftr= gRefufral wR geagr f=foriad snemr
W YET fHar ST § -

A

55

SR

HousTd ot fafd

X (%)

TRER

BRI

BER SR TSR

RICIRCHI

10

PRI 3R ATSHIHAAR

RICIRSCH]

33.33

PE————

RICIRCCH

20

gk lwIN =

5.5

10.

aReTfr § gie R e AT & R
R e QU =1 g8 srafdy & forg ulkesfera fapa
SIGIR

4fp IRER & Jou d YA BT 9AD JodiDh
U TE ¥ gAferg uRaR (Y IfE) & g
WR I DI deh B TSR TRIR & Hag 3
TR fosan T B

FHHARY ATH

ST, Y, T STTHT, SAhTI Tehalchrol
3R sraeprer A= RATad @ fofg <gar srafdy &
3 H difehes Hedieh o SMER UR MR b
STl 21 gigdrl ST B T o4 3R B
oY gHIRT RS BT STl B

Td-ad &
SIRET0T e, i, STfHe/FawIdl B 37fa

A HAET 1 g BUY SR A HH b gd-axl
SR DY AT AT & T H IR fHar S 2

3T HhY

Te], 3Tafd o oIy S R & yrae 1 FegiRor
I el W U ST I @ fAftad R &
qTe IO BR AT AT & R TR febar e
gl

IRAMN B

IRIAT TR a4 & for &R I7T I 3R
ETHRUT AT & 41 AR Bl U FHY & 3R
TR AT ST § 3R &R &1 &1 &R erfiifrafira
) JoT-UF B ARE DI QAW WH W
HfAFAfHT BrEAT BT TN B Y ATATH
foa STa 2

& B

g BR BT GIUE g9 B AfAfE, 1957 B

AR & & U U el BRI 89 W)
IERIRSISIE]




11.
111

12.

arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

faeett gmromaw

SR faeelt gar <=1 7 aRads & gwra & fag
AWHO W GBIV AEH  (TTH-11)
(FNferd 2003) & AR, fac=lt qa1 o=-ai
EAl ISR I ICIEAURE RIS IS
ool gar @ uRfufml iR SFag W
fagelt qor e ¥u (THEEIgars) gR1 99 B
FHITQ W fergferd faf e &R wR qedifrd @t
Sl § IR e R OuRum e
farTan faeel SRR iR SURl & g i
TR AT/ oY & el otv iR B o |
HW@HG%W%;@N

I IR T Bl HS 7= Bl dRIG P fIem=
fafr <=t wR gRafda &t S 81

el a1 wiiemsit & forg aiew

Jo sriféra a1 o< @ ARG @Y fFueE @
forg Suerer RUIE - aTell a1 o i3y wnfud
H & fory fareeft o7 Afaemd oxar 2

faeeh g1 Jfaerd af & ofd ¥ ywivens g
srfergfera fafima o= R g caiferd ot St 21
THeie R aRem @/ @ arier
fafrra dfder o & geateds w am/E
oY & S7efe o 3fR B o | AT 1§
MfRr/ace &1 wfdar o orafer 7 faam # forn
GRS

et gar wfdereli & Igehror 3R FdreHRu W)
/R @ e fafe dfder W
/e Y & el A oIk B o W
HIT ST 2

e (SRafea) wifderg

TS & Y, ST FeITSl YRETRT 1erdl Saarsti
B TG BN B, DI AIGHaT MR TR g #
form Srar g1 WY @ AW R oAt 3terdT
AT W9 & AN Afderde Srafd arerdn
TR™FURT/STAT B AT Ay, 3TH F A W BH
B, WA e 8

56

A

(@)
13.
13.1

13.2

14.
14.1

fewfori
et af_iuferd

e gfice der e A, =8 foweht # fRra
arfoTfoues HURT 3iR SHTYRT TaeeM, s o]
3R foretes TR, 78 # fRId 24.58 TS HUY &
Ahd qod (Afd Sffeuser &I drE) arel
URTAT & e § USHBRU Bl JUATRGATT
ECRGE

gfear gfdce dcR (amguadl), @l s, T3
feett % erftrifad wratery o & ddy # wermel
ARG BT smsval g fafy= smdfefoat @
fawifora <72l fopam o €1 39 wdg # 4f# &R
A dRled (TRT WRBR), STl 3R
AT R (3t WD) & T Y of
fruefi e fopar ST 81 g9fery, sSyae
3y T AT B IMIR W % GRT 14.44 TS
JUY HI AR goiipd B T8 ©l $9 ISR
FHRITAT IRER (Y |fed) IR o84 5 i
DI &R A TGSl W FHIRA fopam S g1 ueer
IR BT e Ay, ST USel HRIR ® W H
ST T8 &, | N & forar 5 ||

faeeht Sur

JUATSTES! @ SMART TRET BRIHHA B 37,
d 7 a9 1990-91 H FAAB! YSil IR 4 25
AT SIS TR BT 20l SIS o1 | I8 0l
TER[AR, 2001 W URH DR Y AT IRIaR el
it ol # arfi-eerf arg g1 faeis
30 S, 2010 @t AR 27.21 TS HIY &HT
IHIET VY I Al F SYR-URT A G
i & 31efie giar T 21 AR WReR 7 Fol
B TRE & ¢ 3R Aty ', TR 31 |l
TET BT Bl W FEAN & 2 JUATsIse!
PRIHH & A ura e gor M wRa
IR S TN WRBHR gRT 3.6 B Iuaed
HIS TS BuAT (e & faeg o @ 18 R
SH® Workawy, fagel gar ffeai w fafw
SRIA BT T89 VR WRBR gRT fHAT ST &7 2l
gD eI, JUAURATSS! A IR ol g e
He (e b1 g eaiferd el fepam 1 2|

14.2

arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

3R {30 S, 2010 1 FATRAf fafa
W TJUR B YAHAIbd AT S A
YUATSTSS! A IR & {0 el STl Jori-u4
H SUY 7Y 27.21 HIS BUY B AT H 63.86
PRI BUY B! 3R ARG TRBR DI <F B w7 H
ST 1Y 22.36 BRIS BUY Bl 14,29 BIIS BUY
el AT & w4 ¥ uRafdd fear T gl
39 IR, 3R < &7 =1e] fafva R R
T R SITaT 2 A1 ST SER IR o TSl HIRA
WRDR W A KT & F1 0.56 RIS Y
g3 T BIaT| 9Tf, 3G b B o MR B
oY W HTE T9Td T2 2

ay¥ 2008-09 H §b T WRA ABR Bl UK
AU & AR Al At g1 & forg sifm
AR WX 36.66 BRIS VYT Bl R UE B B
3eRIER, 2009 Th AT B s A fhe aah
gs faf ) IRl & RIS & q16 §b & T
22.36 PRS FUY P AY &, fo ""aTe], S
3R Tae" & STl <Idl @ od W qeIAT T
21 HRT IRBR & A1 FHSA & AJAR 9
THIAT A W 6% DI R W AT JaT (BT 2
HRT DR TG AT D AR A AR IR
oTet fafrr 81 & FARIS & a1 b Dl g
fafema gt &1 <rar sy ot e srrid
SRR, 2021 B WK ARBR A b Srg |

d% = B 9¥ 1997 1R 2002 H 100 fAfer=
SFNIDT STl 3R 20 FHfer PRI STeR &t
31 fowdt # uf¥ns faern §@ o 120 fafea=
HABT SR (564 DS BUY & HA,
forrepT faTieh 30 S[F, 2010 T FHTAT 373.71
PAS TIY §) B SR form ol g1 ol ot
TR IR TRGR RT & T3 & | I 0T HAL: a9
2022 3R 2025 qH AT fovar # aro=fi-
3TERAT I §

3 Srer i &1 9% o gfsan (50 fafers
D! STeR), BT §b (50 FHferaT srid
SleR) MR fesm 9% (20 fAferm eriant
STeR) & T §9 debi B A1 §Y PRR B AR
ITh! FHSUNI IS H SHRIRRT & w0 4
GT AT 7| SHRIRRIT &7 srd-arfie fopwar

A

57

15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

16.
16.1

16.2

aReNfr fepar St 8, e ST giRng
faepre 9 9 forw ol &) aroRf-srerrh & forg
fopT ST §, ST AT a¥ 2022 3R 2025 d&
TRudd 8 I8 8| 3MRId! STeR &1 STHRIRRT &
gael 391 dbl 7 564 HI$ BUY (fasie 30 I,
2010 T 431.90 TS HUT IHMAT ) B oy
if¥ed fpar & g7 faRiy sfgen aisi @
JIORA-STERIN HHYT: 2022 AR 2025 TH M-
1 el | &1 STl B

fagsh SwwiRml ik SuRy/arer At
wfaarait &1 g eicht

q¥ & IR fage SHRIRRT iR SuRl &
b TR 1.92 BIS BUY Bl B Bl
“felt SRR 3R SRl & JTqedicd 1R
g/ (a2 & ot ow ok 'If o #
HIET T B

U7 14.1 & gfeeTrd, qUATanES! & SuR of T
fac=ft gar (et o1 gaeifea el fhar
& it A g1 R IRAR ¥ el A
gl

faTie 30 S, 2010 BT AT I BT 9.230
ffera sri®! STeR @1 ol IR & forg
18 g@rn rier fafy wfded B feeie
30 S[F, 2010 P FAQ a9 & IR I
gma d% 9 anar o dfdw w
A/ (B16)" 2N & <1l o 3R &1y ord #
arger fafsr <faerert R o & fory 2.20 w8
$UY Tof fHaT Bl ol o H H 0.22 FRIS TUY
JAfaereit @ uRudaar w st fory 77 £
FHHATRA & oH (AS-15)

I 71 SMEATTaTE gRT ST W Uqa-15 &
AR AU W HHARAl & oy Suem,
BT Tehatehul, ffhean darfrgii <,
ST ATAT AT, U STahTe TR Yo &
forg dWifehe MR W HHarl oW &g U
ST B AT B 2

db e S99 HHEAIRAl, e 3ieerh




arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

it S & fore fAeey for 8, & wdy
TR Rod d9 &1 wfaw Afa &1 e
3fee giaNG @ @ gl fadie 30 I,
2010 BT AT 9Y & SR 4 =1 9fag [fg
# 3fere & ol 0.03 HRIS BT 37aT fhar &

HI J B AT 3fere™ & SrfaRed a9 & ofd #
dmifhes euihd & MR W A Sl
fadier 30 A, 2010 & FHTK 9 & QR §b -
Yo A # 1.45 BRIS BUY BT fEM BT §
3R “HHARY qaH, Wl 3R Wi @ i &
3TEf T 3R BT ord # ywiRRa fomar 2

anr Y & ol ew ofik wfY oy § 164 ORIINE @ A : Har g/ Aa-wE W
gaRe fpar T T IUGH, IMABEIY Ahardul, fafhear o
16.3 S AN §& (HHaN) UIE fafE, 2003 I STADT S SFapret =T e
® IR 96 I At HHaTRA, e toe (@)  dife® aRee 7 wgad fafa : dwifes
Ao @ fired e & @1 wnfier e §Y TP g 3R WaT AfEd A1 B SIS BT Mol
g o JarfrgRT e, e @t eraven & & forg qargae sobrg St fafe o s
el &1 T WA HaRA B AarfigRy srerr fpar g
RIS & FH199 IR U AIS U Y & (@) IR9ING ofv 1R & 9aq 9od & 1Rl
AR B Bl T ThIF H Jde Uh JIH IR 3Ry &1 FHo 3R fm=feRad vde w)
<M gRT foam Siran © 8iR S99 forg < fafr STRITT 37 & GRTH YW :
(e T #)
f&qie 30 S, 2010 B ATRART
o IRl § aRad= SUGH | GBI AHSIBRUT fafdeer | wvoran sawrer|  S@wTIr AN
Rama
IY ® URY | IR Bl 10,806,848.00 8,096,689.00 | 4,207,045.00 [11,400,344.00 | 23,982,694.00
ERRISR
EIGRIEEERITG] 971,271.00 745,027.00 | 432,033.00 | 1,082,517.00 | 1,176,708.00
TS ANTT 837,531.00 627,493.00 | 326,046.00 | 883,527.00 | 1,858,659.00
iyl W diifee () /e | 2,998,458.00 2,396,659.00 10,594.00 | 533,348.00 | 4,713,892.00
3raT fopar T amw (1,444,871.00) (1,755,072.00) (76,083.00) - | (3,863,146.00)
99 & 3 H qR@ BT 14,169,237.00 10,110,797.00 | 4,899,635.00 |13,899,736.00 | 27,868,807.00
EERISR

(1)

arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

(M IUSH, I99 AR W AR AT ATH JATTT HHARI BT BT ST W0l Tqh1e R TahTe
1A Raraa”’ oY & 1= oy iR 81 oRg | A=Y 78 Jar |

(Rifer vuy #)
f&qie 30 S, 2010 B FATRATT
QRIS AT IeH SAAHTA BIETe|| WU | SAIHI I
BB SIEHTN RarE
FTe], Aee AT 971,271.00 745,027.00 | 432,033.00| 1,082,517.00 | 1,176,708.00
TS AT 837,531.00 627,493.00 326,046.00 883,527.00 | 1,858,659.00
Ao gREufEl w® - - - - -
g 3 d A E|6| q
qHifhd (o) /=1 2,998,458.00 2,396,659.00 10,594.00 533,348.00 | 4,713,892.00
3 SUfRIT ol ® UaeT | 4,807,260.00 3,769,180.00 768,673.00| 2,499,392.00 | 7,749,259.00
¥ 991/ & A 8RNI o
AR BIfy oy & faawor 3
AT TT @/ (317Y)

(F) TS IRERTE F LT
de 1 Tl 30 S[F, 2010 I AR ST B FAUIT &l fohar 21 safoy uReuRmi &1 g
S g 8 B

() o9 B ARG DI U o dIHiTheh qardHr :

f&Aie 30 S[A, 2010 & FATRATT

gRwifta o ELCIE| BT fafeeea HIOTAT BT T
ABGIHROT BT Raraa
geal &R 7.75% ufqad 7.75% ufaad 7.75% ufaay 7.75% ufay 7.75% ufaay
a9 gfg R 5.50% wfcray 5.50% wfay EIVEE] 5.50% wfcray 5.50% Hfcray
W YR A
g X RIESICIGINEC] RIESICIGIRERE] greras ARoft Sites | Sfra dar M @1 | Sttas dar e
Bl G R AR B | Bl G R qROA 41 A (1994-96)| 9g R AR B o & AR
T FHIRE & | B A TBIRG X | & AR ITRSAAAT| & T GbIa | & 3fefT Feb1ra
(1994-96) (1994-96) R B 9N fHar | &Y (1994-96) TV (1994-96)
IS
HaTgiRy B Y| 60 60 60 60 60
IR T 1Y H 37| AR YT MY H 3%| SR a1 Y ¥ 3% | SRR FaT 3 H 37| FAR YaT 31y
IR fF g B | R AP MY B | SR aMF MY BN | &R Afdd MY BN | H 3% 3R 3fE
R T §Y 1% R ¥ §Y 1% W T 8T 1% W g gV 1% MY BF W Hed
W 1%
P BEHY | - - WEHBH AR | |
S B R R &= gy a8 H
16% RS faran
ST AT §

A

59




arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

HAIRIA

SAIRIA ATAT
STIRTRT

q¥ & YRY | o1
yRulrar &1 sfa
T |

JrorT aRufr
R YATRIET omyg

qHifhd oy

3rgr fopu U oy

IBRIESICARSNEE]

9§ & 3fd H o
TRETRRT &1 a4

dop 7 faier 30 G, 2010 @1 FATRRINT ol ! (A9 T8l @1 81 gefery uRwufcral &1 &l Sferd e T8l &1

() <R & aaaT Yo 3R ATSHT URETRRT & ST e Bl Ao

(31 2uy )
f&diie 30 S, 2010 @1 FARART
IR @TH SUEH STEHIN etk Tl STEHILT A
THGH T STFHIAN RarE
Iy @& 3 | AT - - - - -
uReufrl &1 Sfaa qea
99 @ 3fd # AT 14,169,237.00 | 10,110,797.00 4,899,635.00 13,899,736.00 | 27,868,807.00
JAT-uF | A TS (14,169,237.00) [(10,110,797.00) (4,899,635.00) | (13,899,736.00) | (27,868,807.00)
RECRISRINAGCRED)
17. o 1991-92 1 Aferiel @39 THEITH DI ST B TS 95.40 BRI BYY IR
171 "3 <Ay oY & e Jore-ud H uefa farRry =wmarerar o eIt @ SrgeR # ifiRer

17.2

237.20 HRIS BUY B AN # A3MEH gR
SRge U HhaH H WT ddb Ah AR
(Tadiv) (Riaw), 2008 # we §& o gfear
& T mHferd) ¥ U fewt @ Il wef¥a
XA §U 237.06 HRIS DUV D1 AR WA 81 T8
1T TAOT 3R 1.3, gRI ST <RIl
# giRact ardiel & 3ffcrd fMye™ wR AArfora &t
STQaft |

"3 aREURIE WY ® i Jod-ud H
Teld 149.37 @RIe ¥UY HI AR & gRI
foferdl @ @ & foag af 1991-92 & SR
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A

17.3

P S GNT ST B TS 53.97 RIS BUY DI LA
TSI B &1 ST IR SR SR T4, 3R
PIS B, TIGIU AR W.3MdP gN SwdH
ST H SRS 31l & 3ffc fuem w

AT bl SOt |

Ty 1991-92 ¥ ITTATHA I & T4 H .37, I
1 9l | 40.25 BHUS BUY B AR TR0 B
ST RS AT 99 1999 ¥ UHEITH & fa%g Sufad
HahH W R1.3M.9P & ue H (32! qIiRa R gY
eIy <ITITerT 9 9 T2F Bl oxdT AR .3 dH
DI AWREG & U 40.22 RIS BUY DI ALY
ST B b1 frew foan, Ry faftea s v

17.4

18.

19.
191
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fer oMl ¥ 1991-92 ¥ MW dB
JWRETH & YT STAT SUY T A IR AT D
U 35.29 RIS BUT T Uraem= fopar 1T 2|
35.29 HRIS I & UTALTT 3R 0.03 HRS
TUY & QTR AT Pl 37 SIarg”’ i
& 3l guIfAT S R@T ® SR g SuR eI
SfeaRad STaaa =IraTerd § offad sl &
sife frae™ = weTaifora fopam o |

J3MdH iR wwdleng dun Wenmdd iR
o d& (@ Wss dcs §& @ 9
mferd) & dia faarel &1 fMyerT & w2 ek
Q& & dra Ub-gaR B foveg BIE araT A
&l & e, vadiens ok sl d6 (3
WSS ACS 9 B AT AMeId) RIS TeT H
ey =ymarery § wiika fSeh! & TR Wi &7
BYE Hedl & URAURTT | aget HI S drell
sl Wt IR o wrfie’l wea e o
J3MTH & AT B SME MR IAGT fRme
qrefaes Iy 9= T ST |

TS ga

d% @ TETE | Y WU § Bad U T AATd
foxia sieaT o gl safay §eye
A" W AGIBRY] D (AS-17) & AR
JRIT B AT DI JAF S 8 o
Hag et oo

SICYC 3P AICS YhlSced h §iSAT gRI
SR HEg OISl Uded! WX oaTRRul ATG
(AS-18) & ITUR 3MMaeTH Tebed [FTTAR

feuTu e :

Ha el &1 A

Y FH TR

YR Rord 96
o 7. e

100% Yol eTRA R
qren = M
AT A 6 B
JTeeT Ug yae fe9red
e sfear & aremer
Tq yqy e B

A

61

19.2  Swdad wifedi & W a9 & SR §6 B -
Al B I SR AT TR o -
Teraror T = A =
e | wEeE e (Hgd
2a (26 4%
ELERL)
T T |- - 9.79
T ATHIST | - - -
S AT [60.09 |- 0.10
qRefaes |- 0.14 -
g dHia |- IreTeT UG gae
IRENEZCIREDIES]
CARINICARERE L]
N1 BT gl gfery,
JTHTI THGIBROT
IR SUSH BT
YA A, IR
PTS B, B AR
W) fopar e g1 | -
ISR 3982.45 | - -
Jrerft &t
T M
feqiw 30 |- - 700.00
I, 2010
CARSITSIR
e
fadid 30 |23.69 |- 180.00
I, 2010
EARRBIRIR]
I (SUR)
20. 3 B
201 99 & o7 136.00 FHIS B (ST a9 114.50
HRIS BUY) B A IR B (Y Wragr o
TR foam T 2
20.2  HHEAIY 3T B G rATfeehRor 5 fHeriRor

9y 2002-03, 2003-04 3R 2004-05 & foIU
faTTr 26.02.2009 & 31+ 3T gry Aol fear
gfp:




20.3
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d faRor a¥ 2002-03 & foU oMy o
Ffafm, 1961 & T W R b o
RSN T8 Bl 3mT HR fAWNT I SR
Tt <ITAHRUT gRT UIRT ey & g
A Sed =TT § 31dTe ot B

T R JUTATT =ITATIIhROT &b FHeT feriRor
T¥ 2003-04 & U M B AT, Forad
g 36(1) (viii) & o1 srgafa & foy
STe fepam T o IR a9 1991-92 & Ty
-39 W Hafd 150.45 HRIS BUT Pl &
P STAFANT BT & DR QAT TAT AT HIR Y
Tp A fIaR s & fou fHgivor srferert
BT a7 AT AT B

X UBR, M B AT =ITATferhvor &
et iR 98 2004-05 & HEY H T B
fraior, s a1 36(1) (viil) @ e1efiA
AL & TS oft, @l Wl e fopam T o iR
U Wh ¥ R w1 B forr fHeiRor
TR BT aTaT ST AT o7 |
fgiRor 9% 2005-06 IR 2006-07 & WEE H 3MA
) R, SR gt 36(1) (viil) & 31
SFTANT &1 T o, T AT <e b T o SR S
PR ey RNfeERe & faAid 31.07.2009 &
3N gRT Y N I fIaR =7 & forg FMeiRor
ST BT T ISIT AT B

20.4(%) e ay¥ 2007-08 & Heea 7 &R136(1) (viii)

(%)

& I 35.04 BHRAS BUY & A B ATFAN ol
BU 3R 4.90 FRr$ BUY B A7, Oy 9@ gri
arar fopar T g, <d gy e g1 8 w2l
% 7 a9 B I & dRE & 916 GRT 36(1)
(vill) @& oeiF gl | Wefd omg @)
3TdYela RIrfaeRoT & |HeT STl aTRael bt
21 4% T Pl 71.61 RIS YT Bl HTT & fang
69.30 RIS BUY BT YTIETT T g3l T

feiRor a9 2008-09 & Ade # &R 36(1) (Viii)
& I 11.19 BHIS BUY & G[d DI JAFAN ol
gU 3 3.80 YIS ©UY BT 7w, o4 b g
a1e o 1T 8, < gy fHERer gR1 o wr 2
% 1 RSl (3mfiel) & AR S I &
g ardier aTRae &1 & 3iR e oifdd 2l dap
q IMIRADH UTae &7 & |
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A

20.5

21.
211

21.2

faa (dwm 2) fafm, 2009 7 M @R
N, 1961 B ORT 36 B IT-GRT (1) B
WE (viii) & TEIHROT B U | bl Hiaenfid
w0 ¥ e a9 2010-11 & wferet o T
BT S R @ SR, e a 2010-
11 & qd @il & oy amg R i &t ax
36(1) (Viii) & 31 9 & a1d W fopt Y TRE
fidd W § 9Td T Tt

RIESING G

T H R S BRI I JRANNT B uReufrI
3R ST, S R srafd F wfafia st ara g
T AT JUTEN o T B ARG T
SIfRFAf far 721 &, ST AR SR Y AT STl
Bl eI o URRIURRIT BT 99 e T AT S
9 9% “arafas Pfgaaar 78 1 & oo
IR ANT Y Iy B, e fawg U
SR HR IRFRTAT It bl ST |

f&Tie 30 S[F, 2010 TH 9% 1 82.30 TS TIY
b et TR R <A ot 1 &, R g
T H ST AT 2| SRR HR aRAURTAT 3R

SYATRAT DT HTI HGl bl AT A1 S TS 8

(@RS Y

fawor

30.06.2010

30.06.2009

AN B
At

AATIa HHATRAT
&1 Fafhcar dgrarn
& foru vraem
JTADBTI TDhGIHRT
& U urgem™
IueH & forw
PICEIE]

JTABT ATAT
Raraa & forw
PIGLIE]

ORI 40(F3T) &
T =T &g
& forw gragm=

0.34

0.47

0.93

0.63

0.14

0.27

0.37

0.82

0.00

(1)
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0.49 HS BYU B URMAG <IAT BT ATHAT
fopar &R a9 2004-05 F FHIA AT BT UL
fparl srgAfed SR & ogarR fadis
30 S, 2010 T& 0.26 TS BUY HI aqTTHT &
Tl BT I P T SR AT 0.23 BRIS
BT B A SH ARG B JiRARY <Iadr &

P IRAMA B 2.53 1.60
gReufi (@)
IRART B AT :
1 TIB™ 1.02 1.02
2 MY X 3rfafrm, 83.81 77.09
1961 I R
36(1) (viil) &
e+ faey uRfera
forfer
FA IR 84.83 78.11
B 9T (W)
e s 82.30 76.51
&Y AN (T-F)
21.3  faqi® 30 I[F, 2010 B FHW 99 & IRM
I & & foru oy ofR 'ify o #
5.79 RIS BT B 1A W STehl TS B
22 & 0T oIl DA
22.1 T8 0T OIRAT TH1H (TIATATTH) 0370, 9 gRT
ot g1 # &A1 1 J[elTs, 1989 | URH &1 T8
ot 3R dh1 QIR Imaa fad
HUCRT B AT A Yo {har AT ol
TAUAUTd i 1 AT, 2004 I FHI HR &
TS 2
22.2 IR SfeaRaa uReuRr iR SIad w9y 8
3R 8 qor-u # Py vfafsedi & v #
EHIRIRIR IR
22.3 JPT/TAUHE gRT TR TIUaUd & el
P 2.79 BIS JUY P SHRIRET feiH
31.03.2010 &I IefRAfT dhi/Tavsmwl gRI
AT AT JT-UF 3 Jhe Dl TS |
22.4 ot &= o I fog s, sfsar sef¥m

BTS¥ U8 SadUHC ffics, S Tauauus &
JIF SERIRET e & fay  fawrh
TIUHAT § F TP T, BT IHD gRT AHAT Bl
T TR oy GuRmel & eRu e
01.10.1994 ¥ .3MdF R TATAUUH &
I AU W 81 WATer/8 SRR WhR
el DR BT G AT 7T AT | IBT & eI
R1.3M.9% & 7 &8I & HRUT I8 WIKTERDI Bl
S GBI DT YU BRI Bl AT T B
& T qrew o1l 9 ° TauauTd & e
JMSTIAVHS! b AT Y AR & faeg

A

63

w9 4 Hog o
23 I AT

A 3R B o # Tef3d oy a2 & 3fidbs

TR e : (@RS T
feraeo EsEL RESER]
1. FREAT 3R FRET] 1.31 1.62
2. A IR far 0.40 0.58
3. |ar &R 0.31 0.10
4. qarafey =g 0.02 0.09
5. a8 I 0.70 0.76
6. ATTAR® B 0.23 0.40
7. AT 0.15 0.45
8. afaea 0.09 0.14
9. o Hraiat 0.86 0.79

Jdg ARl W
10. Fld ARl HI - 0.10
11. 9IER ¥ ot TS 0.92 0.64
REISICA R IR

12, GRE WAl T 0.61 0.50
13. 3T 1.86 1.41

S 7.47 7.58
24. faen ae-ag urfaE o

it wRemstl & forg fder dicwifer™r @
T, Heuied iR warem & foy
fdemamd AMcel W IRGT Rod §6 @
el & orfaR fonedt 4t ay 3 faemt &t oft
% fory Sueter Aeugd & forg g fby o
T STUfETT wTae B o iR eI o # W
ST ST =112Y 3R FAGe R (FR Fera)
3rerar A9 ge-9g URRIT (SMSTHeR) o |
IUE Y, St ft B B, B AW "I
R o I v iR B o # gxaiaiRd
feram St | fept & oy Suere 21oft # Jeusry
& forg gfora uraami & fosdt a # arufera i
A 1fdd 9T S B ST H IAfYGT Bl ATH MR
B o # ST {1 Sl & 3R U qaged
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AR (HR, TR DI &I, DI TTHY) 997 ge-98

TRfEr o 3 fafranfor forar s 2

Ty & IR §F 7 fawt & forg Suee &0 F
9T & BT @ HRATANIT 8 & BRI 9% o
He-g¢ YR o (ATETHIR) H 6.59 RIS

BT 1 M1 EXATART Bl 2

25, il @t g

UEE T I H ORATDRYN AID 28~ TRAURTIT
# TS BT T8 g3 B
26. FRe-3 e smaTae W s

RLALES 3R Hgad e YRR SR wiid
3Mfeh 3R AHTD AT (JAwhY) 7 Fgard
W URRT g &5 & agia <9 A -
3T 3TTa fad W e s fovan ol et
30 I, 2010 T 03718 1 I URATSIT Bl
NI & oIy RT3 106,000 JAADHI SO
(0.46 RIS BUY D FAGE) MM YT b | YT
I & g § AT 3R LTI B AT B fory

28.

WHEag [ T g fadid 30 S, 2010 6
0.35 BRIS BT Y IR BT STANT fohar T &
3R 0.11 BRIS BUY BT AN WAl H IHRT |

T A HIHE AT BRI

§F 7 IRA H T 1R AHTS BIIHH B [Ty GeH
oy dvematt &1 3 o 7 & {17 0.55 BRIS
JYY (123,750 3D SeR & FAAG) Dl
3AgHRT TS ITey bt 21 3 IR0 T 37T H “=re],
<garRtt SR wae™ & T ST T Bl
fa 30 S, 2010 TH I 7 0.55 HRIS TUY
MY & 1 3T & T I 71 S 7 foAiw
30 I[F, 2010 P BRIHA & A fHy MY
TR R AT B /A H 0.02 FIS BT
<1f3r ST &Y B 3R S0 S PY I B W A
AT TR R

[EENEHIEa
ST gft B, Fae @1 FrEfalRed @R &
GRIGRACRIRVICIRE

(@ w70)

e & S A i G567
30.06.2010 F1 FATACT | 30.06.2009 FT JATA

aRueEar & oy emRa (TIEIgH) | () ¥R WRBR B fesifepa afavfri 58.19 0.00
(@) Toddt =i, RorgesT ... d@ =Ry 0.15 0.32

2, & urgy TG A

() i 9fs 45.00 45.00

SRRV 103.34 45.32

famt & forv Sueer (Tuwyw) (@) =gt Ffe= & gfre 0.00 673.00
(@) eI gfeat 749.90 447.38

() oA fad et @ wie 4.91 5.11

(9) was |l puti 0.53 0.53

(8) WA ARBR B fedifha wfayferi 0.00 66.00

SREVISE 755.34 1,192.02

RETCREGN 858.68 1,237.34

T : oAyl 0.53 7.29

et faw 858.15 1,230.05
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(1)

29.
29.1

arf§e Rure 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

IMBRD AT
TIETHRYT 7D (TTR-29) H AATYIE Meh D
ST H He-9¢ FAER © -

CRISRY!

fRa=or

fewis 30.06.2010
@ FerfRufa

3T 01.07.2009 &I JTRATY T2y

129.67

Y & GRM gig 0.00

ay & R DT

(50.79)

TaH1% 30 ST, 2010 T JLATEAT (AT 78.88

29.2

30.

31.

[raTfad [y i & fery 9y widarsil 8 qoi
qfdear :

% 7 AR & fJem & oy g dfard @
2| g1 dfagrell &1 $o aRASHT AR 2.01
IS BUY B, ! Jam # 9@ 7 ot a®
1.20 PRIS JUYY BT YAH fHAT T 3R 0.81
PRI BIY & AN YA B MDD AT
& ST ST T B |

rftor 3trer fAf

Y 2008-09 P SR HRA ARBR o AT AT
% gRT UG &I ST dTel! IR0T 3ar [ &
o Y TNoT B URAY Rord 9 7 =g a9
2008-09 & SR .3M.4F & UNT aIforfoud Japi
NI ST @Y ST drelt Y & 39 2,000 BRI
JUY 3rdfed fby 3R 9% 7 fasie 30 I, 2010
TH 1,763.46 TS HIY U [y & WRA TWRHR 7
a9 2009-10 B IR 3R 2,000 IS BV ATdfed
fhg g iR 9% 7 afrfoae o 3 i@ 30 94,
2010 T 2,000 HRIS BUY BT HYUT S HIal
P for Bl

feTier 30 S, 2010 1 FATRATT AR 31T
ffr & e gerT For AR AW @ Al
3,465.78 HIS HUT T |

A T 9% & fersiw gefem gleen

faeT BT IR B D U b 91 &
H YR Rod 9% 7 feqie 11 faw), 2008
Pl AT fad wufay &) Tpa AT U
HH B oIy I A 96 TG 4,000 IS
JUY P gAdT giaer @ifd ot a8 gAfad
Fhagr vy Rord b gR1 v Rord db
AfAFTTH, 1934 BT &R 17(4) (T9) & JFTAR

A
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32.

33.

34.

YeM B Tl I8 Glagr uRdra Rod db Bl
THa GG e (YeIgu®) & S
ferersT XUt &) uR Suerer gt | g gt gfaer
d& &1 faAtier 31 A9, 2010 TH IuAL off 3iR
I ARG BT FRRART 59 Giaen & faeg By
EEaRIRURERI

EINERE KIS

RL3AT. §b 7 453.38 PHRIS BUY & gl oI
Al 1,050 RIS IUY & 3ifhd oI & oY
YA (STR1) HU afe (Sredidl) SR foar om |
gie g a1t @ afy & forg ot fpy g 9|
Jec Pl g€ o rafy # e e mam 2l
fa<fiiar a¥ 2009-10 & RN 510.72 TS BT
BT SANET AT BISd §Y 59.63 HRIS BUY Bl
NINNIESEIRIER

TS X WY

d 7 gd @1l & SR AU g &R DI TRATRIA]
&I g & fory fafr= seer wifiéal & |y
1,500 RIS BUY I JTIHATD T R & oY
14 TS R WY HRR Y 8, R & 400 FR1
BUY D I qef AR &b 2 WY a9 2008-
09 & IR 3ed ¥ 3R 200 FRIe BYY &I

AT Hol [ & 3 WU i 30 I,
2010 I FHI Y B SR 3eTd & | 397 AT &)

WOl % FETIH IR UTW I3 BT WY B Ay
Jfdercere afer § A=Iar & e g1 o 1
SelTs, 2009 D AT qHAT ARART 1w
3.15 BRI BUT 7 3R §F ¥ 9§ & SR 37eTd
WY TR 6.55 HRIS BUY BT faa o ifrd
fram 21 a¥ & GRM Fdf 2.30 TS TUY P
AT go fhaT T © 31 7.40 BRIS BV BT A9
SRATIT TY WT &Y 3T AfdareTd erafer § gof
fepan St | fa=ies 30 S, 2010 1 FATRAf
§% BT 900 RIS BUY DI TIATD Tl A1
AT 9 IHTAT T & WY ATV B

I B IbTU & forg wraem=

d -1 HNfT 9a9 & AR AS-15 & Ad=
T FHAN A B AU uEE™ &
srfaRext aa= dehed, ST fedied 1 TawaR, 2007
W ¥ §, & [l I & hIY & YU &g

dIR< am JMYR X 1.38 D[S BYU Dl YTadrd
fpar Bl




35.

36.

37.
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et & forg Sucrer & uRugaan @ forg enlRa
Sroft F wftrgfot @1 avaiaRor

et Rord 9 & feenfden & orgaR, d
TUHTH St A TEdie Sof 7 66 HRIS HUY
(Gifhd qoa 55 PS BUY) Bl IWWBR
30 I, 2010 BT FATK aY & SR 7.51 HAS
BT Bl B & B &

afayfaavot

R, 9 ARIYRIPRN el ofF-a7 B AR
AR f2d & <IN JHIOOH b T H GUD
| afrfadi S R qAT IS 3T
Job e s, 2000 (4R 14 (3T), 14
(&), 14(®) R (18) & oA U
afergfeal & el & for =il & W H Bl
& @ oy Uiferepd 21 dheier ay 2000 | 2007
& RN WIMEH | B A faa wufa
(Tauwl) & 38,809 YD ATART HUN AT
862.20 IS ¥UY & foy TH g
ity §6 & 14 Rerel dae |wida
AffeRoT (TREAdITH) IR Y 21 39 oF-
< ¥ Wi UG WRAHI I R1.3AT.dD B
3IATRT dereh & AT SMATA U DT AT
3R $%IeT BT AR IAMH Bl &1 39D
HI-A1Y V.71, 6% gRT W DI (2! & A
& o =R & w0 3 (et = gU d8eh vl
& ddg § A B IS WY B ST 2| 5
U IR UREURMET BT =9 § AR "iivd B
T STTaT € 99 =y e 1 uTy JHIoIS
SR &l faxf 99 2008-09 & AR 5
JIRTAAIUE oF-a7 3R I afgd faey
TS e = ) 6y 1 g1 59 g,
fa<i™r 99 2009-10 & SR 1 ARYASIGH oI
& QX1 b T el fadie 30 S, 2010 B
JRART PoT 95.63 IS IYT & 8
STRUASITR ol -S4 I & |

T 3R 3
Fc 19,836.66 HRIS VYT & JHRT T AR
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38.
38.1

38.2

39.

¥ # A 5,800.78 HIS TUT B FHUT 3R
R IRATRTET R T 996 TR T9R §RT
fara 21 29 14,035.88 BRI BUU B KT 3R
I Rfard B

T [HTer & | faer e &1 aweA

weed ST (FerRer &fiR ©e) arfafas, 1991
ST AT § & U v STHT HRA Tl
AfRTAT B IRTIIALT B D BT TiaRet
3R ge a1 U R[N & dede H gode HRi A
e Yal B B Ieed | uIRd fhar el
WIfEs® ST WhiH & e dufed i fay
T A TG IR B AHTs AR AT & forv f
AT dTet 3fard & faaiyor & garerne Udh
faery e § Rg=1r eruferd g1 ISR At b
(& T= guR iR e anrd smar (i)
fafm, 1993 & SIER fadi 30 S @I
AT 9 & oIy v 3R g ot 8ik s«
TG B Jor-97 faRy Y & &g & g
¥ TR e ST SR UG A 96
N, 1987 B aRT 40(1) B AT R
I GRS BT JTufard 2|

TETAR, T 3MATH § (1 TR I 3R
fr1 omra s ffd) fafm, 1993 &
yTaeTHl & AR ARy [y &1 @ iR g
oI 3R A (AR fomar ae 98 39 faxi
faarvll & orfdy & wu # o ¢l favy g &
I & orefie enfirar 21 fav i @& fafr=
TN b JouA H qEdg (a1 T B
gtl:ﬂﬁwm

Sret oft emavad gan fise a¥ & Sriwel @
e Y B b W Jold g b oy
UG (T T T
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40. (%) T&i 30 S, 2010 HT TATA TH B 7T AhS TaTE fFerawor

(@RS TU)

() AT BRIGAT H Abs JdTe A AR B @l & AR aat a4 280.24
fofaRaa & forg wwmeE -

R B forg g 136.00
g FR D foTg UTaem 0.07
IR ) & forg wraem 5.79
IR aREuirEl R geuss 2.20
el R eusr SR wNgT & 0.31
wferferdl @& eeiaRel W BT 7.51
SHRIRAT 3R IURN & YT TR Bl 1.92
3T R STATA BT a1 36(1) (viidh) & 1l gad ol & fog wraems 22.00
R gR¥uREl @ e ) T (0.01)
e faftar dfder o) srider (2.20)
31q T I forg U TraeTe (0.97)
TTAET 3R MBS 2 (6.76)
a9 & faot ) o™ (31.88)
R B DI WG AR [T W) a4 (9.11)
e @ 9wt w amw (1.84)
amare o swufar @ sfdadt w i (0.05)
Friefter goit aRacs & gd Jater o 403.22
BRI Yol & ol qHrTSTH

di & T ST H (3fg) /A (300.95)
o 3R IRM # (gfg)/mH (2,974.77)
3= aREURET # (3fg) /@ 128.68
aTe], <t H (3fg)/HH (70.90)
a1 fby TG B B A yETeH dridan 3§ ad das (2,814.72)
geruy : 31q1 fhaT AT 3 R (60.37)
YR 71 & 4 JaTa dRGAM § Faa dws gare () (2,875.09)
(@) rwERY #et & gd A sRiwe | Abs yarE

R gRefufrat #§ (3fE)/aH (0.84)
e % (3fg) /o (302.15)
e | ey 31.87
RGAA B DI WIS AR b W A 9.11
a9 &t faot w® o 1.84
JmarT fa<y dufry @t sfaadt uR e 0.05
ARV 7S & qd Fae sriwam A giom Faa Jws (260.12)
SIS : Taumdt B sfFad @t QA & mfww 0.00
YR 7&1 & q1¢ e sRieam @ ghm Faa Aas (@) (260.12)
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g gold-YF Pl AN & SRREIRGT 4T -
d& @t dont quia: wRea Red 9% gt sifdew @
41.2 uR¥UfT TomET SR K0T AH=S0

& [ vy [ae For v SifF @1 gerr 4 Fiaeraar - I (fUedrn ay - gw)

7. fefRa gReafa avffevor Sforg & srefiT faaer Tadiy @1 wIfdr $iiv Fiaeraar - (TS BuY)
T 30.06.2010 30.06.2009
A BRSS! A BIGEGGI
e 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hfarg 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
EiSl 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
EIE] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
¥ qY¥ & GNT BT TY 19T BT -
CaERN)
e 30.06.2010 30.06.2009
- Ad TRATRTIT 0.00 0.00
- 3R R SMAFRH, 1961 BT &1RT 36(1) (vii B) B T gaad Ful 22.00 18.10
- e 0.31 6.77
- 3T R 136.00 114.50
- RIEINISIR T 0.00 0.15
- JMRIATT B (Fraar) 5.79 0.03

7[99 vTHv  ge-gg : §9 & ad gy & A (e a¥-3) 89 & HRY ad iy 3§ $Is ge-dg 7o o
g gl A @t glaeraar siv ol GRTIRRI @l FIGeadr & & § FO IGHINIT -

AR BT [ & el | e 0.17
gl 3R fed=ri # gfg/ (@) 4769.59
SRR gfg/ (@) 2127.63
IURI H glg/ (H) (4443.48)
T EEEE ¥ giva Faw Jwe () 2453.91
A5 3 A% GATHA A Faw gheg (F+@+T) (681.30)
9 B YRH ¥ AP 3R IHS FAq 689.58
T & d § IFS AR IHS T 8.28
40 (@) Vs IR AFHS TAG DB I
(xS ¥Y)
[CEL| Jd & NN | ¥ & 3| H
ESRGISCANIN 0.00 0.00
AR Red §& & o 9w 0.09 0.20
dopl & uTd AW - =T Wi 16.49 8.08
=g Bs H e 673.00 0.00
AHT AR ks T9THA 689.58 8.28
411 WA R 9% & Renfeel 3 SR siiaiad Thed
411 O
faa=o 30.06.2010 30.06.2009

. () goit s fam aRkTarer Srqura (HSIRUSI) 19.59% 18.19%

(i) = AIBRTIR 18.34% 16.94%

(iii) Y HTARUSR 1.25% 1.25%
@ IVl gl @ WY H GeErIT SiY gaTa A0 F Pl R0 G (fUwe av ;- g)
T TN I aRGaterr

(TS BuY)

[CEry| 30.06.2010 30.06.2009
(i) o937 A&l W 13,512.63 12,986.95
(i) or=-u= #&I & ST 36.86 86.36
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Gery 30.06.2010 30.06.2009
IR a1 e LI A | G G s gARIGEIGL
- I TS Udhol YRGB 67.05% 7.82% 66.19% 7.90%
- I T9T IURBAT A 85.68% 10.00% 77.35% 9.23%
- 10 |aY TS Yobel SR 452.35% 52.78% 431.90% 51.56%
- 10 999 §S IURSDAT 998 $ 234.60% 27.38% 202.10% 24.13%

$ 0. 3. §F H Had IR SRS T8 o

5. el Y GRHYRI BT FIG¥Iaar @ WU 4 Ui Waw g SHIElId &7 Bl FU GGHIIT - AT Tel
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41.3 &< :

T Sy UREURRT 3R Sudrett 1 uRudaar e
3. facelt gar uRufrl SfiR <gamsil o1 aRudear ded

(B $uv)
12 1A FH | TGN A 3 AE| SUAARE | 7994 A=
3l Y | 3 99 9% 5 99 a6 7 a9 96 e
Juan uRxiuferi 10,139.25 7,488.63 3,069.96 1,033.22 313.77 | 22,044.83
T 3R W 8,039.19 7,488.62 3,039.96 1,018.22 250.67 | 19,836.66
STHRIRIT 1,350.02 - - - - 1,350.02
IREE 750.04 0.01 30.00 15.00 63.10 858.15
et a1 o<t 22.35 49.34 56.28 64.22 234.70 426.89
s 10,161.60 7,537.97 3,126.24 1,097.44 548.47 | 22,471.72
JAT SR 8,199.94 4,294.66 665.87 3,932.91 1,690.48 | 18,783.86
[ECKI CICURIY 23.28 50.72 56.88 63.89 206.15 400.92
s 8,223.22 | 4,345.38 722.75 3,996.80 1,896.63 |19,184.78
41.4 vETEA YROMH :
o 2009-10 2008-09
T 3fad sriehe et & uferadr & w9 § <t /g 7.27% 8.25%
3 3fd drEhe [t &) ufdeaar & wu § =i omy 0.17% 0.21%
U 3iAd FwriEfte et @t uferaar & wu H yared oy 2.14% 1.80%
T 3iraa uReuRET wR STy 1.35% 1.20%
o U HHARl fadt o (RIS JUT H) 3.15 2.62
41.5 WELHE H AdAT (U2-99)
I IR-Fwreert aReufmEl (o aReufen) @ fog graa
(@3S IY)
faamor 2009-10 2008-09
faxir 99 & oR9 # ey 10.00 10.00
Siie  a¥ @& QR AT TR yraem 0.00 0.00
e S Wae™ Pl e Wi STel, argt 0.00 0.00
Y B A W ghrey 10.00 10.00
1. e & e & forg wraem (®¥rs BUY)
faaxor 2009-10 2008-09
faxir 99 & URY # Ry 7.12 0.53
Sie i) 99 & GRM fHAr T graes 0.00 6.59
i) 99 ge-ag ¥ fafEem, oMR @8 & a¥ & SR URfad oran 0.00 0.00
HEN i) 9¥ & IRM deC W STl 0.00 0.00
i) a1 To-9g IR oy #§ SO, 3R IS Bl 6.59 0.00
farir a9 &t T w gfoe 0.53 7.12

A
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41.6 YIS oA
(@RS BUY)
ICEry| 2009-10 2008-09
() o1 URAURTIT DI el A Ngll Ngll
(@) afegy/dfey aReuRm N I
41.7 IS0 HUH/GTSA Bu B S T3 fawia okt
(@RS TU)
Eerul 2009-10 2008-09
(P) o B = 0 0
(@) TEA/3TRAT B 99 ¢ o BT Pl oI (TG bTThv) 0.00 0.00
(M) P g 0.00 0.00
(8) o9 & dg H g AR qod qd aul § SRR 0.00 0.00
(3) Fae @ Jea R ot av/ai 0.00 0.00
41.8 dRIGT R BRR 3R AT X WY : (@3S TUN)
o 2009-10 2008-09
() WY BN DI ATGATD Tl Ay 900 1100
(@) W9 B 7P iR o - T GT qP W ERINRAIINED
a & ) a s &) wg
(M) BT, ST BRT SR Hfeuel dHRR & ST S7uAT 48.34 78.16
TR QR1 - H fAwel R&d ©, P ATATHRO
(9) WY & TR ST gRI ruferd Hurfeds 3 3.
(3) WU A IO T IRIH BT ADGUT 48.34 78.16
@) P WY @@ B SR A 39.34 67.16
419 @& R Fgaw (Rafea) @ g (Mo av-3m)
4110 TR-EREW o1 gfofet J e
&. [y 7y a9 & wag 4 frfaear St
(@RS V)
o @t fdn
e fortaaat ¥ @ AemH | soft & Hw' fRuiRa afafer
fopan arett wfofoai | wfoyfort
e
(1) 2 (3 (4) (5) (6) (7)
1 WHR &3 & YDA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2 [ERIREGEDIN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 & 45.00 45.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 [ESIRERL] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 BRI U /YT SUhA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 3= 0.15 0.15 0.00 0.00 0.15
7 HRBN & g TR JTaem 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
IS 45.15 45.15 0.00 0.00 0.15
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fore o (BRrs Buv)
=1 #t i
B EEIEIEC e T A oTaatl -|  STEEs
T Triaeat LR * "W o ot | A Trentfea feTfer
TR TR el | ATt Wi | S
(1) 2 (3) ) (5) (6) (7)
1 WHR & & IUDHH 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2 i e 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 EED 45.00 45.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 ESIRERE] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 HeIS BT/ IuHH 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 3 673.32 0.32 0.00 0.00 0.32
7 qIB & o erka wraers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
LS 718.32 45.32 0.00 0.00 0.32
@ IefgTEN [aer (@ JuY)
e 2009-10 2008-09
JTTRY 0.53 0.53
Y @ SR gigai 0.00 0.00
99 & IRE Bt 0.00 0.00
iRy 0.53 0.53
gTRT el JTaeT 0.53 0.53

41.1

Wfpd iy R - g dwme & 318 "ee sut T8 &

4112 Fga=i (SRafea) # Sifew Igwee W dave -

(®) JUIHD FbcT -

* & & U e Hed R SRR = DI AN 8, Sl §b & GRS dedl & T e~ IU@l b JANT B A
i 21T T 9gd AR WR W B W9 # yaw & forg wifdat g @t g

o Tfimer Igwr AT T ufue @ forg Meiia w#y el & v 81 WY & X0 Wged I VA AR Rod §6 R
TenfeiRa are] Sewr fafyr & SR @t ol B

o WY P RIRT &1 FRAR w9 A Srgdieror fham S 21 Tuardisl |Arariad SR W R B Filen )4 ©; grn (R & Jeaiwi ai

AR TR TR FHIE B! ST 21 390 AfIRaw, e ded B WU & Jeuich dfed foHTe! 3R W R F 3favrd SR o1l &

o I ot gR™UTRT /Sl @ TRIReT q21 ANTd BH B @ olg TH@ w9 A R =T o F-aA1 &1 T4 &R 2| P 59 qHI T
R SIREAT & TaeF & fY dael @i e Siav-fa HSeR (ATSRN) TS &R 31k g Fa=i1 § DAl DA 2| §b UH e 1D BT TaT

BT, STET e ERoT URER & SR S ATy Rod deb g1 a/gae 2
o YR AT & AT BT AT HIgHa e IR T o1 2
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(@) TS qhed (s TY)
#q | feaem a1 e S 3 e
Le| 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09
1 T (A Ja A120)
(@) wfeeror & forg 0.00 0.00 900.00 1,100.00
(@) @R & forg 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2 | AR & I # SR
(@) aREURI (+) 0.00 0.00 39.34 67.16
(@) gy (-) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 o U1 IgHEA 0.00 0.00 48.34 78.16
4 | AW WH TEH ACAATE IR BT AT THE
(1001 9t 01)
() TR Fea=ii TR 0.00 0.00 12.03 25.00
(@) IR A= W® 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 | 99 % 3R @ T 1001 96t 01 F1 AR S A
() UfReT W
- 3rferemaw 0.00 0.00 16.48 29.78
- RAAH 0.00 0.00 12.03 25.00
(@) &R W®
- fgaH 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
i NSkl 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
41.13 I, Tl fad e a@ @ IR Raewa Squr W @ afts & S i ¢ g (Rean v - 3R)
41.14 @ =0 gteA - g (Uoar 99 - 3)
41.15 STHIATET, ATMI, TqHEAT AR TG H GHa
1. TERIRE FT GH50T (®3= &)
T I TS SHIBAIRN DI Pl STHRIRIIT el
I qIH I SHTBAAT DI SRR BT Hol SRR H fcrerd T
2. ST FT GHEIT (FIS TI0)
I ¥ TS SURSAI BT Pl A 17,183.14
I G TS SURGAISI B IRHAT BT Fof AT H uforera 86.62%
3. 3FH FT THT (32 w90)
I T IS ISURGBAIRN/UTEHT BT Pl SGHTAA 17,214.26
d TIH IS ISURBAIRN/ATED] B IGHTAT BT SURDBAIAT/TTED] IR Pl SGATAT H Hfererd 86.47%
4. TTHT HT FHa0 (F= &9T)
| o TR T o @1 ot ST 3
41.16  &F-9R TAYY
9 G &= (&‘a’if S a7 A Dol It & gty @t Hl%l%lilill)
1 Py 3R Fag & N
2 AN (& iR g, 7 3iR F9) o
3 Jarg I
4 ERIESCRe ) NS
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41.17 TIIT & TG (CRSIEIY)
T A
f&FITd 01.07.2009 F TNRRAMT Ahar TATE (3reran) gl
af & dRM IfaRed (T Tdi) Nyl
SG-TTS (@) Nl
" - I
(i) S~ _ N
(i) agforal (SHIRA oW & &I T8 IGforai BrSHR) Nl
(iii) €C W ST Nyl
SAREIEN(C) T
f&Tis 30.06.2010 B FATRARY Febel TANY (3fdw) (b-w) T
41.18 FYEURE IR, TIIIT 3R Ao (s )
CER RURl
Pof TAUIY I
Pt XToq Rl
41.19 WRIRT Jor-U3 I 37T Tadd! (e IRy AFGS] & AR qHfdhd fham ST AUferd eidm 8) (s TUY)
TAUEl JSIG BT A
7] | b
AT 1 | XV o & Afi of &
SREET I 9 XV W ugd & oy gwder
%.0H. PR T, 998 AR IR, &. TS
&I Udedh SU-HAEEedH TEYEeH
IR, &Y. g=t
3reel Ud udy e
IECSCH
flaer &, wed | st T e | vamHen T | et d@g
e S | s fem | Ao AR e | St . 9y

TR FARE @t e RUiE & aR
Fd TR TUS HUA
TG AGTHR
TH TofihR0T AT 0011747
(T. @&. T=)
HATNER
a3 feoelt, 23 RawR, 2010 ST HE=AT 80169
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LT G o6 & T fa R ga-T=
foreen ad LDy o ad
e T T TIT

61.82 1. | fagro fMfer :
(TiET T faeRr @R o e errare i) 61.82
2. | uwfera M
31.03 (i) o BT T A oarT 36(1) (viil) & TR 9T URRer [ 33.43
3.00 (i) e Te-ag aRfera e 3.00
3. | @r9 ST &l o
180.15 e Ja9s @& 3TgaR 99 194.90
14.75 ST HoA @Y ST Bl o A e%aidied dr 9.73 204.63
4. | I A R A
50.26 (i) T FT & O e 56.06
1.30 (i) A aREaiEt & foo orae 1.30
6.81 (iii) T HT ATAFEA, 1961 & €T 36(1) (vii &) () 7.61 64.97
& ST gad RO & [T e
9.82 5. | SR &Y AT 11.02
358.94 e 378.87

A ST &

foeen ad EOLIY o a

F4g &Y QAR

@ .| o= &g @
1.30 2. | oI &Y AT, 1961 &0 917 36(1) (vii &) 0.80
() & ST A S T FON & [T qraee
0.00 3. oI &Y 1.20
8.85 4. AT X & [T e 5.80
15.65 5 ST @Y &1 99 12.13
25.80 1ES 19.93
0.90 6. | O &Y ATATH, 1961 &1 41T 36(1) (viil) & STIAR [T URfed [Mfer 7 e&aidor| 2.40
14.75 7. | QAU & SEAEG 9T 9.73
15.65 I 12.13
@ 0.50 @TF 9T T & ATIT
.0, IR TH. I8 FAR IR. B. TS
AT TEU® SU-AEEEdH TEYdad
IR, . gut
Jreer Ud uey feered
g
R & wcd | swftvam | vamer e | slelt =i
fpea Shwr | e A | AT AR ADHA | S, T, |

7 feeett, 23 fRrawm, 2010
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A

= ara smarw At
f&sTieh 30 [, 2010 B FATRART
oot oo g EIGEL]
S & HE FY
1. | Ads IR & A
@ (i) =me] @ren @
90.00 (ii) d% & ur ATafy S 100.00 100.00
2. | 3w (@TTa 3feraT IR ed, S W B B, W)
99.23 (i) rorprdr gt 136.40
23.30 (i) =[gerel ®e Bl I 0.00 136.40
3. | o 3R i
118.25 TIE U 102.88
4. | =1 Rl
7.19 () d& SHRIRRT Wyt @ 4.01
0.52 (i) 99 W ur™ e 0.69
20.21 (iii) 1™ HR, E<Sgw SR faarfed &= AT &1 A snfe 20.78
0.24 (iv) = S 7 agelt A 14.11 39.59
358.94 SIS 378.87
T&i® 30 S, 2010 H FAMT a9 % [T
T ad 10| o o
FUT FIC FE Y
1. | %07 3R 33 T §6 SRR W ars
7.76 (i) o1 3R IR 7.58
9.61 (i) §& SR 7.88 15.46
6.11 | 2. | faw & sma - 3.48
2.32 | 3. | R B Bl we R fp W v 0.99
0.00 | 4. |37 3Ma @
25.80 SIS 19.93
15.65 | 5. | ¥ fHU Y A9 HT1 AY 12.13
15.65 S 12.13
@ 0.50 g TIY F & N
A BT W B arent fewfor ¢

1. Ry (i &1 JorTu= qen oW gd 1 o IS AT § (3 awdt fasr siiR e ama smar (i) fafem, 1993

& U} & SR TIR o T B

2. IS AN 4% (T a1 A6 iR e o A [fY) IS srary o WiEed S Whi (GSI0E) & AR

Wi W I fordt afa gRr ST &) 78 31 &1 40 vfqwrd yef¥a oxar 21
3. S HHARY Y IMAAT = TATerd A Bl fa9y [ oy § yvilRa w78l =l

7
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The Secretary,

Government of India

Ministry of Finance,

Department of Economic Affairs,
North Block,

New Delhi - 110 001

Dear Sir,

In accordance with the provision of sub-section (5) of Section 40 of the National Housing
Bank (Amendment) Act 2000, I forward herewith a copy of the Annual Accounts of the
National Housing Bank for the year 2009-10.

Yours faithfully,

e

(R. V. Verma)

Encls: Annual Accounts in bilingual format.
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Accounts of the National Housing Bank for the year 2009-10.

Yours faithfully,

Sl

(R. V. Verma)

Encls: Annual Accounts in bilingual format.
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Section 6(1) (f)
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During the year 2009-10, the Bank renewed
its thrust on affordable housing with
average loan size below X 4.5 lakh. The Bank
disbursed an aggregate amount of
% 8,159.29 crore during the year, of which
¥ 8,107.76 crore was disbursed under
Refinance Schemes of NHB. An amount of
% 51.53 crore was extended through Project
Finance operations of the Bank.

As further thrust on Rural Housing, out of
the total refinance disbursements of
% 8,107.76 crore, an amount of ¥ 3,695.82
crore was disbursed towards rural housing
schemes of NHB viz. Golden Jubilee Rural
Housing Refinance Scheme (GJRHRS) and
Rural Housing Fund. The share of rural
housing in total refinance disbursements of
the Bank has increased over the year from
around 23 per cent in 2008-09 to 46 per cent
in 2009-10.

As an initiative to further enhance the
measure for tracking residential prices,
NHB RESIDEX was constructed and
announced by the Bank in respect of the
properties in different parts of the country.
The Index was updated on half yearly basis
during the year with its base year 2007.
Presently, the Index has been expanded to
cover 15 cities of the country, increased
from earlier 5 cities.

Asameasure to address the informal housing
sector, the Bank continued to engage with the
Micro Finance Institutions in respect of their
members” housing needs. During the year, a
total of ¥ 2.25 crore was sanctioned for the
Housing Micro-Finance (HMF) lending. Till
June 30, 2010, the Bank’s HMF programme
covered 16,207 housing units located in
both urban and rural areas of the country.
Cumulatively, till end of June 2010, the
Bank has sanctioned HMF assistance to 23
agencies amounting to 3 83.92 crore.
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During the year, Certificate of Registration
(CoR) was granted to 10 new Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs) and cancelled
in respect of one HFC. One HFC has
surrendered the CoR on account of non-
fulfilment of the parameters to operate as a
Housing Finance Company. As on June 30,
2010, the total number of HFCs registered
with NHB stood at 52 of which 32
companies have been granted CoR without
permission to accept public deposits.

The total borrowing outstanding of the
Bank as on 30th June, 2010 was T 19,186
crore. The main avenues of sources of
borrowings were Rural Housing Fund,
Debenture/Bonds, “SUNIDHI” &
“SUVRIDDHI” term deposit schemes and
the Special Refinance Facility from the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

Under the Rural Housing Fund, a total
amount of ¥ 3,760.33 crore was received by
the Bank which was entirely disbursed
towards refinance for rural housing for the
target groups. Most of the lending under the
Rural Housing Fund has been to the women
folk for housing which also resulted in
women empowerment and social
upliftment.

Under Golden Jubilee Rural Housing
Finance Scheme (GJRHFS), a total of 3,87,792
units were financed by HFCs and Banks as
against a target of 3,50,000 units during the
year thus accounting for more than 100 per
cent achievement (approximately 111 per
cent). Till March 2010, a total of 28,59,246
dwelling units had been financed by the
HFCs, Banks and Co-operative sector
institutions as against a target of 29,80,000
dwelling units (approximately 96 per cent of
the target) during the thirteen year period
from 1997 to 2010.

A Scheme of 1% Interest Subvention on
Housing Loans up to% 10lakh with the cost
of the house not exceeding ¥ 20 lakh was




1.10

1.11

arffe Rare 2009-10  ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

announced in the Union Budget of 2009-10.
This Scheme has been extended upto 31st
March, 2011 and a sum of ¥ 700 crore is
provided for this Scheme for the year
2010-11.

NHB launched a Reverse Mortgage Loan
Counselling Programme for Senior
Citizens, adopting a “partnership approach’
with reputed NGOs engaged in serving the
cause of the senior citizens community.
Seven Counselling Centres have since been
established at New Delhi (2), Chandigarh,
Hyderabad, Chennai, Kolkata and
Bengaluru.

With a view to overcome the limitations
of the Reverse Mortgage Loan, NHB
conceptualized an extended RML scheme
with title 'RMLeA’” during the year,
adding the annuity feature to the RML
product, which ensures assured life-time
annuity payments to the senior citizens.
The new scheme is an extension and an

Launch of Reverse Mortgage Loan enabled Annuity
by Shri Namo Narain Meena, Hon’ble Minister of State for Finance,
Government of India

1.12

improvement over the initial RML
scheme. The new scheme was launched
by NHB in association with Star Union
Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company Ltd.,
(SUD Life) and Central Bank of India
(CBI) in December 2009.

NHB played a key role, in association with
other institutions/countries in the South
Asia region, in developing the South Asia

A
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Housing Finance Forum to promote
coalition and coordination among the South
Asia and Asia Pacific countries in exploring
housing and housing finance solutions
through active exchange of information and
experiences. The portal was launched by the
Governor of Central Bank of Afghanistan
Mr. Abdul Qadeer Fitrat in an International
Conference on Affordable Housing and
Housing Finance during January 27-28,
2010 at New Delhi, organized by the
National Housing Bank.

The Housing Information Portal (HIP) was
launched in the year 2008-09 to serve as a
reliable, single point source with updated
and complete information on housing and
housing finance. During the year, the
development of Phase-1 (for Buyers &
Sellers) and Phase-II (for Investors &
Business partners) of the Portal has been
completed and development of Module-III
(for Researchers/Professionals) was
initiated during the year.

The Interest Subsidy Scheme for Housing
the Urban Poor (ISHUP) was launched by
the Ministry of Housing and Urban Poverty
Alleviation, Government of India for
addressing the housing needs of EWS and
LIG segments of urban areas. During the
year, NHB as a Central Nodal Agency
under the Scheme signed Memorandum of
Agreement (MoA) with 23 Primary Lending
Institutions (PLIs) comprising seventeen
(17) Public Sector Banks and six (6) Housing
Finance Companies and received 50 interest
subsidy claims from various PLIs for
claiming the interest subsidy amounting to
32,30,42,948 for 2840 beneficiaries.

Global Economy: 2009-10 I
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The Global Economic Outlook

It is generally believed that the world
economy is on the mend. After a sharp, broad
and synchronized global downturn in late
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2008 and early 2009, an increasing number of
countries have registered positive quarterly
growth of Gross Domestic Product (GDP),
along with anotable recovery in international
trade and global industrial production.
However, the recovery is uneven and
conditions for sustained growth remain
fragile. Credit conditions are still tight in
major developed economies, where many
major financial institutions need to continue
the process of deleveraging and cleansing
their balance-sheets. The rebound in
domestic demand remains tentative at best in
many economies and is far from self-
sustaining. Consumption and investment
demand remain weak; however, as
unemployment and underemployment rates
continue to rise, output gaps remain wide in
most countries. Global economic recovery is
expected to remain sluggish with
employment prospects remaining bleak and
inflation likely to stay low.

The recovery is uneven among developing
countries and the economies in transition

Growth in most developing countries and
economies in transition remains highly
dependent upon movements in international
trade, commodity prices and capital flows.
These conditions have improved as part of
the global recovery, but a further rebound
will be strongly contingent upon the strength
of the recovery in the developed countries. In
the outlook, conditions for international
trade and finance will remain challenging.
This will affect the low-income countries in
particular.

Trade and financing conditions of
developing countries

The financial crisis caused a free fall in world
trade volumes from the end of 2008 up to the
second quarter of 2009, triggered especially
by collapsing import demand in developed
countries. Trade flows fell at annualized rates
of between 30 and 50 per cent during that
period, with Asian exporters being hit

A
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hardest. World trade rebounded somewhat
thereafter, but for the year 2009 volumes fell
by almost 13 per cent. The severe decline in
global aggregate demand was compounded
by a considerable strain in global financial
markets, resulting primarily in increased
borrowing costs and a shortage of trade
credits. Trade in services exhibited the same
pattern as merchandise trade. A mild growth
of 5 per cent in world trade volume is forecast
for 2010 given the moderate recovery of
global output.

Rebalancing Global Demand is Key to
Buoy and Sustain Growth

For the world economy to sustain a high-
growth trajectory, the economies that had
excessive external deficits before the crisis
need to consolidate their public finances in
ways that limit damage to potential growth
and demand. Concurrently, economies that
ran excessive current account surpluses will
need to further increase domestic demand
to sustain growth, as excessive-deficit
economies scale back their demand (and
imports) in response to lower expectations
about future income. As the currencies of
economies with excessive deficits
depreciate, then logically those of surplus
economies must appreciate. Rebalancing
needs to be supported with financial sector
reform and structural policies in both
surplus and deficit economies.
Policymakers will need to exploit policy
synergies, especially between fiscal policy
and structural reform.

(Source: World Economic Outlook 2010, World
Economic Situation and Prospects 2010 &
OECD Economic Outlook 2010)

Domestic Economy: 2009-10 I
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Recovery in Growth Rates

The fiscal year 2009-10 began on a difficult
note. There was a significant slowdown in
the growth rate in the second half of 2008-09,
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following the financial crisis that began in
the industrialized nations in 2007 and spread
to the real economy across the world. The
growth rate of the Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) in 2008-09 was 6.7 per cent, with
growth in the last two quarters hovering
around 6 per cent. There was apprehension
that this trend would persist for some time, as
the full impact of the economic slowdown in
the developed world spread through the
system. Inevitably, India’s fiscal deficit
increased from the end of 2007-08, reaching
6.8 per cent (budget estimate, BE) of GDP in
2009-10. A delayed and below- normal
monsoon added to the overall uncertainty.
The continued recession in the developed
world, for the better part of 2009-10, meant a
sluggish export recovery and a slowdown in
financial flows into the economy. Yet, during
the year, the economy posted a remarkable
recovery, not only in terms of overall growth
figures but, more importantly, in terms of
certain fundamentals, which justify
optimism for the Indian economy in the
medium tolong term.

The Rise of Inflationary Pressures

A major concern during the year 2009-10,
especially in the second half, was the
emergence of high double-digit food
inflation. On a year-on-year basis,
wholesale price index (WPI) headline
inflation in December 2009 was 7.3 per cent
but for food items (primary and
manufactured) with a combined weight of
25.4 per cent in the WPI basket, it was 19.8
per cent. As of the week ending January 30,
2010 the inflation in primary food articles
stood at 17.9 per cent, and that in fuel,
power, light and lubricants at 10.4 per cent.
A significant part of this inflation can be
explained by supply-side bottlenecks in
some of the essential commodities,
precipitated by the delayed and sub-normal
southwest monsoons. Since December 2009,
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there have been signs of these high food
prices, together with the gradual hardening
of non-administered fuel product prices,
getting transmitted to other non-food items,
thus creating some concerns about higher
than- anticipated generalized inflation over
the next few months.

Service Sector

The service sector which has been India’s
workhorse for well over a decade has
continued to grow rapidly. It comprises the
sub-sectors trade, hotels, transport and
communications, financing, insurance, real
estate and business services and
community, social and personal services. As
against a growth of 9.8 per cent in 2008-09 it
grew at 8.7 per cent in 2009-10. While there
has been a significant dip in the growth of
community, social and personal services in
2009-10, the other sub-sectors have either
retained their growth momentum or
improved uponit.

International Trade

The global economy, led by the Asian
economies especially China and India, has
shown signs of recovery in fiscal 2009-10.
While global trade is gradually picking up,
the other indicators of economic activity
such as capital flows, assets and commodity
prices are more buoyant. As per the latest
data for fiscal 2009-10, exports and imports
showed substantial decline during April-
September of 2009-10 vis-a-vis the
corresponding period in 2008-09. However,
there has been improvement in the balance
of payments (BoP) situation during April-
September of 2009-10 over the same period
of 2008-09, reflected in higher net capital
inflows and lower trade deficit.

Monetary Policy Measures and Credit
Markets

Since the outbreak of the global financial
crisis in September 2008, the RBI has

3.5.2
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followed an accommodative monetary
policy. In the course of 2009-10, this stance
was principally geared towards supporting
early recovery of the growth momentum,
while facilitating the unprecedented
borrowing requirement of the Government
to fund its fiscal deficit. The fact that the
latter was managed well with nearly two-
thirds of the borrowing being completed in
the first half of the fiscal year not only
helped in checking undue pressure on
interest rates, but also created the space for
the revival of private investment demand in
the second half of the year. The transmission
of monetary policy measures continues to
be sluggish and differential in its impact
across various segments of the financial
markets. The downward revisions in policy
rates announced by the RBI post September
2008 got transmitted into the money and
G-Sec markets; however, the transmission
hasbeen slow in the case of credit markets.

Though lending rates of all categories of
banks (public, private and foreign) declined
marginally from March 2009 (with
benchmark prime lending rates [BPLR] of
scheduled commercial banks [SCBs] having
declined by 25 to 100 basis points), the
decline was not sufficient to accelerate the
demand for bank credit. Consequently,
while borrowers have turned to alternate
sources of possibly cheaper finance to meet
their funding needs, banks flush with
liquidity parked their surplus funds under
the reverse repo window. There has been
continuous moderation in the growth in
broad money (M3) from around 21 per cent
at the beginning of the fiscal year to 16.5 per
cent as of mid-January 2010 and it has
remained below the indicated growth
projection for the period. While in the first
half of the year, credit to the Government
remained the key driver of money growth,
since the third quarter of 2009-10, that too
hasmoderated.

A
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Capital Markets

The capital and commodity markets
exhibited buoyancy during 2009 as the
markets recovered and gained strength
against the backdrop of a distinct
improvement in the risk appetite of
investors leading to a sharp rise in
international capital flows to emerging
markets including India. Positive domestic
factors, better performance of corporates
and banks and higher GDP growth during
the second quarter (Q2) of 2009-10 also
supported an uptrend in the Indian capital
market. The Indian equity markets, which
had declined sharply during 2008,
reflecting the volatility in international
financial markets and foreign institutional
investment outflows, began the year 2009
on a silent note. The market remained range
bound during April-March 2009 but
exhibited signs of recovery from April 2009.
With the revival of Foreign Institutional
Investors’ (FIIs) interest in emerging market
economies including India, the equity
markets gained strength during May-July,
2009. There was a fresh spell of bullish
sentiment in September 2009, with the
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) Sensex
recording a high of 17,126.84 during the
month. The Indian equity markets closed
lower at 15,896.28 in end-October 2009,
before showing an improvement during
November-December 2009. The movement
in equity indices in the Indian capital
market was in line with trends in major
international equity markets, a sign of
increasing integration. Against the
backdrop of these trends in Indian equity
markets, the regulatory measures initiated
during the year were clearly in the direction
of introducing greater transparency,
protecting investors’ interests and
improving efficiency in the working of
Indian equity markets, while also ensuring
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the soundness and stability of the Indian
capital market.

(Source: Economic Survey of India 2009-10)

Union Budget I
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During the year 2009-10 (July-June), the
Union Budget was presented two times by
the United Progressive Alliance (UPA)
Government.

Union Budget2009-10

In July 2009, the Union Budget for the year
2009-10 was presented by the newly
constituted UPA Government against the
backdrop of the global financial crunch and
itsimpact on the Indian economy. The major
highlights of the Union Budget 2009-10 are
outlined below:

Urban Infrastructure: Allocation under
Jawaharlal Nehru National Urban Renewal
Mission (J]NNURM) stepped up by 87 per
cent to X 12,887 crore in the budget estimate
of 2009-10 over the budget estimate of 2008-
09. Allocation for housing and provision of
basic amenities to urban poor enhanced to ¥
3,973 crore in budget estimate of 2009-10.
This includes provision for Rajiv Awas
Yojana (RAY), anew scheme announced.

Rajiv Awas Yojana: President of India
announced to both the houses of Parliament
in June, 2009 Government’s proposal to
introduce Rajiv Awas Yojana for the slum
dwellers and the urban poor on the lines of
the Indira Awas Yojana for the rural poor.
The Schemes for affordable housing
through partnership and the Scheme for
interest subsidy for urban housing would be
dovetailed into the Rajiv.  Awas Yojana
which would extend support under
JNNURM to States that are willing to assign
property rights to people living in slum
areas. This Scheme, the parameters of which
are being worked out, is intended to make
the country slum free in the five year period.
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Provision of ¥ 3,973 crore announced for
housing and provision of basic amenities to
urban poor will include provision for this
Scheme also.

Bharat Nirman: Bharat Nirman with its six
schemes is an important initiative for
bridging the gap between the rural and
urban areas and improving the quality of
life of people, particularly the poor, in the
rural areas. Allocation for Bharat Nirman
has been increased by 45 per cent in 2009-10
over budget estimate of 2008-09. Allocations
under Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana
(PMGSY), one of the most successful
programmes under Bharat Nirman, has
been increased by 59 per cent over budget
estimate of 2008-09 to ¥ 12,000 crore in
budget estimate of 2009-10. Under Rajiv
Gandhi Grameen Vidyutikaran Yojana
(RGGVY), allocation has been increased by
27 per cent toX 7,000 crore.

Indira Awas Yojana: It is a popular rural
housing scheme for the weaker sections.
Allocation under Indira Awas Yojana (IAY)
was increased by 63 per cent to X 8,800 crore
inbudget estimate of 2009-10.

Rural Housing Fund: An Allocation of
% 2,000 crore made for Rural Housing Fund
(RHF) in National Housing Bank (NHB) to
boost the resource base of NHB for refinance
operations in rural housing sector.

1% Interest Subvention Scheme: The
Finance Ministry has announced a scheme
of 1% interest Subvention on Housing Loan
up to¥ 10lakh. An allocation of ¥ 1,000 crore
has been announced for this purpose. The
Scheme will be implemented throughout
the country and will be in operation for a
period of 1 year beginning October 1, 2009
and up to September 30, 2010. Interest
subsidy of 1 per cent will be applicable for
tirst 12 months of eligible loans sanctioned
and disbursed during the currency of the
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Scheme viz. October 1, 2009 to September
30, 2010. The objective of the Scheme is to
provide interest subsidy on housing loans
as a measure to improve affordability of
housing to eligible borrowers and generate
additional demand for credit. It will be
implemented through the Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs) registered with
National Housing Bank (NHB) and
Scheduled Commercial Banks (SCBs). The
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and NHB will
be the nodal agencies for the Scheme for
SCBs and HFCs respectively.

Union Budget2010-11

After the presentation of first Union Budget
for the year 2009-10 in July 2009 by the then
newly constituted UPA Government, the
regular Union Budget for the year 2010-11
was presented by the UPA Government in
February, 2010. Further, the major highlights
of the Union Budget 2010-11 are listed as
under:

Rajiv Awas Yojana: The Rajiv Awas Yojana
(RAY), which is directed towards slum
dwellers and urban poor, was announced
last year to extend support to States that are
willing to provide property rights to slum
dwellers. The Government's efforts in the
implementation of RAY would be to
encourage the States to create a slum free
India at the earliest.

Bharat Nirman: Bharat Nirman with its six
schemes is an important initiative for
bridging the gap between the rural and
urban areas and improving the quality of
life of people, particularly the poor, in the
rural areas. An amount of ¥ 48,000 crore has
been allocated for rural infrastructure
programmes under Bharat Nirman for the
year 2010-11.

Indira Awas Yojana (IAY): IAY isa popular
rural housing scheme for weaker sections.
Taking note of the increase in the cost of
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construction, the allocation for unit cost
under the Scheme has been increased to
¥ 45,000 crore for the plain areas and to
% 48,500 crore for hilly/ difficult areas. Also,
the allocation under the Scheme has been
increased to ¥ 10,000 crore for the year
2010-11.

1% Interest Subvention Scheme: In the
Union Budget of 2009-10, a Scheme of 1%
Interest Subvention on Housing loans up to
% 10 lakh, where the cost of the house does
not exceed ¥ 20 lakh, was announced. This
Scheme has been extended upto 31st March,
2011 and a sum of ¥ 700 crore is provided for
this Scheme for the year 2010-11.

Urban Development and Housing:
Allocation for urban development has been
increased by more than 75 per cent from
% 3,060 crore to ¥ 5,400 crore. Allocation for
Housing and Urban Poverty Alleviation has
been raised from X 850 crore to T 1,000 crore
in2010-11.

Tax Proposals: It has been proposed under
the budget that pending projects may be
completed within a period of five years
instead of four years for claiming a
deduction of their profits, as a one time
interim relief to the housing and real estate
sector.

Banking Sector

RBI is considering giving some additional
banking licenses to private sector players.
Non Banking Financial Companies could
also be considered, if they meet the RBI's
eligibility criteria.

Public Sector Bank Capitalisation: During
2008-09, the Government infused ¥ 1900
crore as Tier-I capital in four Public Sector
Banks to maintain a comfortable level of
Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio. An
additional sum of ¥ 1200 crore is being
infused now. A sum of ¥ 16,500 crore is
provided for the year 2010-11 to ensure that
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the Public Sector Banks are able to attain a >
minimum 8 per cent Tier-I capital by March
31,2011.

Recapitalisation of Regional Rural Banks
(RRBs): Government to provide further
capital to strengthen the RRBs so that they
have adequate capital base to support >
increased lending to the rural economy.

1% Interest Subvention Scheme
for Housing Loans upto Rupees
Ten Lakh

5.1

In order to stimulate demand of credit for
housing in the middle & lower income
segment of population in the country, the
Government of India has launched a
Scheme of Interest Subvention of 1% on all
Individual Housing Loans upto ¥ 10 lakh,
with the cost of the unit not exceeding ¥ 20
lakh. The Scheme recognizes that reduction >
in interest rates has an important role to
play in reducing EMIs of borrowers and
creating additional demand for housing.
The salient features of the Scheme have
been discussed in the box below.

Box 5.1

Salient Features of the 1% Interest
Subvention Scheme for Housing Loans
upto Rupees Ten Lakh

Objective: The objective of the Scheme is to
provide interest subsidy on housing loan as
a measure to generate additional demand
for credit and to improve affordability of
housing to eligible borrowers in the middle
& lower income groups. The Scheme is >
expected to provide relief to prospective
home owners and improve home
ownership in the specified target segment.

Allocated Funds: An allocation for a sum of
¥ 1000 crore was announced in Union >
Budget of 2009-10. In the Union Budget
2010-11, a sum of ¥ 700 crore has been
provided for the Scheme.

Duration of the Scheme: Initially,
duration of the Scheme was for 1 year
beginning from 1st October, 2009 till 30th
September, 2010 but the same has been
extended till 31st March, 2011 as
announced in Union Budget 2010-11.

Eligibility: Interest subvention of 1 per cent
will be available on housing loans upto ¥ 10
lakh to individuals for construction/
purchase of a new house or extension of an
existing house, provided the cost of
construction/ price of the new house/
extension does not exceed ¥ 20 lakh. All
such loans sanctioned and disbursed,
during the period of its operation i.e from
the date of launch of the Scheme i.e. 1st
October, 2009 till March 31, 2011 shall be
eligible for the said interest subsidy.

Interest Subsidy: Subsidy of 1 per cent will
be defined as reduction in interest rate by
100 basis points per annum from the
existing rate of interest for a given loan
amount & tenor. It will be applicable to the
first twelve instalments of all such loans
sanctioned and disbursed under the
Scheme and will be computed for 12 months
on the disbursed amount. The subsidy can
be claimed on each disbursal of loan at Pre
EMI/EMI stage to extend the benefit to
ultimate borrowers. The subsidy amount
will be adjusted upfront in the principal
outstanding, irrespective of whether the
loanis on fixed or floating rate basis.

Implementing Agencies: The Scheme is
being implemented through Scheduled
Commercial Banks (SCBs) and Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs) registered with
the National Housing Bank.

Nodal Agencies: RBI and NHB are the
Nodal Agencies for SCBs and HEFCs,
respectively.
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Financial Performance of the Bank
during 2009-10

Resource Mobilization
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An Overview of the Market

During the first quarter of the year, Union
Budget for 2009-10 was presented by the
newly constituted UPA Government,
against the backdrop of persistent global
economic slowdown and the associated
dampened domestic demand. The budget
placed fiscal deficit at 6.8 per cent of GDP
in 2009-10 with a view to provide the
necessary stimulus to boost demand for
faster recovery of the economy.

During the second quarter, RBI shifted its
monetary policy stance from managing a
crisis to managing a recovery. Inflation
has emerged as a major concern for the
Indian economy for the coming months.
The deficient rainfall and drought
conditions in several parts of the country
have accentuated the pressure on food
prices, pushing up the overall inflation
rate - both on Wholesale Price Index
(WPI) & Consumer Price Index (CPI).

During the third quarter of 2009-10, the
recovery in the global economy picked up
momentum. The Indian economy showed
clear momentum in recovery and the
GDP growth for 2009-10 has been revised
upward at 7.2 per cent up from 6.7 per
cent recorded in 2008-09. The inflationary
condition, coupled with the stronger
momentum seen in the pace of economic
recovery, has created compelling ground
for RBI to tighten the monetary policy.

During the fourth quarter of the year,
inflation continued as a major concern for
the Indian economy. The rising inflation
imposes a problem to fiscal burden &
dampens rural consumer & investment
demand. During the period, Reserve
Bank of India continued with the policy of
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liquidity tightening in the economy by
raising the key policy rates like CRR,
Repo Rate & Reverse Repo Rate. In the
Annual Policy Statement for 2010-11
released on April 20, 2010, all the key
rates like CRR, Repo Rate & Reverse Repo
Rate were raised by 25 basis points.
Earlier in January 2010, the RBI raised the
CRR by 75 basis points & in March 2010, it
again increased Repo & Reverse Repo
Rate by 25 basis points each.

Against this background, National
Housing Bank managed its resource
mobilization during the year 2009-10.

Resources mobilised during the year

NHB raised both short term and long
term resources. Short term resources
included issuance of Commercial Papers
(CPs), Short Term Loans from Banks and
Special Refinance window of RBI under
LAF. Long Term Borrowings included
issuance of Zero-coupon Bonds (ZCB),
Coupon Bonds, Certificate of Deposit
(CD), Term Loans from Banks, Deposits
from Banks under Rural Housing Fund
(RHF), Deposits from Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs) and Deposits from
public under its term deposit schemes
viz. “Sunidhi” and “Suvriddhi”. The
gross borrowing during the year was
334,295 crore.

Bonds issued by NHB are rated “AAA”
by at least two of the rating agencies
approved by Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) viz. CARE ratings,
CRISIL, Fitch ratings and Brickwork
ratings and are listed on Bombay Stock
Exchange/National Stock Exchange.
Commercial Papers issued by NHB
during the year were rated “Al+” by
ICRA. These ratings indicate highest
degree of certainty regarding timely
payment of financial obligation on the
instruments.
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623  The total borrowing outstanding as on term deposit schemes viz. “SUNIDHI” &
30th June 2010is¥ 19,186 crore. “SUVRIDDHI” during the year 2008-09.
6.3 Main avenues of resources The “SUNIDHI” term deposit is open for
Ex’tema_l Borrowing outstanding as on 30.06.2010 individuals/HUFs/ Partnershjps/
Loan  200% —° e Societies & Trusts/ Association of Persons.
ZD%?;:H\\ The minimum tenor is one year and
Term Loans Pt the maximum is five years. The
CBLO | B 5% “SUVRIDDHI” is a term deposit scheme
Debentures open only for individuals and HUFs and
Copmeniel e the tenor is five years. “SUVRIDDHI” is
0% NG Bonds notified under section 80C of Income Tax
Borm:r{:i from os1% Act, 1961. The total amount outstanding as
631 Rural Housing Fund (RHF): The Hon’ble 2255'06'20;0 ‘?nde}rl both the Schemes was
Finance Minister while presenting the crore during the year.
Union Budget for the year 2008-09, 634  Special Refinance Facility from RBI: RBI
announced creation of a fund to enhance had extended a Special Refinance Facility
NHB’s refinance operations in the rural of ¥ 4000 crore to NHB, under the
housing sector by tapping the resources of provisions of Section 17(4DD) of the
Scheduled Commercial Banks to the extent Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to meet
of shortfall in their priority sector lending. the short term l_iquidity requirerpents of
The allocation for the year 2008-09 was the Housing Finance Companies. The
Z 2000 crore. The entire amount received facility was available till 31st March, 2010.
from the Banks has been disbursed for The facility was fu‘lly utilized by NHB E}nd
Rural Housing. The Hon’ble Finance amount was d1§bursed to Housing
Minister further allocated ¥ 2000 crore F'mance Compames. The amount has
while presenting the Union Budget for the since beenrepaid to RBI.
year 2009-10 which was also fully |7 Deployment of Funds
ﬁ;sf;;i:gcﬁ::;gfg the year under the rural (7.1 Refinance Performance I
632  Bonds: One of the main components of 711 ]I;erf(.)rmaf[l}cle durmgzot(l)lge_l}(f)ear ?.009-10:
resource raised during the year was uring the yeat , Ternance
through issuance of Bonds. Bonds for a aggregating X 8107.76 crore was d1§bursed,
face value of ¥ 5,550 crore were issued out of which ? 5695.82 crore was dlsbur§ed
} ’ . for rural housing under the Golden Jubilee
during the year for tenors ranging from 13 Rural Housine Refi Sch d th
g Refinance Scheme and the
months to 31 months. Rural Housing Fund.
6.3.3 ”SUN_IDHI” & “SUVRIDDHI" term The break-up of the releases made during
deposit schemes: NHB launched two new the year 2009-10s as under: .
(% in Crore)
Institution REGULAR RHF GJRHRS SRF Total
Category Scheme
I II 111 1Y Vv VI
HFCs 1409.94 1794.86 239.00 100.00 3543.80
Banks (SBs) 2709.00 184.96 1441.00 0.00 4519.96
Cooperatives 193.00 36.00 0.00 0.00 44.00
Total 4311.94 2015.82 1680.00 100.00 8107.76
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The graphical representation of the releases
during 2009-10 is as under:

10000.00 - Year Disbursement
8000.00 1 = HFCs 1999-00 842
6000.00 T m Banks (SBs)
Co-ops 2000-01 1008
4000.00 m Total
200000 - 2001-02 1025
0.00 2002-03 2710
" Regular RHF GJRHRS SRF Total
2003-04 3253
Disbursements 2004-05 8062
o PN 2005-06 5632
000 T 2006-07 5500
6000
/
;ggg / Disbursement 2007-08 8587
——
0 Q T T T T T (O T T (\ T T T 1 2008_09 10854
INSIRNSRNGINIIRN RN NI
RSP S O I 2009-10 8108

71.2  Performance under Rural Housing

Out of the total refinance release of
% 8,107.76 crore made during the year, 45.58
per cent aggregating I 3,695.82 crore have
been made under the Rural Housing Fund
(RHF) and the Golden Jubilee Rural

Trend of refinance released during last few
years is as under:

(% in Crore)

Housing Refinance Scheme (GJRHRS) in
respect of loans given by Primary Lending
Institutions (PLIs) inrural areas.

The break-up of the disbursements made for
rural housingis as under:

(% in Crore)
Institution Category Amount
Housing Finance Companies 2033.86
Scheduled Banks 1625.96
Cooperative Sector Institutions 36.00
Total 3695.82

H Housing Finance Companies
B Scheduled Banks

il Cooperative Sector Institutions
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Project Finance Performance

During the year 2009-10, the Bank
sanctioned project finance for 6 projects
amounting to ¥ 312.07 crore and disbursed
an amount of ¥ 51.53 crore. Category wise
break up of sanctionsisas under:

Not for profit Public Welfare| ¥ 59.82 crore

Housing Organization

Micro Finance Institutions 32.25crore

Public Agency %250.00 crore

Total % 312.07 crore

722

723

724

Cumulatively, till end of June 2010, the Bank
has sanctioned 426 projects having project
costof¥5,917.77 crore and loan component
of ¥ 4,449.56 crore. Till date, the Bank has
disbursed ¥ 1,730.88 crore as project
The Bank’s Housing Micro
Finance (HMF) programme covers 16,207
housing units located in both urban and

finance.

rural areas of the country. The beneficiaries
include farmers, housemaids, petty
traders, artisans, dairy workers and other
low income households. More than 90 per
cent of the beneficiaries are women.

Under HMF, the Bank’s focus is to develop
sustainable human habitats which are eco
friendly, cost effective and productive.
Work sheds form an integral part of all
housing projects with necessary water and
sanitation facilities. Incremental housing
(repair/ renovation) assumes much
significance in the context of affordability
and sustainability of the programme. The
Bank has also opened a specialized
window for Water and Sanitation
programmes being taken up by MFIs for
their members of Self Help Groups. These
programmes form an integral part of the
HMEF Programme of the Bank.

UN-HABITAT Water and Sanitation
Programme: NHB has signed an Agreement

96

A

of Cooperation with UN-HABITAT
wherein UN-HABITAT will be providing
NHB with funds initially to the tune of
US$ 3,75,000 which will be kept in and
administered through a Revolving Fund.
The Fund shall be utilized for provision of
water and sanitation facilities in the housing
projects financed by NHB for low income
households either as part of the housing and
habitat project or stand alone projects for the
provision of water and sanitation facilities.

Out of T 1.00 crore sanctioned to Friends of
Women’s World Banking (FWWB), under
Water & Sanitation Programme, an amount
of ¥ 55 lakh has been disbursed. Under this
programme, around 1054 toilets will be
constructed in the States of Maharashtra,
Orissa, Karnataka and Madhya Pradesh.
The programme is being implemented by
FWWB through its various partner
organisations.

Financial Performance: 2009-10

During the year, Profit before Tax was
% 42210 crore as against I 350.10 crore
during the previous year, registering a
growth of 20.50 per cent. The Profit after tax
which stood at ¥ 280.24 crore as against
% 235.62 crore during the previous year,
registered a growth of 18.94 per cent. As a
result of plough back of Profit to Reserves,
the Net Owned Fund of the Bank increased
from % 2,230.49 crore to ¥ 2,485.32 crore
during the year. On an overall basis, the
Bank’s profitability during the year has
improved over the previous year.

General Activities

Policy Review

9.1
911

Rural Housing Fund

The Hon’ble Finance Minister, in his Union
Budget speech for 2008-09, announced the
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setting up of the Rural Housing Fund to
enable Primary Lending Institutions to
access funds for extending housing
finance to targeted groups in rural areas
at competitive rates. The corpus of the
fund for the year 2008-09 was ¥ 2000
crore, and for the year 2009-10, the
corpus is also ¥ 2000 crore. A total
amount of ¥ 3760.33 crore has been
received by the Bank under the Fund,
and the Bank has been able to deploy the
entire amount towards refinance for
rural housing for the target groups.
Most of the lending under the Rural
Housing Fund has been for housing
loans of less than X 5 lakhs, which shows
that the Fund is being utilized for its
intended purposes.

Many of the large HFC’s which were
hitherto only urban centric, have been
persuaded to extend housing loans in
rural areas. This has resulted in not
only a better geographical distribution
of housing finance, but has also
brought about increased penetration of
the rural market and the rural
population. Housing Finance
Companies have, in all, disbursed ¥
1794.86 crore under the Rural Housing
Fund, which has gone towards creation
of dwelling units for women, marginal
farmers, small artisans, members of
scheduled castes and scheduled tribes
and minority communities. The
success of these forays into the rural
market has enthused these companies
to improve their presence in the rural
market segment. Their experience has
also encouraged other HFCs, which
have not yet entered the rural markets
to actively look at the vast potential for
rural housing finance and its future
growth and expansion.
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Further, one of the benefits of the
Rural Housing Fund has been the
availability of funds at competitive
rates of interest for housing which has
encouraged the Regional Rural Banks
(RRBs) to take up housing finance as a
major focus area. The RRBs have an
active presence in the rural areas
throughout the country and are well
acquainted with the contours of the
rural market, thereby placed in a good
position to promote housing finance
in their respective areas of operations.
The Bank has, during the year 2009-
10, added 6 new Regional Rural Banks
as its refinance clients. Through RRBs,
an amount of ¥ 184.96 crore was
disbursed under the Rural Housing
Fund. Efforts are on to encourage
RRBs across the country to take up
rural housing finance as an important
initiative which will go along way in
promoting housing finance in rural
areas throughout the country.

Focus Segments

The disbursement of refinance during
the year 2009-10 focused on low and
moderate income housing. The
refinance disbursements in respect of
housing loans below % 15 lakh
accounted for more than 57 per cent of
the total disbursements and refinance in
respect of housing loans below % 5 lakh
accounted for more than 25 per cent of
the total disbursements.

Equity Participation by NHB

As part of its promotional role, NHB has
equity participation in two Housing
Finance Companies, namely, Cent Bank
Home Finance Limited and Mahindra
Rural Housing Finance Limited, a
company formed for extending housing
finance exclusively in rural and peri-
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urban areas. The realizable value of equity

holding in these two HFCs as on 30-06-2010
stood at¥7.39 crore.

10

Regulation and Supervision I

10.1
10.1.1

10.1.2

Banks and Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs) are the major players in the housing
finance market in India. While Banks are
subject to regulation and supervision by the
Reserve Bank of India, HFCs are regulated
and supervised by the National Housing
Bank since its inception under the
provisions of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987 and the Directions and Guidelines
issued there under from time to time. The
measures of regulation include prudential
norms, transparent and standardized
accounting and disclosure policies, fair
practice code, asset liability management
and other risk management practices etc.
These measures have helped to ensure the
development of the sector on healthy and
sustainable lines.

Registration/Cancellation of HFC's

Companies desirous of commencing the
business of housing finance are required to
obtain a Certificate of Registration (CoR)
from the National Housing Bank. The
Certificate is granted after the Bank is
satisfied that the conditions for grant of
such Certificate to an applicant company
as prescribed under the National Housing
Bank Act, 1987 are complied with. The
continuance of the registration depends on
the continued compliance by the Company
of the conditions subject to which Certificate
is granted and observance by the company
of the provisions of the Act and the
directions/ guidelines issued there under.

During the year, the Certificate of
Registration was granted to 10 new HFCs.
As on June 30, 2010 the total number of
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10.2.3

HEFCs registered with NHB stood at 52 of
which 32 companies have been granted
Certificate of Registration without
permission to accept public deposits.

During the year, Bank has cancelled the CoR
of Lok Seva Housing Finance Ltd. for not
achieving the required NOF of ¥ 2.00 crore
by March 31, 2008. One company, namely,
Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Finance has
surrendered its Certificate of Registration,
as the company has informed that they are
not undertaking housing finance business.

Updated version of Housing Finance
Companies (NHB) Directions, 2001

In exercise of the powers vested under the
National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Bank
issued Directions known as Housing
Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2001.
These Directions cover norms for deposit
acceptance activities of HFCs, prudential
norms with regard to capital adequacy,
asset classification, concentration of credit,
income recognition, provisioning for bad
and doubtful debts etc. These directions are
amended from time to time.

The Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions were first issued in the year 1989.
Till May 29, 2000, 12 amendments were
carried out in these Directions. The Bank
revised and issued consolidated Directions
known as Housing Finance Companies
(NHB) Directions, 2001 on September 29,
2001. Since then till May 2010, these
Directions have been amended further
30 times.

In view of the fact that 30 amendments
have been made till date in the Housing
Finance Companies (NHB) Directions
2001, the Bank has consolidated all the
amendments and issued the revised
Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions, 2010 and the same is also being
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10.3
10.3.1

10.3.2

10.3.3

10.4
10.4.1

published in the Official Gazette
of India.

Supervision of HFCs

NHB supervises the working of HFCs
through a system of on-site inspections,
market intelligence and off-site
surveillance for which periodic returns
have been prescribed.

During the year, the Bank inspected 50
HFC’s out of which 41 were regulatory
inspections to ensure compliance of the
provisions of the Act and the
Directions/Guidelines there-under,
and 9 were in connection with the grant
of Certificate of Registration to new
companies. Close monitoring of the
submission of quarterly, half-yearly and
annual returns by HFCs were
undertaken.

Videits Circular dated May 01, 2007, the
Bank specified minimum Net Owned
Fund (NOF) of ¥ 2 crore for a Housing
Finance Company which carries on the
business of housing finance by March
31, 2008. As on June 30, 2010, there were
2 companies having NOF less than
I 2crore.

Overseas Borrowings by HFCs

The RBI in the month of November, 2008
had allowed HFCs to borrow from
overseas through External Commercial
Borrowings (ECBs) route to meet their
short term liquidity requirements. The
Policy allowed HFCs to borrow
maximum amount not exceeding 50 per
cent of their NOF or US $ 10 million (or
its equivalent), whichever is higher
subject to fulfilment of conditions as laid
down in the Circular. Limited funds
were mobilised by the HFCs under
the Scheme.
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22320 OSSN =
Interface session organized by NHB between Principal Officers

The RBI, vide its press release dated
February 3, 2010 withdrew the facility
for short term borrowing provided to
Housing Finance Companies.

KYC Guidelines and Anti Money
Laundering Measures

of HFCs and FIU-IND

During the year, NHB continued to
emphasise the obligations of the HFCs
under the Prevention of Money
Laundering Act, 2002 (PMLA)
including reporting of large cash and
suspicious transactions to Financial
Intelligence Unit of India (FIU-IND).
NHB has been constantly coordinating
with the FIU-IND, Government of India
and HFCs in this regard, in order to
ensure compliance of the provisions of
the PMLA. To sensitize the registered
Housing Finance Companies about the
importance and developments in the
area of PMLA, three interface sessions
were organized by NHB in Delhi,
Mumbai and Chennai during the year.

The sessions were addressed by the FIU-
IND who stressed the need for the
HEFCs to have a structured mechanism
in place for monitoring and filtering of
suspicious transactions.
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10.6  Coordination with Other Regulatory available. In order to conduct due diligence of
Authorities Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) and to
10.6.1 NHB continued the process of coordination monitor the affairs of frggdulent HFCs, Bank
with Other Regulatory Authorities through has requested. the Ministry for. access of
State Level Coordination Committee MCA.'Zl. website to NHB. The Ministry has
(SLCC) meetings convened by the Reserve in-principle agreed to provide the free access
Bank of India, the Police Department, of MCA 21 website to Bank for official use.
fficials of the State G t i : -
priclas Of the st moveriment W11 Golden Jubilee Rural Housing
Ministries/ Department of Home Finance, X
Law, Economic Offences Wing, Registrar of Finance Scheme
gez umrﬁfe:i;sla ggggfnagr;yB;jg ofB oar i / The Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Finance
. v Scheme (GJRHFS) is engaged in catering to
Institute of C;harteired Accountapts of India the financial need of the rural housing sector
;B%tgatleé Reglg%al evei's e.tc. ?liirm,g thseﬁ/(e:acr since inception in 1997. The Scheme aims to
-10, articipated in i o
meetines at Re iofla LOf fiP;es of RBI for the provide improved access to housing finance
Stat ng 0 5 A Maharashira. Utt which would enable an individual to build a
P a (eis Oh eII;a a,' bssag, a arasH.ra, hali modest house or to improve or add to his
Piz d:’h, R:j?sih’a N E}i};irliian dlm"?:mil existing dwelling unitin the rural areas.
Nadu, Bi’har, Delhi anéi West Bengall. The Scheme has been successful in its
1062 In order to obtain complete details e'ndeavou}" as ev idenced by the f?Ct that
regarding enlistment of newly since the inception of the Scheme in 1997,
registered/incorporated companies, over 28 lakh dwelling l,mlt,s have been
financed. The Scheme is implemented
change of name, converted, defunct or ih h . PLI v Housi
liquidated HFCs, NHB requested all the yrough  various S hamely Tousmg
Registrar of Companies (RoC) in India to Finance Companies (HFCs), Pu‘bhc Sector
invariably forward the list of such HFCs. Ban.ks .(PSBS) and . Cooperat%ve SeCt‘?r
Further, NHB also requested RoC offices Institutions. The National Housing Bank is
for scrutinizing the Memorandum of the monitoring agency for the Scheme.
Association of the Companies having  11.1  Performance during2009-10
“housing” or “housing finance” in its During the year 2009-10, a total of 3,87,792
name and forward to NHB together with units were financed by HFCs and PSBs
names .:and addresses and other .details of under the Scheme as against a target of
their Directors for necessary action. 3,50,000 units thus accounting for more than
10.6.3 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has 100 per cent achievement (approximately
launched the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 111 per cent). The consolidated performance
Project, wherein complete details of HFCs and PSBs under the Scheme during
/information regarding companies are thelast two years can be outlined as below:
(Number of Dwelling Units)
Institution Target Achievement %age Achievement
2008-09 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10
HFCs 78,300 87,500 49,925 78,207 64 89
PSBs 2,71,700 2,62,500 2,08,340 3,09,585 77 118
TOTAL 3,50,000 3,50,000 2,58,265 3,87,792 74 111
100
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Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Finance Scheme

Cumulative Performance under the Scheme
In terms of achievement, the performance of
the Scheme since its inception has been
laudable, as can be concluded by the fact
that a total of 28,59,246 dwelling units have
been achieved by the HFCs, PSBs and Co-

operative sector institutions as against a
target of 29,80,000 dwelling units
(approximately 96 per cent of the target)
during the thirteen year period from 1997 to
2010. The progress of the Scheme since the

inceptionis as follows:

(Number of Dwelling Units)

Year Target Achievement Amount disbursed
(% in Crore)
1997-1998 50,000 51,272 -
1998-1999 1,00,000 1,25,731 -
1999-2000 1,25,000 1,41,363 -
2000-2001 1,50,000 1,58,426 -
2001-2002 1,75,000 1,87,268 3246.03
2002-2003 2,25,000 1,78,200 3816.34
2003-2004 2,50,000 2,43,753 6353.82
2004-2005 2,50,000 2,58,562 6440.95
2005-2006 2,75,000 2,98,651 8367.86
2006-2007 3,30,000 2,98,426 7664.58
2007-2008 3,50,000 2,71, 537 8844.81
2008-2009 3,50,000 2,58,265 10337.88
2009-10 3,50,000 3,87,792 15,565.24
Total 29,80,000 28,59,246
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Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Finance Scheme

The performance of HFCs and PSBs under
the Scheme have continuously been
improving over the last few years. Keeping
in view the enhanced supply of creditas also
the number of dwelling units financed
under the Scheme during the last few years,
the target for the year 2010-11 has been fixed
with slight up-gradation at 3,75,000
dwelling units. For further improved
performance of the HFCs and PSBs under
the Scheme, the Scheme is being closely
monitored by NHB.

12

Housing Micro Finance I

12.1

The Bank has identified ‘Housing Micro
Finance” (HMF) to play an important role in
the various interventions in both urban and
rural areas that the Bank proposes to take up.
Over the last few years, the micro finance
sector has emerged as the largest
congregation of microfinance leaders from
within and outside India.
institutions are gradually bringing the poor,
especially poor women, into the formal
financial system and enabling them to access
creditand fight poverty.

NHB'’s focus through its HMF window has
been to develop sustainable housing finance

Micro finance

102

A

programmes for the poor who are attached to
the Self Help Groups (SHGs) in various parts
of the country. In view of the significance of the
MFI/NGOs as effective intermediaries for
HMF, and to reach out to the low income
groups in rural and urban areas, NHB has
taken a series of initiatives to engage with the
MFIs/NGOs through long term financial
support and technical assistance to these
entities. Under NHB’s HMF programme, the
beneficiaries include farmers, housemaids,
petty traders, artisans, dairy workers and
other low income households. More than
90 per cent of the beneficiaries are women. The
approximate income levels of the beneficiaries
range between < 3,000 to% 7,000 per month.

Under the programme, the housing loans
are provided by the MFIs to Self Help
Group (SHG) or Joint Liability Group
(JLG) members attached to the MFIs either
for new construction or for renovation/
repair of their existing houses. Work sheds
form anintegral part of all housing projects
with necessary water and sanitation
facilities. Incremental housing
(repair/renovation) with maximum loan
component of ¥ 50,000 assumes much
significance in the context of affordability
and sustainability of the programme. The

12.2

= sl CE £ i 2
House constructed under Housing Micro Finance assistance in Andhra Pradesh
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loans are repayable within a maximum
period of 10 years.

Cumulatively, till end of June 2010, the Bank
has sanctioned HMF assistance to 23 agencies
amounting to ¥ 83.92 crore. The above
projects will result in construction/
renovation of 16207 dwelling units of which
9918 dwelling units will be in urban areas and
6289 dwelling units will be in rural areas. The
projects are scattered across various States
like Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka, Tamil
Nadu, Maharashtra, Orissa, Gujarat, Kerala,
Assamand Uttar Pradesh.

To ensure due diligence and surveillance of
the project implementation, the Bank has
also put in place a rating mechanism for
assessment and appraisal of the housing

micro finance proposals. This Internal
Credit Rating Model has been developed by
M-Cril and approved by the Board of
Directors of NHB. Till date, twelve

AT

Training Programme on Housing Micro finance of MFIs

microfinance institutions have been rated
using the above rating model.

12.3  The efforts of the Bank have also been to
ensure capacity building of MFIs on aspects
relating to Housing Finance. During the
year, around 70 personnel of MFIs were
trained through these programmes.

124 Public Private Partnership:

Mass Housing Project in Kolkata financed by the Bank
under Public Private Partnership model

12.4.1 The Public Private Partnership model is
emerging as an efficient model for delivery
of services across sectors. As per the
objectives of the Project Finance Loan
Policy, the Bank endeavors to provide low
income housing for the poor through Public

Private Partnerships.

1242  Atermloan of % 225 crore was sanctioned by
the Bank to Bengal Shapoorji Housing
Development (P) Ltd. (BSHDPL), Kolkata.
The project is for construction of Mass
Housing Project at Action Area III, New
Town, Kolkata, under a Public-Private
Partnership (PPP) Model of the
Government of West Bengal.

12.4.3 The project is part of the initiatives
undertaken by Government of West
Bengal for providing mass housing to low
income households through Public Private
Partnership. The project is for construction

of 20,000 units for low and middle income
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groups in the proportion of 60:401i.e. 12,000
LIG flats and 8,000 MIG flats, along with
physical and social amenities for new
habitants. The Bank, has till date released
an amount of ¥ 20 crore to BSHDPL.
Construction of around 1556 LIG flats has
been completed and the same has been
allotted to the successful applicants.

12.5 A study on Housing in the districts of
Sivagangai and Pudukottai, Tamil Nadu
1251  TheBankassigned a study to Rural Empowers

Social Service Organization (RESSO) to estimate
the housing requirements and potential market
for housing finance and to assess the existing
institutional framework providing grant and
credit facilities so as to provide
recommendations for channelizing housing
finance in the districts of Sivagangai and
Pudukottai of Tamil Nadu. The study has been
completed and RESSO has submitted its report.

1252 The study has provided comprehensive
details along with the statistics on the
current housing position in Tamil Nadu and
the housing shortage, housing situation in
Sivagangai and Pudukottai district, the
assessment and performance of the various
housing schemes, the procedure adopted
under the Indira Awas Yojana for allotment,
bank loan procedures, granting money etc.
The study also includes the institutions
providing credit for housing, informal
credit delivery system in the two districts,
the performance of the lending institutions,
an assessment of the indebtedness and
the repayment capability of the borrowers,
and recommendations for possible
interventions in the two districts.

13 Business Planning and
Promotion Activities

13.1
1311

Complaint Redressal Mechanism

The National Housing Bank has a
Complaint Cell at the Head Office in New
Delhi to ensure prompt redressal of

104
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1312

1313

13.2

1321

customer complaints and grievances
against HFCs. The complete details
regarding the role of the Complaint Cell for
addressing the complaints received from
public against HFCs has been regularly
uploaded on NHB Website.

The Bank is also a member of Centralized
Grievance Redress and Monitoring
System (CPGRAMS) of Department of
Administrative Reform and Public
Grievances (DARPG) which aims at
providing the citizens with a platform for
redressal of their grievances. The complaints
received on Public Grievances (PG) Portal
related to NHB are monitored on a regular
basis and are promptly addressed.

During the financial year 2009-10 under
review, Bank had received a total of 341
complaints, out of which 311 complaints
have been settled and constant monitoring
is on with the concerned HFCs for early
disposal of the remaining complaints.
Meeting of CEOs of HFCs and Senior
Officials of PSBs including select RRBs
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Banks including select RRBs

NHB organized two meetings with the Chief
Executives of Housing Finance Companies
and Senior Officials of Public Sector Banks
including select Regional Rural Banks so as to
review the developments of the sector as also
to outline the various initiatives of NHB and
understand the needs of the lending
institutions.

1322

1323

13.3
1331
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During the year under consideration, two
meetings of CEOs of HFCs and Senior
Officials of PSBs including select RRBs
were organized by NHB in New Delhi. In
these meetings, issues concerning the
sector and of mutual interest like Rural
Housing viz. Golden Jubilee Rural
Housing Finance Scheme and Rural
Housing Fund, Affordable Housing,
Reverse Mortgage Loan-Annuity
Product, housing and housing finance for
the poor, Interest Subsidy Scheme for
Housing the Urban Poor (ISHUP),
proposed 1% interest subvention scheme
and other research and development
activities were discussed. The
performances of HFCs and PSBs under
GJRHFS were also reviewed during these
meetings.

Recognizing the key role played by the
Regional Rural Banks (RRB’s) towards
rural housing, exclusive sessions were
convened for them. The key role played
by the RRBs and their delivery
mechanisms in addressing the problems
of rural housing were well recognized
and appreciated.

World Habitat Day 2009

The United Nations has designated the
first Monday in October every year as
“World Habitat Day” to reflect on the state
of human settlements and the basic right to
adequate shelter for all. The event focuses
on the state of human settlements and basic
right to adequate shelter for all coupled
with reminding the World of its collective
responsibility towards the future of
human habitat. The Day is celebrated
around the World every year through a
number of events hosted by various
agencies/ institutions dealing with habitat
and human settlement. The Ministry of
Housing and Urban Poverty Alleviation,
Government of India, had organized a

A
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1333

1334

function at Vigyan Bhavan, New Delhi on
October 5, 2009 to celebrate World Habitat
Day 2009.

The Chief Guest for the function was the
Honorable Union Minister of Housing and
Urban Poverty Alleviation, Kumari Selja.
The winners of the World Habitat Day 2008
essay competition, organized by National
Housing Bank, were awarded their
respective prizes by the Minister. The
function also witnessed the Minister
releasing National Housing Bank’s
“Award Winning Essays” booklet, which
is a collection of the best award winning
essays from previous years.

This year the World Habitat Day was
celebrated on October 5, 2009 with the
theme of “Planning our Urban Future”. As
a part of the World Habitat Day
celebrations in 2009, National Housing
Bank had organized an essay competition;
open inter-alia to all employees of Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs), Banks,
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and All India
Level Financial Institutions. The following
three topics for the essay competition were
selected keeping in view the theme of the
World Habitat Day 2009 viz. “Planning our
Urban Future”.

a. Housing & Housing Finance towards
sustainable urban development.

b. Urban development towards social
transformation.

c. Energy Efficient Housing: Scope &
Prospects in India.

Participants could submit an essay in
Hindi or English on any of these three
topics. There were three top prizes
followed by three consolation prizes.
The response to the essay competition
was overwhelming with a wide
participation from across the country
and the ideas and suggestion conveyed
by the participants through their essays
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were thought provoking and well
portrayed. The winners of the
competition will be felicitated during
the World Habitat Day 2010 celebrations
to be held on October 04, 2010.

Besides the essay competition, a quiz
competition with the title “Habitainment
Quiz’ was also organised by NHB on this
occasion. The quiz competition comprised
many interesting rounds mainly focusing
on “Identity and City”, “Climate” and
“Human Kind” etc. The quiz was open to
the institutional and individual members of
the India Habitat Centre (IHC). At the end of
the Quiz, the winners were awarded with
cash prizes of ¥ 20,000, ¥ 10,000 and ¥ 5000
for the first, second and third positions
respectively.

Risk Management

The Bank has its Risk Management System
in place to monitor the risk of the Bank. For
this purpose the Bank has constituted the
following committees:

Asset Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) which monitors the management of
market risk of the Bank.

Credit Risk Management Committee
(CRMC) which monitors the credit risk of
the Bank.

Operational Risk Management Committee
which monitors the operational risk of
the Bank.

The Bank has a Board appointed Risk
Management Advisory Committee
(RMAC) with three external members who
are experts in matters concerning Banking
and Finance. During the year 2009-10, the
Committee met four times to review the
Banks’” risk management policies and
functions in relation to the three areas of
risks mentioned above.

14

Capacity Building I

14.1

As a capacity building measure in the
housing finance sector, the Bank organizes
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14.2

14.3

various training programmes on issues
related to housing finance for the personnel
of the sector. During the year, the Bank
organized eleven training programmes.
Around 300 participants from various
primary lending institutions viz. Housing
Finance Companies, Banks, Regional Rural
Banks and Micro Finance Institutions
participated in these training programmes.

The training programmes covered topics
related to housing finance such as Legal
Issues in housing finance, Rural Housing
Finance and Regulatory Framework for
Housing Finance Companies besides the
Orientation Programme in Housing
Finance. Dedicated programmes on
important issues like “Prevention of
Frauds” and “KYC Guidelines and Fair
Practices Code” which have been engaging
the attention of the financial sector in the
country were also conducted by NHB. Asan
exclusive capacity building initiative for
Regional Rural Banks and Micro Finance
Institutions, the Bank conducted five
dedicated training programmes defraying
the entire expenses.

The objective of the above programmes has
been to familiarize the participants with the
dynamics of the formal housing finance
system so as to enable them to deal with the
related strategic and operational aspects in
an effective and prudent manner. The
strategic approach of the methodology
employed has been to impart knowledge
and information based training on
specialized issues through discussion
oriented and analytical exercises. The
faculty for these programmes is drawn from
the pool of experts in the concerned area,
experts in the field including policy makers
and housing finance practitioners from
Reserve Bank of India, Government of
India, Scheduled Commercial Banks,
Housing Finance Institutions and other
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reputed Academic and Research
Institutions and also from NHB.

144  The programmes have been organized in
different regions so as to give a wider
geographical coverage in terms of
participation. During the year,
programmes were conducted in
Chandigarh, Tiruchirapalli, New Delhi,
Mumbai, Ranchi, Kadapa and Shimla,

Hyderabad and Bengaluru.

15 Corporate Communications I

151  The Corporate Communications Cell of the
Bank focused on increasing the brand
awareness and brand visibility by
associating the Bank’s functions directly
with the consumers. The advertisements in
the regional magazines helped the Bank to
cover a wider audience base and helped
build a brand image. The Bank was featured
from time to time in the national and
regional media for its schemes and
initiatives in the housing finance sector. The
events organized by the Bank made its
corporate presence felt amongst the related
institutions.

16 Residential Mortgage Backed
Securitization

16.1 Residential Mortgage Backed

Securitization

NHB has so far completed fourteen
residential mortgage backed securitization
transactions involving 38,809 individual
housing loans of six Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs) and one Scheduled
Commercial Bank of housing loans
amounting to ¥ 862.20 crore. The success of
the issues of RMBS has significantly
provided means to better understand and
address the various legal, regulatory, fiscal,
accounting and other capital market related
issues relating to such transactions as also
various policy issues for a conducive
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16.3

environment for such issuances. The
structure of NHB’s RMBS issues has been
designed under the provisions of the
National Housing Bank Amendment Act,
2000 (Sections 14 (ea), 14 (eb), 14 (ec) and 18),
which authorize the Bank to carry out
securitization transactions and issue
mortgage backed securities as trust
certificates of beneficial interest and act as
Trustee for the holders of such securities.

Performance of the Pools of Housing loans
Securitized

NHB has appointed the respective
originators as Servicing and Paying Agents
(S and P Agents) to ensure that collections
in respect of each of the pool of securitized
loans are distributed to the respective Pass
Through Certificate (PTC) holders and
Service providers. The yields to Class A
PTCholders have been consistent with that
indicated at the time of issuances.
Redemption of RMBS pools

The Class “A” PTCs of one of the residential
mortgage backed securitization transactions
has been redeemed and the Special Purpose
Vehicle trust has been successfully closed.

New Initiatives I

1711

Reverse Mortgage Loan (RML)

ﬂu?usws RANN

Conference on Reverse Mortgages in India

NHB has conceptualized the Reverse
Mortgage Loan (RML) product,
exclusively for house owning senior
citizens. Pursuant to the announcement
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17.2.2
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made in the Union Budget speech of the

Hon’ble Finance Minister on February 28,

2007, NHB notified Operational Guidelines 17.3
for Reverse Mortgage Loan (RML) in May
2007 after extensive consultation with the
Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) and
Banks. Further, NHB in consultation with a
reputed legal firm, prepared and circulated
model formats of the loan documents for
adoption, suitably by the HFCs and Banks
in connection with their lending under RML.

1731

The Hon’ble Finance Minister in the Union
Budget Speech for the year 2008-09, made
two major announcements relating to the
proposed amendments to the Income Tax
Act. Theseare:

a new sub-section (xvi) to Section 47 of the
Income Tax Act providing that reverse
mortgage would not amount to “transfer”

and
1732
insertion of a new sub-section (43) under

Section 10 of the Income Tax Act to the effect
that the stream of payments received by the
senior citizen under RML under a Scheme
notified by the Central Government would
not be “income”, as they are in the nature of
capital receipts.

In terms of the Budget announcement,
Reverse Mortgage Scheme is required to be
notified by the Government of India to
enable tax benefits to accrue. NHB has since
forwarded a proposal in this regard to the
Government of India for approval and
notification.

Reverse Mortgage Counselling Centres 1733

NHB has been widely disseminating
information on RML. Seminars /
workshops and extensive interactions have
been held during the year.

NHB launched a Reverse Mortgage Loan
Counselling Programme for Senior
Citizens, adopting a “partnership approach’
with reputed NGOs engaged in addressing
the issues of senior citizens to operate the
programme. Seven Counselling Centres
have since been established at New Delhi
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(2), Chandigarh, Hyderabad, Chennai,
Kolkata and Bengaluru.

Launch of Reverse Mortgage Loan enabled
Annuity (RMLeA)

The Reverse Mortgage Scheme introduced
in the year 2007 had the following
limitations:

Maximum Payment tenure: The stream of
monthly payments being made by the
Banks/HFCs to the senior citizens was
limited to a maximum period of 20 years.

Payments not assured: In the event of
adverse movements in property prices, the
Banks/HFCs had the discretion to cease to
make further payments to the senior citizen
borrowers, at any given point in time.
However, the Senior Citizen shall not make
any repayment and may continue to occupy
the house as owners.

With a view to overcome the above
limitations, NHB conceptualized an
extended RML scheme ensuring assured life-
time annuity payments to the senior citizens.
The new scheme is an extension over the
initial RML scheme. The scheme envisages
the Banks / HFCs to source assured life time
annuity for the senior citizens from a life
insurance company. Further, the scheme
provides an option for married couple - both
husband and wife - to be joint borrowers for
availing the periodic annuity payments
throughout their life time i.e. the payments
shall continue to flow till the demise of the
last surviving borrower.

The new scheme was launched by NHB in
association with Star Union Dai-ichi Life
Insurance Company Ltd., (SUD Life) and
Central Bank of India (CBI) in December
2009. The SUD Life has obtained necessary
approval from Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority (IRDA) for
introducing the annuity part of the RML
productin India. The new productis yet to be
implemented by other SCBs and HFCs in
association with other life insurance
companies.

17.3.4
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This scheme is a significant improvement over
the initial RML scheme (2007) which limited
the loan disbursement tenure to a fixed term
of twenty years causing uncertainties to the
senior citizen borrowers. The new scheme
will now facilitate the senior citizen
borrowers to receive assured life-time
payments i.e. even after completion of the
fixed term of 20 years, in accordance with the
announcement in Budget 2007-08. NHB has
also formulated Operational Guidelines for
new RML enabled Annuity product.

18

Information Technology Initiatives I

18.1
1811

IT Projects

Web-Portal for South Asia Housing
Finance Forum: The Bank has developed a
knowledge sharing and information portal
for South Asia Housing Finance Forum to
promote coalition and coordination among

The website of Aisa Pacific Union for Housing Finance www.apuhf.info, earlier

known as the www.sahf.info (South Asia Housing Finance Forum website)

181.2

the South Asia and Asia Pacific countries in
exploring and determining their housing
and housing finance solutions. The portal
was launched by the Governor of Central
Bank of Afghanistan, Mr. Abdul Qadeer
Fitrat in an International Conference on
Affordable Housing and Housing
Finance during January 27-28, 2010 at
New Delhi.

In-house Software Development:
Although SAP is becoming the basic

A
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platform for enterprise wide integration of
information, there are areas where various
departments require additional computer
support. The Bank developed the
following software applications in-house
during 2009 & 2010.

Management of Parliament Questions:-
The Bank has developed a web based
software for categorization of parliament
questions and its retrieval as and when
required.

Electronic Telephone Directory System:- A
web-based application has been developed
for accessing and maintaining of NHB
contact details on-line.

On-line Calculator for Interest Subsidy
Scheme for Housing the Urban Poor:- A
web based application has been developed
in-house to facilitate the checking of claims
under the ISHUP.

Library Information System: The Bank has
implemented Library Management System
(Libsys Package) at its knowledge centre for
automation of Library System of the Bank.

Statistical Package for Social Science: The
Bank has implemented select modules of
PASW (formerly named as SPSS) package
for processing of RESIDEX data. This
software assists NHB RESIDEX Cell to
process NHB RESIDEX inputs provided by
different institutions to produce wider
variety of charts, graphs & reports as per the
Bank’s need.

Housing Information Portal (HIP): In order
to provide reliable information at a single
point to all potential users the Housing
Information Portal (HIP) was conceived in
2007. This project plans to create a
repository of information about the
processes related to housing and housing
finance and publish it on the Housing
Information Portal for the benefit of a wide
spectrum of users.
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The development of Phase-1 (for Buyers &
Sellers) and Phase-II (for Investors &
Business partners) has been completed.
Development of Module-III (for
Researchers/Professionals) has been
initiated. Evaluation of Module-III contents
are in progress and it is expected that all
Module-III contents will be finalized by
2010-11.

The portal contains comprehensive real
estate details (Housing Finance, Legal,
Property Price Index etc.)) for various
categories of users. It will serve as a window
not only for prospective buyers of property
but also for those setting up a Housing
Finance Company, developing a Real Estate
Projectetc.

IT Security

Enforcement of Information Security
Measures: The security of Bank’s IT
infrastructure is guided by the directions
laid down in the Information Security Policy
(ISP). ISP gives directions towards
implementation of Information Security
Framework for the Bank.

The implementation status of IS Policy is
being verified by third party IS-Auditor
during its annual IS-Audit program. For the
year 2009-10, the IS Audit exercise has been
completed and Audit compliance certificate
has also beenissued by the Auditors.

New Initiatives

SAP Bilingual: The project for
implementation of SAP bilingual
interface is in progress. It is expected that
implementation of this project will be
completed by July 2010.

Multi-protocol Label Switching (MPLS)
Connectivity: To establish reliable, high
availability and secured connectivity
across the Bank, NHB has initiated the
project for establishing MPLS
connectivity. It is expected that the
project would be implemented during the

year 2010-11 by December 2010.
Estimated time frame for implementation
is six months.

[19

Research Activities I
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19.1

19.1.1

19.1.2

National Workshop and Regional
Symposium on Pro-Poor Housing
Finance in collaboration with United
Nations Economic and Social Council
for Asia and the Pacific (UNESCAP)
and United Nations Human
Settlements Program (UN-HABITAT)
at New Delhi, India

To understand and focus on the key
challenges in providing finance for pro-
poor housing, the United Nations
Economic and Social Council for the Asia
and the Pacific (UNESCAP) initiated a
regional project jointly with the National
Housing Bank (NHB), India and UN-
HABITAT. The project involved an
analysis of the present state of housing
finance in five countries namely
Thailand, Indonesia, Mongolia, Sri Lanka
and India and preparation of a
comparative assessment of innovative
practices in housing finance being
followed in these countries.

The National Workshop on Pro-Poor
Housing Finance in India was jointly
organized by the United Nations
Economic and Social Council for Asia and
the Pacific (UNESCAP) and National
Housing Bank (NHB) on October 29, 2009
at New Delhi. The objectives of the
Workshop were to understand and outline
the key challenges in providing finance for
Pro-poor Housing and reviewing the draft
of the country report on the State of
Housing Finance with focus on Pro-poor
Housing Finance in India. Further, a
meeting of the core group of select experts
was organized by the National Housing
Bank on October 30, 2009 to evaluate the
draft country report. The final country
report was drafted on the basis of
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suggestions and recommendations
received from the core group.

1913

A Regional Symposium on Pro-Poor
Housing Finance was organized on April 19-
20 in New Delhi. The countries participating
in the Symposium included Thailand, Japan,
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Regional Symposium on Pro-Poor Housing Finance,
April 19-20, 2010, New Delhi
Bangladesh, Sri Lanka, Philippines,
Mongolia and India. The outcomes of the
Regional Symposium have been indicated

in the box below.

Box19.1

Regional Symposium on Pro Poor Housing
Finance - Key Outcomes

The Regional Symposium involved
discussions on challenges and innovative
approaches towards pro-poor housing
finance in different countries of the region. A
Draft Compendium on Pro-Poor Housing
Finance was released during the Symposium.
A Concept Note on the creation of a Regional
Network on Pro-Poor Housing Finance,
prepared by NHB and Government Housing
Bank (GHB) was circulated amongst the
participants.

There were wide-ranging discussions on
different aspects of the Concept Note relating
to the modalities for the creation and
operationalization of the Regional Network.
After such discussions, it was decided to set
up Working Groups amongst the members
who would work on different aspects of the
Network, before they are finalized and the
Network is formally launched.

A
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19.2  Launch of South Asia Housing Finance
Forum (SAHF) and International
Conference on Affordable Housing and
Housing Finance

1921  The Bank in association with the World Bank

and International Finance Corporation (IFC),
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Conference on Affordable Housing & Housing Finance & Launch of Website
of South Asia Housing Finance Forum, January 27-28, 2010, New Delhi

organized an International Conference on
Affordable Housing and Housing Finance
during January 27-28, 2010 at New Delhi. The
Conference had participants and Speakers
from Afghanistan, Bangladesh, Brazil, India,
Indonesia, Maldives, Mauritius, Pakistan, Sri
Lanka, South Africa and Thailand besides IFC,
World Bank and World Bank Institute,
Affordable Housing Institute, ADB,
Government of India - Central and State
Government Officials, Reserve Bank of India,
Banks & Housing Finance Companies.
Representatives from Civil Society
Organizations, academia, researchers and
policy makers also participated in the
Conference.

19.22 The Conference was preceded by Launch
of South Asia Housing Finance Forum
(SAHF Forum), a knowledge sharing and
Information portal, developed and hosted
by the National Housing Bank on its
website. The website of the SAHF forum
was launched by Mr. Abdul Qadeer Fitrat,
Governor, Central Bank of Afghanistan in
the presence of the Special Invitees and the
delegates of the Conference. The forum

intends to promote coalition and




arffe Rare 2009-10  ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

coordination among the South Asia and
Asia Pacific countries in exploring and
determining their housing and housing
finance solutions. The Forum has members
from Afghanistan, Pakistan, Sri Lanka,
Bangladesh, Thailand and India and is
expected to expand and include other Asia
and Asia Pacific countries.

Box19.2

International Conference on Affordable
Housing and Housing Finance

The deliberations and presentations in the
conference highlighted the Issues and
Challenges on Affordable Housing,
common to most of the South Asia and Asia
Pacific countries. The Conference
deliberated on the dynamics of the housing
and housing finance market with focus on
issues relating to finance, land, technology,
construction design, and regulatory
framework for effective strategies,
innovative products and sustainable
programs on affordable housing.

The launch of the site is a welcome initiative
on the part of the National Housing Bank
which plays alead role in this region.

A number of presentations were made in the
Conference which included international
perspectives and policy issues in affordable
housing and Low Income Housing Finance,
Liquidity and Fiscal Issues and its
implication for housing finance, micro
housing initiatives, securitization for low
income housing, role of construction
finance and technology in affordable
housing, subprime crisis: causes and lessons
etc. The Conference highlighted various
successful interventions tried in Brazil,
South Africa, Kenya, Thailand, USA and
India.

19.2.3

As an important landmark event, the
first meeting of the Advisory Board of
the SAHF Forum was also convened
which has representation from the
Central Banks of Afghanistan, Pakistan,
Bangladesh, Sri Lanka, and National
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19.3
19.3.1

19.3.2

Housing Bank of India. The
Government Housing Bank of Thailand
was also co-opted in the Group. The
SAHF Secretariat is hosted by the
National Housing Bank.

Launch of Occasional Papers III and IV
In consonance with NHB’s continued
efforts to undertake research on different
aspects of the Housing Sector, two
occasional papers were released.
Occasional Paper III involved a study of
cross country experiences in preparing
and publishing housing price indices.
Housing prices are of interest and hence
followed by the public and policy-
makers alike. Changes in residential
property prices are, therefore, likely to
influence substantially the budget plans
and saving decisions of the potential
buyers and sellers. Besides, for meeting
the regulatory requirements and also to
manage their risk, financial institutions
are required to specify their risks with
regard to their mortgage portfolios by
estimating the actual liquidation value
for every home in their portfolio.
Housing prices can provide important
insights for financial stability analysis,
since sharp increases and declines in
prices can have a detrimental impact on
financial sector health and soundness,
by affecting credit quality and the value
of collateral. The paper recounts the
comparative status and methodologies
of determining the Index across the
countries as also their impact on the
stability of the financial system.

Occasional Paper IV focussed on a study of
policy measures for promoting Housing
Sector through an overview of cross-
country experiences. As the core objective
of the public sector housing initiative is to
make housing affordable and accessible to
lower-income families, an attempt has
been made to study cross - country
experiences towards promoting access to
shelter through inclusive housing policies,
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consisting of programmes relating to
public housing and other mix of policies to
promote private investment in housing.

20 Residential Real Estate Price
Index
(NHB RESIDEX)

20.1 NHB RESIDEX is an initiative of the

National Housing Bank to provide an
Index of residential prices in India across
cities and over time. National Housing
Bank, at the behest of the Ministry of
Finance, Government of India, began this
initiative in the year 2005-06 and further
undertook a pilot study to examine the
feasibility of preparing such an index at
the national level. NHB launched
RESIDEX for tracking prices of residential
properties in India, in July 2007, covering
data up to 2005 with 2001 as the base year.
The pilot study covered 5 cities viz.
Bengaluru, Bhopal, Delhi, Kolkata and
Mumbai. As a pilot, 5 cities were studied
and thereafter NHB RESIDEX has now
been expanded to ten more cities namely
Ahmedabad, Faridabad, Chennali,
Kochi, Hyderabad, Jaipur, Patna,
Lucknow, Pune and Surat. NHB
RESIDEX now covers 15 cities and has
been updated up to December, 2009
(July - December). NHB RESIDEX is
now being updated on a half-yearly
basis with 2007 as the base year.

Box20.1
NHB RESIDEX: Salient Features
Started on a Pilot basis which covered 5
Delhi, Mumbai, Kolkata,
Bengaluru and Bhopal representing the
various regions of the country.

cities viz.

Initially to cover residential properties, in
due course, based on experience and
depending upon the availability of data,
may be expanded to cover commercial
properties as well.

A
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2001 was taken as the base year for the
study to be comparable with the WPI and
CPI. Year to Year price movement during
the period 2001-2005 were captured, and
subsequently updated for two more years
i.e.up to2007.

NHB RESIDEX has been expanded to
cover ten more cities, viz, Ahmedabad,
Faridabad, Chennai, Kochi, Hyderabad,
Jaipur, Patna, Lucknow, Pune and Surat.
At the time of last updation and expansion
of coverage of NHB RESIDEX to 10 more
cities, the base year has been shifted from
2001 to 2007.

With 2007 as base, NHB RESIDEX has
been updated up to December, 2009,
with two half yearly updates (Jan - June
and July - Dec).

NHB RESIDEX will be updated on half
yearly basis, for the present.

In the first phase NHB RESIDEX will be
expanded to cover 35 cities having
million plus population.

The proposal is to expand NHB RESIDEX
to 63 cities which are covered under the
Jawahar Lal Nehru National Urban
Renewal Mission to make it a truly
national index.

The index has been constructed using the
weighted average methodology with
Price Relative Method (Modified
Laspeyre’s approach).

Primary data on housing prices is being
collected from real estate agents by
commissioning the services of private
consultancy/research organizations of
national repute; in addition data on
housing prices is also being collected
from the Housing Finance Companies
and Banks, which is based on housing
loans contracted by these institutions.

20.2

The movement in prices of residential
houses has shown a mixed trend in the 15
cities covered under NHB RESIDEX till
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June, 2009 (January - June). Residential
housing prices in 9 cities has shown an
increasing trend over the previous period
(July-December, 2008) namely Mumbai
(6 per cent), Kolkata (14 per cent),
Faridabad (12 per cent), Patna (7 per
cent), Ahmedabad (27 per cent), Chennai
(26 per cent), Lucknow (2 per cent), Pune
(6 per cent) and Surat (13 per cent).

20.4

In the recent updation for July - December,
2009, residential housing prices in 12 cities
have shown an increasing trend over the
previous period (January-June, 2009).
Mumbai (2 per cent), Kolkata (17 per cent),
Faridabad (7 per cent), Patna (11 per cent),
Ahmedabad (1 per cent), Chennai (19 per
cent), Lucknow (14 per cent), Pune (14 per
cent), Surat (11 per cent), Bengaluru (3 per

20.3  Ahmedabad (27 per cent) and Chennai cent), Bhopal (16 per cent) and Hyderabad
(26 per cent) showed the maximum (26 per cent) is showing increase in
increase. There are 6 cities which have housing transaction prices with
shown correction in prices over the Hyderabad (26 per cent), Chennai (19 per
previous period namely Delhi (-7 per cent) and Bhopal (18 per cent) showing the
cent), Bengaluru (-24 per cent), Bhopal maximum increase. There are 3 cities
(-8 per cent), Hyderabad (-30 per cent), which have shown correction in prices
Jaipur (-38 per cent) and Kochi (-5 per over the previous period namely Delhi
cent) among which Jaipur (-38 per cent) (-7 per cent), Jaipur (-11 per cent) and
showed the maximum price correction Kochi (-8 per cent) among which Jaipur
followed by Hyderabad (-30 per cent) and (-11 per cent) is showing the maximum
Bengaluru (-24 per cent) in residential price correction in residential housing
housing transaction prices. transaction prices.

City Wise Housing Price Index (Base Year: 2007=100)

Cities Base Year Jan- June July- Dec Jan-Jun July-Dec
(2007) 2008 2008 2009 2009
Delhi 100 124 130 121 113
Bengaluru 100 73 76 58 59
Mumbai 100 112 117 124 126
Kolkata 100 114 140 159 185
Bhopal 100 139 151 139 162
Hyderabad 100 96 92 65 81
Faridabad 100 100 121 136 145
Patna 100 103 100 107 119
Ahmedabad 100 106 100 127 128
Chennai 100 104 95 120 143
Jaipur 100 119 115 71 63
Lucknow 100 103 102 104 119
Pune 100 101 97 103 117
Surat 100 101 98 111 123
Kochi 100 106 95 90 83

114
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Per centage (%) change in different cities : City-wise growth rate (%) over the previous half year
(H2= July-Dec, H1=]Jan-June)

Cities 2008 H1 over 2008 H2 over 2009 H1 over 2009 H2 over
2007 2008 H1 2008 H2 2009 H1
Ahmedabad 6 -5 27 1
Bengaluru -27 -24 3
Bhopal 39 9 -8 16
Chennai 4 -8 26 19
Delhi 24 5 -7 -7
Faridabad 0 21 13 7
Hyderabad -4 -3 -30 26
Jaipur 19 -3 -38 -11
Kochi 6 -10 -5 -8
Kolkata 14 23 13 17
Lucknow 3 0 2 14
Mumbai 12 4 6 2
Patna -3 11
Pune -4 6 14
Surat -3 13 11
CITY-WISE HOUSING PRICE INDEX
I Jan - June, 2008 July-Dec, 2008 W Jan - June, 2009 W July-Dec, 2009 ——Base Year (2007)
200
175

150
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100

75
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Value : 185

Series "July - Dec, 2009" Point "Kolkata" }
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Interest Subsidy Scheme for
Housing the Urban Poor (ISHUP)

21.1
2111

2112

21.2
2121

Background

The National Urban Housing & Habitat
Policy, 2007 supports promotion of
innovative housing finance schemes for the
Economically Weaker Section (EWS) and
Low Income Group (LIG) with Central and
State Government support to increase flow
of finance for catering to the housing needs
of these segments. The Ministry of Housing
& Urban Poverty Alleviation (MoH & UPA),
Government of India, has launched 'Interest
Subsidy Scheme for Housing the Urban
Poor' (ISHUP) for addressing the housing
needs of the EWS and LIG segments in
urban areas. The Scheme envisages the
provision of Interest Subsidy to EWS and
LIG segments to enable them to buy or
construct houses. The Scheme is expected to
create additional housing stock of 3.10 lakh
houses for EWS/LIG segments over the
next 4 years (2008-12), with budgetary
allocation of ¥ 1100 crore.

A subsidy of 5 per cent per annum is given
for loans of ¥ 1,00,000/- taken during the
11th Five Year Plan. The loan repayment
period would be 15-20 years. The Scheme
will close in the year 2012. The Scheme has
prescribed preference for Scheduled Caste,
Scheduled Tribe, Minorities, and Persons
with disabilities and women beneficiaries.
The Scheme is being implemented through
Public Sector Banks and select Housing
Finance Companies. NHB and HUDCO are
the Central Nodal Agencies for the
administration of interest subsidy and for
monitoring the progress under the Scheme.

Subsequent Developments

NHB as a Central Nodal Agency under the
Scheme has signed Memorandum of
Agreement (MoA) with 23 Primary Lending
Institutions (PLIs) comprising seventeen

116

A

2122

2123

(17) Public Sector Banks and six (6) Housing
Finance Companies. Among the Public
Sector Banks, NHB has executed
Memorandum of Agreement with State
Bank of India, Oriental Bank of Commerce,
UCO Bank, Corporation Bank, Indian Bank,
Punjab & Sind Bank, Syndicate Bank,
Punjab National Bank, Central Bank of
India, Union Bank of India, Bank of Baroda,
Allahabad Bank, State Bank of Hyderabad,
Andhra Bank, Canara Bank, United Bank of
India and State Bank of Mysore and
amongst the Housing Finance Companies
with Housing Development Finance
Corporation Ltd.( HDFC Ltd), Housing &
Urban Development Corporation Ltd.
(HUDCO), Dewan Housing Finance
Corporation Ltd., LIC Housing Finance
Ltd., Can Fin Homes Ltd. and DHFL Vysya
Housing Finance Ltd.

NHB has been working in close co-ordination
with the Ministry of Housing and Urban
Poverty Alleviation, Government of India, and
has participated in regional consultations/
sensitization workshops held at Hyderabad,
Ahmedabad, Mumbai, Bhopal, Bengaluru,
Thiruvananthapuram, Chennai, Jaipur and
Chandigarh, which have been organized for
generating awareness about the Scheme.

On the basis of recommendation from
Ministry of Housing and Urban Poverty
Alleviation, NHB convened ajoint meeting
of all State Level Convener Banks (SLBC)
on June 8, 2010 under the Chairmanship of
Joint Secretary to Government of India,
MoH & UPA for discussing the issues
related to implementation of ISHUP. The
Meeting was also attended by the
representatives of the Urban Local Bodies
and the state level nodal agencies. The
deliberations resulted in better
understanding of various operational issues
among the implementing agencies for
speedier implementation of the Scheme.
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2124 Till June 30, 2010, NHB received 50 interest 23
subsidy claims from various PLIs for
claiming the interest subsidy amounting to
32,30,42,948 /- for 2840 beneficiaries. Out of
these 50 claims, the Ministry has sanctioned

19 claims aggregating to¥97,73,933 / 44.

Corporate Governance I

23.1 The Bank’s Website

The Bank's website provides updated status
to its stakeholders on a dynamic basis
through easier and speedier access and

downloads. The Bank’s website contains

22 1% Interest Subvention Scheme I

information about its activities/ functions,

The Scheme is being implemented through products, new initiatives, organization, etc.

25 HFC’s registered with NHB as Central
Nodal Agency. The subsidy claims
aggregating I 8.48 crore covering more
than 22,000 beneficiaries have been
received from HFCs. The claims
aggregating ¥ 6.25 crore covering more
than 16,000 beneficiaries have been sent to
Ministry of Finance for sanction and
release of the subsidy. The remaining
claims totalling ¥ 2.22 crore are under
processing and sent to HFCs for
rectification. NHB has issued letters to
CEOs of all implementing HFCs and
CMDs of Public Sector Banks (PSBs) for
speedy implementation of the Scheme by
giving wider publicity so that eligible
borrowers may avail maximum benefit
under the Scheme.

Various information on Bank’s Financial
Support, Information for Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs) and their depositors,
Research & Development Reports,
Publications, etc. are also available on the
website for Housing Finance Institutions and
public at large. Downloadable, include
applications forms (i) for companies desirous
to register with Bank and/or seek financial
support - equity or finance for their
operations, (ii) for investors who are desirous
to invest in Bank’s deposit schemes, etc. In
addition to the above, the Bank’s website also
provides link to the website of South Asia
Housing Finance Forum launched in
January, 2010.

!ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ$ﬂﬂ%§wgﬂqlﬂ T RS B | [ BT
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Mesting with All State Level Convenar Banks on Interest
Urban Poor (ISHUP) on June 08, 201

Canver o National Housing Ba

o

- 1 L - i
Meeting with All SLBC Convenors on Interest Subsidy Scheme for Housing the Urban Poor- Seen in the picture from L to R- Shri AP Saxena,
DGM, NHB; Shri V. K. Badami, General Manager, NHB, Shri R. V. Verma , CMD, NHB, Shri S.K.Singh, Joint Secretary to the Government of India
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Composition of the Board and its
Committees

The general superintendence, direction and
management of the affairs of the business of
the Bank are vested in the Board of Directors,
which acts on business principles with due
regard to public interest. The Board of
Directors has been constituted in accordance
with the provisions of the National Housing
Bank Act, 1987 (Central Act No. 53 of 1987).
The Board is headed by the Chairman and
Managing Director, who is appointed under
Section 6 (1) (a) of the Act; with eleven other
Directors appointed or nominated as per the
provisions of Section 6 (1) (b) to (f) of the Act.
The composition of eleven Directors includes
four Independent Directors, two nominated
by Reserve Bank of India, three amongst the
officials of the Central Government, and two
amongst the officials of the State
Governments.

The Board has constituted three Committees,
viz. (a) Executive Committee of Directors [EC],
(b) Audit Committee of the Board [ACB] and
(c) Remuneration Committee of Directors [RC]
to enable better and focused attention on the
affairs of the Bank. The functions of the EC,
ACB and RC are well-defined and the Board
has delegated certain powers to these
Committees. The Board/ Committee meetings
areheld atregularintervals.

During the year 2009-10, the Board met five
times, the Executive Committee met three
times, the Audit Committee of the Board
met six times and Remuneration Committee
met once.

The following changes have taken place in the
Board of Directors of the Bank -

Shri Alok Nigam, IAS, Joint Secretary to
Government of India, Department of Financial
Services, Ministry of Finance with effect from
09-12-2009 in place of Shri Amitabh Verma,
IAS; and

ii.

23.3

234

Shri Ashok Dongre, IAS, Secretary to
Government of Tamil Nadu, Housing &
Urban Development Department with
effect from 24-02-2010 in place of Shri
Surjit K. Chaudhary, IAS, the then Principal
Secretary to Government of Tamil Nadu,
Housing & Urban Development
Department.

Annual Financial Inspection for year
ended June 2009

The Reserve bank of India (RBI) conducted
the Annual Financial inspection of the Bank
under Section 45 N of the RBI Act, 1934 with
reference toits position as on June 30, 2009.

The compliance has been submitted to the
RBI after getting the same approved by the
Audit Committee of Board.

Auditors
Statutory Audit

The accounts of the Bank for the financial
year 2009-10 were audited by M/s. Aiyar
and Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi
who were appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Bank for the year 2009-10 by
the Reserve Bank of India. The report of the
Auditors is given in the Annual Accounts
section of this Report.

Internal and Concurrent Audit

The Internal Audit functions of the Bank for
the year 2009-10 were outsourced to a firm
of Chartered Accountants, M/sS.P. Chopra
and Co., New Delhi. Concurrent Audit of
Treasury Operations and day-to-day
operations of accounts were also
outsourced to a reputed firm of Chartered
Accountants, M/s K. S. Kohli, New Delhi.

24

Human Resources I

118
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Staff Strength & Recruitment

The total staff strength of the Bank, as on
30th June, 2010, stood at 89 including 7
Management Trainees. As per the new

24.2
2421

2422
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Recruitment & Selection Policy, the
candidates recruited with effect from
January 9, 2008 through campus
recruitment in both Scales I and II are
initially taken as Management Trainees for a
period of one year. Accordingly,
8 Management Trainees (in Scale I) from
various reputed Management Institutes
joined the Bank through Campus
Recruitment. Besides this, 7 officers
including 3 Advisors are also engaged in the
Bank’s service on contract basis. During the
year, 8 officers were relieved from the
services of the Bank which included 2
Management Trainees, 2 Assistant
Managers, 1 Deputy Manager, 1 Deputy
General Manager, 1 General Manager and
1 Principal Advisor (on Deputation) on
account of retirement /resignation.
Training

To upgrade the skills and enhance their
proficiency, the Bank deputed its officers for
various training and management
development programmes besides its in-
house programmes. During the year, 88
officers attended various training
programmes. This includes 13 officers who
attended International Programmes and 75
officers attended National level
programmes from senior to middle
management and below. The officers were
nominated to programmes at National
Level institutes such as National Institute of
Bank Management (NIBM), Indian Institute
of Management (IIM), Indian Banks
Association (IBA), College of Agricultural
Banking (CAB) etc.

An In-house Training Programme on
“Understanding & Analysis of Financial
Statements “was conducted on 24th
October, 2009 at NHB, New Delhi. Senior
faculty members from Bank of India
were invited. A total of 51 officers
attended the Workshop.

A
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24.3

24.4

24.5

A two-day Workshop on “Affordable
Housing: Capacity Building” was
conducted on 15th & 16th January, 2010 at
NHB, New Delhi. Eminent Speakers from
International Finance Corporation, Monitor
Group and ICRA Management Consulting
Services Limited were invited. A total of 51
officers attended the Training.

A Guest Lecture on “Leadership: Good
to Great” was organized at NHB, New
Delhi on January 18, 2010. Also, Guest
Lecture on “Sub-prime Crisis in USA -
Causes and Lessons” was organized on
February 1, 2010.

Business Review Conference of Senior
officers

A mid-term Budget-cum-Business Review
Conference of Senior Officers was held on
20th February, 2010 at New Delhi. All the
senior management officers participated in
the Conference.

Mentor Scheme

The Bank has introduced a “Mentor Scheme”
to help the new officers fit well into the
organisation by quickly developing a good
understanding of the Bank, its vision &
goals. The Scheme has now been extended
to the Management Trainees on the same
lines as it was applicable to the officers in
Scalel & Scalell.

E-learning Course on Housing Finance

An E-learning course on Housing Finance
has been introduced in the Bank for the
benefit of the officers by engaging Indian
Institute of Banking & Finance to develop
contents for the course. As an incentive it
has been decided to pay one time
Honorarium of ¥ 4,000/- to the Officers
and Management Trainees who
successfully complete the above Course,
through self study.




arffe Rare 2009-10 ¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

25

Rajbhasha I

251

25.2

25.3

254

25.5

National Housing Bank has always been
committed towards the successful and
effective implementation of the Official
Language Policy of the Government of India
and has initiated suitable and effective 256
measures for the progress of Hindi in

the Bank.

Adherence to the provisions laid down by
the Government of India viz. replying to all
Hindi/bilingual communications in Hindi,
issuance of documents under Sec 3(3) of the
Rajbhasha Act in bilingual form, bilingual
printing of reports and publications of the
Bank, bilingual printing of stationery items
etc. are effectively implemented and being
monitored. Hindi Workshops are
conducted at regular intervals to promote
Hindi. On a daily basis, a word written in
English and Hindi on the Notice Board as
"Aaj Ka Shabd" is sent to all Bank officers by
internal mail also.

"Hindi Chetna Mas"
promote the usage of Hindi in day-to-day
functioning of the Bank. During the
celebrations of the Hindi Chetna month
from 15 August, 2009 to 14 September, 2009,
seven competitions were held wherein a

25.7

is celebrated to

25.8

large number of officers of the Bank
participated with great zeal. A Hindi
documentary film on "Jawahar Lal Nehru",
intwo parts, was also screened.

The Bank also organized a Delhi State Level
"extempore speech competition" for Delhi
based Banks and Financial Institutions. 23 559
officers from 12 banks had participated in

the competition. Judges were invited from

outside Institutions for the competition and

the participants who had got first, second

and third positions were awarded prizes.

Various incentive Schemes have also been
launched for officers from time to time so as
toincrease the usage of Hindi in their official

120
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work. The Departmental Rajbhasha
Implementation Committee of the Bank
meets regularly (once in three months) to
review the progress in usage of Hindi at the
Head Office and the Regional Office at
Mumbai.

Parliamentary Rajbhasha Committee
visited the NHB Representative Office,
Hyderabad in October, 2009 to review the
progress of Hindi in official work. The
Representative of the Bank explained the
working & limitations of the Hyderabad
office. The Committee appreciated the
progress made in the official use of Hindi
during the period and the Convenor of the
Committee praised the Bank for successful
conduct of the programme.

The web-site of the Bank is made available
in Unicode Font as per the directives of the
Department of Rajbhasha, Ministry of
Home Affairs. Further, the Delhi Bank
Nagar Rajbhasha Implementation
Committee has launched a joint Web-site in
February, 2010 in which various functions
of the Bank have also been shown ina page.
The Bank has also been awarded First Prize
of "Rajbhasha Shield" for the maximum
Hindi work done during the year 2008-09 by
the Delhi Bank Nagar Rajbhasha
Implementation Committee consecutively
for the second year. Delhi Bank Nagar
Rajbhasha Implementation Committee had
also published two articles written by NHB
officers in their house magazine 'Bank
Bharti'.

“Awas Bharti', the quarterly Hindi
magazine published by the Bank has been
enriched both in terms of content and
readers. The patrika Awas Bharti had been
awarded First Prize for two years
consecutively by Delhi Bank NARAKAS.
The magazine also won Fourth Prize in an
all India competition organized by the
Reserve Bank of India for the year 2007-08.

()
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26.1

26.2

Knowledge Centre I

Knowledge Centre, NHB

Knowledge Centre was established at the
Head Office of the Bank to facilitate learning
by acquiring additional knowledge and
application through its effective
dissemination. Since the inception of
Knowledge Centre in 1989, it has seen many
changes. It has transformed itself from
manually managed to a fully automated
library through library automation software
LIBSYS. The knowledge centre acts as the
main learning resource centre of the Bank
and provides Current Awareness Service
(CAS) and Selective Dissemination of
Information (SDI) through Banks intranet to
meet the requirements of the Bank'’s officers
for training and research work related to
housing, economics, banking, risk
management and other related fields.

As on date, a core collection of over 5500
Hindi/English books are available on
various subjects such as architecture,
housing, economics, banking, fiction,
literature, finance, poetry etc. Knowledge
Centre has also added digital media along
with print in its core collection. In addition
knowledge centre is subscribing to more

A

than 50 foreign and Indian print/e-journals
related to finance, housing, economics,
management and other technical/ non
technical subjects.

27

Future Outlook I

121

271

27.2

The global financial crisis which peaked
during 2008-09, continues to impact the
economies and the sectors across the globe.
Coordinated fiscal and monetary measures
of many developed and developing
countries have significantly eased the
burden of adjustments caused by the crisis.
A large part of the developing world
showed relatively early signs of recovery as
their economies continued to be dominated
by domestic demand and domestic savings.
Amidst the uncertainties, the capital flows
to different economies and sectors
continues to remain uneven across region
and time. The challenge in the Indian
housing market is primarily in the low and
moderate income segment. Though there is
no lack of demand for housing, there is
shortage of credit flow. Though they may be
good markets, they are not perceived as
good credits. There is need to develop this
market on a sustainable basis from the
demand and supply angles. A better
understanding and appreciation of the risks
and strengths of this growing and largely
unserved market will help in exploring
market based solution for this segment of
the population.

To meet the housing needs of the lower
segments of the population, including the
slums, a more dedicated approach will be
required. Explicit Government support, in
the form of subsidies and infrastructure
provision will considerably leverage
investments in housing from the
individuals as well as the lending
institutions. It is estimated that 40 per cent
of the Indian population will be residing in
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the urban India by 2030. Migration of rural
residents to the urban centres in search of
jobs and employment will continue to pose
challenge to urban planning and housing. In
the absence of formal solution, slums will
continue to proliferate. Besides the housing
component, infrastructure also requires
planning and investments. Though coping
with the situation will not be easy, it
requires a multi-faceted approach that
combines physical planning with
investment in infrastructure, developing
satellite settlements around Tier I and Tier II
cities with affordable housing supply to
accommodate the population inflow. As the
problem grows in magnitude, it will require
the synergies of the Government’s
budgetary support and institutional
lending support to improve the
affordability of loan for the borrowers. On

122
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the supply side as well, a coordinated
approach between the State Government
and local bodies together with the private
sector construction agencies will help
achieving therequired scales.

Towards mitigating the housing shortage,
projected at 26.53 million units in urban
areas by 2012, the Government at the Centre
and the State levels is implementing
programmes in both urban and rural areas.
The overarching objective of “inclusive
housing” will be better served if the banks
and the financing institutions extend their
outreach and penetration into this market
segment. On the other hand, the
Government’s Policies for the housing
sector must focus on “inclusive housing”
together with “market stability” that will
enhance institutional and financial
deepening of the sector.

NATIONAL HOUSING BANK

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
2009-10

(JULY, 2009 TO JUNE, 2010)
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AIYAR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of
National Housing Bank as at 30th June, 2010
and the Profit and Loss Account annexed there
to for the year ended on that date. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the
Bank's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in India.
Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Wereportas follows:

a) The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss
Account have been drawn up in
accordance with the National Housing
Bank Act, 1987 and regulations framed
there under for General Fund and for
Special Fund in accordance with the
provisions of National Housing Bank
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607, AKASH DEEP

26-A, BARAKHAMBA ROAD
NEW DELHI - 110001
PHONE: 23313807,23316117
23316125, FAX: 23310281
e-mail: info@aiyarco.com
aiyarco@eth.net

(Slum Improvement and Low Cost
Housing Fund) Regulations, 1993.

b) In our opinion, proper books of
account as required by law have been
kept by the Bank so far as appear from
our examinations of those books.

C) The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss
Account dealt with by thisreportarein
agreement with the books of account.

d) Where we have called for information
and explanations, such information
and explanations have been given to
us and we have found them to be

satisfactory.
We further report that
1. We are unable to form an opinion on

the treatment given by the Bank in
respect of the following matters and
the impact that the same may have on
the accounts of the Bank as the final
decisions have yet to be delivered by
the Courts and the sums determined.

a) X 237.06 Crores received from State Bank
of Saurashtra, since amalgamated with
State Bank of India pursuant to a decree by
the Special Court and others and included
in 'Other Liabilities' [Note No.17.1].

b) X 149.37 Crores appearing as 'Other
Assets' representing X 95.40 Crores paid
by the Bank to State Bank of Saurashtra
since amalgamated with State Bank of
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India and X 53.97 Crores paid by the Bank
to Custodians pursuant to the orders of the
Special Court [Note No.l7.2].

2. In our opinion the Bank has complied with
the Accounting Standards issued by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India except (a) non revaluation of foreign
borrowings in accordance with AS-11
resulting in understatement of both assets
& liabilities to the extent of ¥ 14.29 crores-
refer para 14.1 of notes to accounts and
(b) non provision of deferred tax assets as
per AS-22 on staff benevolent fund- 0.93
Crores resulting in deferred tax liability
being overstated to that extent.

3. Further, subject to our comments in
paralto2above, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to
us and as shown by the books of the
Bank the said accounts read together
with the notes thereon, give the
information required by the National
Housing Bank Act, 1987 and

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 Sep 2010

regulations framed there under for
General Fund and for Special Fund in
accordance with the provisions of
National Housing Bank (Slum
Improvement and Low Cost Housing
Fund) Regulations, 1993 in the manner
so required and in conformity with the
accounting principles generally
accepted in India, in the case of:

a) The Balance Sheet of the Bank read
together with notes thereon &
Significant Accounting policies, is a
full fair Balance Sheet containing all
the necessary particulars and is
properly drawn up so as to exhibit a
true and fair view of the affairs of the
Bank as at30th June 2010; and

b) The Profit and Loss Account read
together with notes thereon &
Significant Accounting Policies shows
a true balance of profit of the bank for
the year ended on that date.

For AIYAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(A.K. Batra)

Partner

Membership No.80169
Firm Regn. No. 001174N
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National Housing Bank

Balance Sheet
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Previous Year Liabilities Schedules Current Year
% Crore % Crore
450.00 1. Capital I 450.00
1,791.99 2. Reserves 11 2,072.41
0.00 3. Profit & Loss Account I 0.00
3,582.22 4. Bonds and Debentures v 8,351.81
2,248.13 5. Deposits A% 4,375.75
10,900.69 6. Borrowings VI 6,457.21
76.51 7. Deferred Tax Liability (net) 82.30
601.28 8. Current Liabilities and Provisions VIl 688.67
272.49 9. Other Liabilities VIII 272.49
3.98 10.  HLA deposits with banks & HFCs 2.79
- as per contra (Ref. Note 22.3)
19,927.29 TOTAL 22,753.43
K.N.Kumbhare N. Udaya Kumar R. K. Pandey
Regional Manager Deputy General Manager General Manager
R. V. Verma

Chairman & Managing Director

Directors
Vidyadhar K. Phatak | Jayshree A. Vyas | Shyamala Gopinath | Lakshmi Chand
Kiran Dhingra | Alok Nigam | Sanjay Kumar Rakesh | G. S. Sandhu
New Delhi, September 23, 2010
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as at 30th June, 2010

Previous Year Assets Schedules Current Year
% Crore T Crore
1,498.30 1.  Cash and Bank Balances IX 1,789.02
1,230.05 2. Investments X 858.15
16,850.96 3. Loans and Advances XI 19,836.66
20.76 4. Fixed Assets XII 19.41
323.24 5. Other Assets XIII 247.40
3.98 6. HLA deposits with banks & HFCs 2.79

- as per contra (out of this Rs.0.04 Crore

used as automatic refinance)
19,927.29 TOTAL 22,753.43
129.67 Contingent Liability XV 78.88
Notes forming part of Accounts XV
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As per our attached Report of even date

For Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 001174N

(A. K. Batra)

Partner

Membership No. 80169
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Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 30th June, 2010
Previous Year Expenditure Current Year Previous Year Income Current Year
% Crore % Crore % Crore % Crore
1,272.90 1. Interest on Borrowings and Deposits 1,051.68 1. Interest on Loans & Advances and Bank Deposits:
4.36 2. Staff Salaries, Allowances and Terminal Benefits 8.67 .
0.09 3. Directors' and Committee Members Fees and Expenses 0.15 1493.19 (i) Loans & Advances 1,338.20
012 4. Audit Fees 0.08 87.03 (if) Bank Deposits 105.87 1,444.07
1.37 5. Rent, Taxes, Electricity and Insurance 1.74 474 2. Interest Income and Profit on Interest Rate Swaps (including 32.35
0.39 6. Postage, Telegrams, Telex and Telephones 0.37 profit of Rs.2.30 Crore (PY-Rs.0.64 Crore) on cancellation of contracts)
0.03 Z ]S“a“{ Charg;s o 4 Adverti 1.82 39.49 | 3. Income from Investments 31.88
' .tathne.ry, rinting an vertisement 1.65 4. Profit on Sale of Investments 1.89
0.53 (i) Printing and Stationery 0.47
1.19 (ii) Advertisement 0.26 0.73 29.04 5. Profit on Purchase and Sale of Mutual Fund 9.11
2.62 9. Depreciation 2.20 0.32 6.  Premium on Forward Exchange Contract 0.51
8.78 10. Brokerage, Guarantee Fee and Other Finance Charges 16.61 0.02 7 Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 0.01
(including Rs.12.83 Crore (PY-Rs.4.00 Crore) paid . .
towards prepayment levy) 9.81 8. Other Income (including Rs.15.74 Crore (PY-Rs.8.56 Crore) 22.89
3.32 11. Stamp duty on Borrowings 6.32 towards levy on prepayment of loan)
1.48 12. Travelling Expenses (including Rs.0.16 Crore (PY-Rs.0.35 Crore) 0.97 (5.00) 9.  Gains / (Loss) on Forward Exchange Contracts 2.20
towards forelg,“ travel expense) 13.68 10. Provisions no longer required written back 0.98
7.58 13. Other Expenditure 7.47 . ) . o )
6.52 14. Interest paid on Interest Rate Swaps 0.00 7.08 11. Provisions and Contingencies (excess provision on investment reversed) 6.77
6.77 15. Depreciation / Amortisation on Investment 0.31
0.00 16. Loss on Shifting of Securities 7.51
(5.46) 17. Loss/(Gain) on Revaluation of Foreign Deposits & Borrowings 1.92
18.10 18. Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts u/s 36(1)(viia)(c) 22.00
of Income Tax Act, 1961
0.06 19. Wealth Tax 0.07
0.03 20. Deferred Tax 5.79
114.50 21. Income Tax 136.00
0.15 22. Fringe Benefit Tax 0.00
235.62 23. Balance of Profit ¢/d 280.25
1,681.05 TOTAL 1,552.66 1,681.05 TOTAL 1,552.66
7.08 24, Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve 6.59 235.62 12.  Balance of Profit b/d 280.25
15.70 25. Transfer to Special Reserve in terms of Section 36(1) (viii) 26.00 6.59 13. Transfer from Investment Fluctuation Reserve 0.00
of Income Tax Act, 1961
2.35 26. Transfer to Staff Benevolent Fund 2.80
202.33 27. Transfer to Reserve Fund 235.13
14.75 28. Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 9.73
242.21 TOTAL 280.25 242.21 TOTAL 280.25
K.N.Kumbbhare N. Udaya Kumar R. K. Pandey
Regional Manager| Deputy General Manager General Manager As per our attached Report of even date
For Aiyar & Co.
R.V. Verma Chartered Accountants
Chairman & Managing Director
Firm No. 001174N
Directors
Vidyadhar K. Phatak | Jayshree A. Vyas | Shyamala Gopinath | Lakshmi Chand (A.K. Batra)
Partner
Kiran Dhingra | Alok Nigam | Sanjay Kumar Rakesh | G.S.Sandhu Membership No. 80169
New Delhi, September 23, 2010
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at 30th June, 2010

Previous Year Schedules Current Year
% Crore % Crore
SCHEDULE - I
CAPITAL
450.00 1.  Authorised 450.00
450.00 2. Issued and Paid-up (wholly subscribed by the Reserve Bank of India) 450.00
450.00 450.00
SCHEDULE - II
RESERVES (X Crore)
Description Opening | Additions Deductions Closing
Balance Balance
1. Reserve Fund 1,217.87 235.13 0.00 1,453.00
2. Special Fund (Slum Improvement 256.72 9.73 0.00 266.45
& Low Cost Housing Fund)
3. Special Reserve in terms of Section 36(1) (viii) 292.40 26.00 0.00 318.40
of Income Tax Act, 1961
4. Investment Fluctuation Reserve 13.49 6.59 0.00 20.08
5. Taxation Reserve 7.45 0.00 0.00 7.45
6. Staff Benevolent Fund 4.06 3.06 % 0.09 7.03
Total 1,791.99 280.51 0.09 2,072.41
$ inclusive of interest earned on deposits of ¥ 0.26 Crore.
130

Previous Year Schedules Current Year
% Crore % Crore
SCHEDULE - III
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
14.75 Balance as per Profit and Loss A/c annexed 9.73
14.75 Less: Profit of Special Fund (Slum Improvement & Low 9.73 0.00
Cost Housing Fund) transferred to Special Fund A/c —
0.00 0.00
SCHEDULE - IV
BONDS AND DEBENTURES
228.00 Bonds (Guaranteed by GOI) 168.00
1,050.00 Zero Coupon Bonds 1,050.00
570.35 Less: Deferred Discount on Zero Coupon Bonds 510.72 539.28
890.00 NHB Bonds 6,410.00
Priority Sector Bonds:
385.00 (a) Tax-free Bonds 205.00
452.00 (b) Taxable Bonds 442.00
453.00 (c) Special Series Bonds 431.90 1,078.90
694.57 Capital Gain Bonds 155.63
3,582.22 8,351.81
SCHEDULE - V
DEPOSITS
166.71 1. Deposits from Housing Finance Companies 240.34
1,760.33 2. Deposits from Banks under Rural Housing Fund 3,763.46
321.09 3. Other Deposits from Public 371.95
2,248.13 4,375.75
SCHEDULE - VI
BORROWINGS
From Reserve Bank of India:
26.32 (a) Line of Credit 23.69
3,979.81 (b) Special Refinance Facility 0.00 23.69
From Other Sources:
(a) In India
0.00 (i) Borrowing against Term Deposits (Secured 770.00
against lien of Term Deposits of Rs.800 Crore)
3,070.00 (if) Borrowing through Term Loan 4,420.00
1,947.85 (iii) Commercial Papers 47.58
960.29 (iv) Certificate of Deposits 0.00 5,237.58
435.30 (b) Outside India 400.92
481.12 CBLO Borrowings (Secured against pledge of 795.02
Govt. Security and Treasury Bills with CCIL)
10,900.69 6,457.21
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at 30th June, 2010

Previous Year Schedules Current Year
% Crore % Crore
SCHEDULE - VII
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
1. Interest Payable:
51.65 (a) Interest Payable on CG Bond 9.81
3.38 (b) Unclaimed Interest on CG Bond 3.07
59.17 (c) Interest Payable on Other Bonds and Debentures 217.68
39.82 (d) Interest Payable on Deposits 80.69
169.27 (e) Interest Payable on Other Borrowings 53.49
0.04 (f) Interest Payable on CBLO Borrowing 0.12 364.86
2. Provision for Retirement Benefits:
0.42 (a) Medical Expense for Retired Officers 0.49
0.81 (b) Leave Encashment 1.01
1.08 (c) Gratuity 1.42
2.40 (d) Leave Travel Concession 2.79
1.14 (e) Sick Leave 1.39
0.09 (f) Pension 1.07 8.17
3. Other Provisions:
413 (a) Provision for Forward Exchange Contracts 1.35
81.71 (b) Provision for Standard Assets 81.71
72.52 (c) Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts u/s 36(1) (viia)(c)
of Income Tax Act, 1961 94.52
10.00 (d) Provision for future Non Performing Assets 10.00
0.23 (e) Provision for HLA Deposits 0.23
4.88 (f) Others 5.81 193.62
3.15 4. Deferred Profit on Interest Rate Swaps 7.40
5. Amount Received in advance from GOI for adjustment
27.11 of exchange loss on USAID Borrowing 22.36
12.41 6. Redemption Payable Account 25.60
55.32 7. Capital Gains Bonds Overdue Account 66.11
8. UN-HABITAT Revolving Fund for implementation
0.55 of Water & Sanitation Projects 0.55
601.28 688.67
SCHEDULE - VIII
OTHER LIABILITIES
237.20 1. Unsettled transactions of 1991-92 (Ref. Note 17.1) 237.20
35.29 2. Interest Payable on unsettled transaction (Ref. Note 17.3) 35.29
272.49 272.49
SCHEDULE - IX
CASH & BANK BALANCES
@ 1. Cash/ Cheques in Hand @
0.09 2. Current Account with Reserve Bank of India 0.20
3. Balance with other banks:
(a) In India
16.49 (i) Current Accounts 8.08
1,018.32 (if) Term Deposit with banks 1,350.02
1.50 (iii) Term Deposits with banks(Staff Benevolent Fund) 3.83 1,361.93
(b) Outside India
461.90 Term Deposit with banks 426.89
1,498.30 1,789.02

Previous Year Schedules Current Year
% Crore % Crore
SCHEDULE - X
INVESTMENTS
(at cost or market value whichever is less)
66.00 1. Government Securities (Pledged with CCIL for 58.19
CBLO operations)
6.59 Less : Depreciation 0.00 58.19
447.38 2. Treasury Bills (Pledged with CCIL for CBLO operations 749.90
511 3. Shares of Housing Finance Institutions 491
0.17 Less : Depreciation 0.00 491
0.53 4. Shares of Building Material Company 0.53
0.53 Less : Depreciation 0.53 0.00
5. Stocks, shares, bonds, debentures and Securities of
other Institutions:
673.00 (a) Units of Mutual Funds 0.00
(b) Investment in Pass Through Certificates of the SPV
0.32 Trust of which NHB is Trustee 0.15
45.00 (c) Subordinated Bonds 45.00 45.15
1,230.05 858.15
SCHEDULE - XI
LOANS AND ADVANCES
I Refinance
1. Housing Finance Institutions:
10,040.71 (a) Housing Finance Companies 10,860.57
79.66 (b) Co-operative Housing Finance Societies 92.89
2. Scheduled Banks:
5,568.69 (a) Commercial Banks 7,760.64
200.70 (b) Regional Rural Banks 343.16
231.20 (c) Urban Co-operative Banks 342.85 8,446.65
3. State Co-operative Agriculture Rural Development
86.94 Banks/Land Development Banks 53.15
II Direct Lending
642.76 4. Housing Boards, Development Authorities, etc. 382.85
0.30 5. Water and Sanitation Project under UN-HABITAT 0.55
16,850.96 Gross Loans & Advances 19,836.66
0.00 Less: Provisions for Non Performing Assets 0.00
16,850.96 Net Loans and Advances 19,836.66

@ Amount less than T 0.50 Lakhs
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SCHEDULE - XII
FIXED ASSETS

qiffer RUIE 2000-10 * ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10 | '"' | qiffe RUrE 2000-10 *  ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10
w3
< 8 I X a| S 8 S {3 = Previous Year Schedules Current Year
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Schedule XV

Notes forming parts of the accounts
(A) Significant Accounting Policies
General

The Bank prepares its accounts on accrual
basis in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles.

Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account
have been drawn in accordance with the
requirements of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987 and National Housing Bank
General Regulations, 1988 framed there
under.

The preparation of financial statements
requires that management makes estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities as of the
date of the financial statements and the
reported income and expense during the
reporting period. Management believes
that the estimates used in the preparation of
the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Interest on loans and advances, except in
respect of non-performing assets, is
accounted for on accrual basis. In respect of
non-performing assets, interest is
accounted for on receipt basis.

Certain items of income (say, prepayment
levy, penalty and miscellaneous receipts)
are recognized on cash basis.

Investments
Classification

Investments are classified into “Held for
Trading”, “ Available for Sale” and “Held to
Maturity” categories as below:

The investments that are acquired with the
intention to trade by taking advantage of
the short-term price/interest rate
movements are classified under “Held for

136

A

3.2.2.

3.2.3.

3.2.4.

Trading”. These investments are held under
this category upto 90 days from the date of
acquisition.

Investments which are intended to be held
up to maturity are classified as “Held to
Maturity”.

Investments which are not classified in
either of the above categories are classified
as “Available for Sale”.

Valuation:

In determining acquisition cost of
investment:

Brokerage/commission received on
subscriptions is deducted from the cost of
securities.

Brokerage and transfer charges incurred at
the time of acquisition are capitalized.

Interest accrued up to the date of acquisition
of securities (i.e. broken period interest) is
excluded from the acquisition cost and
charged to therevenue.

Individual scrips classified under “Held for
Trading “category, where market
quotations are available, are valued atlower
of book value or market value.
Depreciation, if any, is aggregated
category-wise as per the classification of
investments prescribed by RBI and
recognized in the profit and loss account,
while appreciation is ignored. The book
value of the individual scrip is changed.

Investments under “Held to Maturity”
category are carried at acquisition cost.
Wherever the book value is higher than the
face value/redemption value, the excess
amount is amortized equally over the
remaining period of maturity.

Investments under “Available for Sale”
category are valued at cost or market price,
whichever is lower. Where market
quotations are not available, market value
for this purpose is arrived at on the basis of
realizable price computed as per Fixed

3.2.5.

3.2.6.

3.2.7.

4.2
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Income Money Market and Derivatives
Association of India/Primary Dealers
Association of India / RBI guidelines.
Depreciation, if any, is aggregated
category-wise as per the classification of
investments prescribed by RBI and
recognized in the Profit and Loss Account,
while appreciation is ignored. The book
value of the individual scrip is not changed.

Treasury bills and commercial paper are
valued at carrying cost.

In respect of debentures/bonds etc., where
income/ principal is not serviced, provision
for depreciation is made as per norms of
RBI.

Investment in equity shares of housing
finance companies / building material
industries are classified under the AFS
category and is valued at cost or market
value or on the basis of NAV (Net Asset
Value) as ascertained from the latest
balance sheet of the company where such
companies are not listed whichever is less
and in the absence thereof at the rate of ¥ 1
per company.

Loans and advances

Subscription to Special Rural Housing
Debentures (SRHDs) of State Co-operative
Agricultural & Rural Development Banks
(ARDBs)/Land Development Banks (LDBs)
in respect of loans for rural housing by their
branches/primary banks is shown under
Loansand Advances.

Advances are classified into Standard, Sub-
standard, Doubtful and Loss assets and
provisions are made in accordance with the
prudential norms prescribed by RBI.

Advances are stated net of provision
towards non-performing advances.

Provision for standard assets as per the RBI
Guidelines and provisionu/s 36(1)(viia) (c)
of Income Tax Act, 1961 for bad and
doubtful assets is grouped in the Balance

A
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Sheet

under

Provisions’.

Fixed assets

‘Current Liabilities and

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation.

Assets costing below % 1000 are charged to
revenue.

Depreciation on various assets is provided
on the following basis:-

Assets

Method of Depreciation

Rate (%)

Premises

Written
down value

5

Furniture
& Fixtures

Straight Line

10

Computers
& Micro-
processors

Straight Line

33.33

Other
Assets

Straight Line

20

54

55

Depreciation on addition to assets is
calculated for full period irrespective of the
date of acquisition.

As separate valuation of land in the value of
premises is not available, depreciation on
value of premises (including land) has been
charged in respect of leasehold premises of
the Bank.

Staff Benefits

Liability for Gratuity, Pension, Sick Leave,
Leave Encashment, Medical Retirement
Benefits and Leave Travel Concession is
determined on the basis of actuarial
valuation at the end of the period.
Incremental liability is provided for by
charging to the Profitand Loss Account.

Pre-paid expenses

Pre-paid expenditure of ¥ 1 lakhs and below
relating to maintenance contract, insurance,
subscription/membership fee etc., is
charged to current period expenditure.
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Income Tax

Provision for Income Tax for the current
period is determined on the basis of taxable
income computed after due consideration
of legal opinion obtained onrelevantissues.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized, on timing
difference, being the difference between the
taxable income and accounting income for
the year and quantified using the tax rates
and laws enacted or substantially enacted as
on the Balance Sheet date.

Wealth Tax

Wealth Tax is computed on the net taxable
wealth, in possession of the Bank, as per
Wealth Tax Act, 1957.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

As per Accounting Standard (AS-11)
(Revised 2003) on Accounting for the Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India; following accounting
treatment is given to foreign exchange
transactions:

Assets and liabilities in foreign currency are
revalued at the exchange rate notified by
Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of
India (FEDALI) as at the close of the year and
resultant Exchange difference on
revaluation is charged to Profit and Loss
Account under the head “Gain / Loss on
revaluation of foreign Deposits &
Borrowings”; and

Income and Expenditure items are
translated at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of the transaction.

Accounting for Foreign Exchange Contracts

The Bank enters into Foreign Exchange
Contracts to establish the amount of
Reporting currency required or available at
the settlement date of a transaction.

The foreign exchange contracts are revalued
at the exchange rates notified by FEDAI at
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A

12.

(B)
13.
13.1

13.2

the year end. The resultant gain/loss on
revaluation is recognized in the Profit &
Loss Account under the head ‘Gain/Loss on
revaluation of Forward Exchange Contract
Account’. Premium / discount is accounted
over the life of the contract.

The Profit / Loss on cancellation and
renewal of foreign exchange contracts are
recognised in profit & Loss Account under
the head ‘Gain/Loss on Forward Exchange
Contract Account’.

Derivative Contracts

Interest rate swaps which hedges interest
bearing asset or liability is accounted for on
accrual basis. Gain or losses on the
termination of swaps are recognized over
the remaining contractual life of the swap or
the remaining life of the asset/liability;
whichever is shorter.

NOTES
Fixed Assets

Registration formalities are in progress in
respect of commercial property situated at
India Habitat Centre, Lodhi Road, New
Delhi and residential properties situated at
Jangpura Extension, New Delhi and at Tilak
Nagar, Mumbai having gross value (i.e.,
acquisition cost) of ¥24.58 Crores.

In respect of the office space acquired at
India Habitat Centre (IHC), Lodhi Road,
New Delhi, the exact cost has not been
apportioned by IHC among the different
allottees. The tripartite agreement, in this
respect, is yet to be executed between Land
and Development Office (GOI), IHC and
institution concerned (i.e., NHB). As such, a
sum of ¥ 14.44 Crores has been capitalised
by the Bank on the basis of payments made
to IHC. Depreciation on this leasehold office
premises (including land) is charged on
WDV @ 5%. The lease amount could not be
amortised over the lease period which is not
known in the absence of lease agreement.

14.
14.1
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External Borrowings

Under the Housing Guarantee Programme
of USAID, the Bank had raised a loan of US
$25 million in the US Capital Market in the
year 1990-91. The loan is repayable in forty
equal half yearly installments commencing
from October, 2001. The outstanding
balance of ¥ 27.21 Crores as on June 30, 2010
is included under the head “borrowings
from other sources-outside India”.
Government of India (GOI) had guaranteed
the loan and also agreed to bear the
exchange loss, if any. The foreign currency
funds received under USAID Programme
has been parked with Government of India
against rupee funds made available by the
Government to NHB. Consequently, the
exchange risk on the foreign currency funds
is being borne by the Government of India.
In view of this, the foreign currency funds
borrowed from USAID have not been
revalued.

Had the borrowing been revalued at the
exchange rate as on June 30, 2010, total
liability towards borrowing from USAID
would have been X 63.86 Crores as against
% 27.21 Crores shown in the balance sheet.
Accordingly, ¥ 2236 Crores shown as
payable to GOI would have been converted
into recoverable of ¥ 14.29 Crores. Further,
in case the interest payable is provided at
the current exchange rate, interest payable
on the said borrowing would have been
increased by ¥ 0.56 Crores with a
corresponding receivable from GOI.
However, this has no impact on profit and
loss account of the Bank.

In 2008-09, the Bank has received a sum of
% 36.66 Crores in advance towards future
exchange loss as per the computation
submitted to GOI. After adjustment of
exchange loss till the last instalment paid in
October, 2009, the Bank is having balance of
% 22.36 Crores which has been shown as
liability under ‘current liabilities and

A
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14.2

15.

151

15.2

provision’. As per the understanding with
GOJ, the Bank has provided interest @6 % on
the outstanding amount. As per the
communication received from GOlI,
exchange loss if any, incurred by the Bank
after adjustment of exchange loss received
in advance, shall be claimed from the GOl at
the end of the period i.e. October, 2021.

The Bank had borrowed US Dollar 120
million (equivalent to ¥ 564 Crores
outstanding of which ¥ 373.71 Crores as on
June 30, 2010) from Asian Development
Bank (ADB) in two tranches of USD 100
million and USD 20 million during the year
1997 and 2002, respectively. These loans are
guaranteed by the Government of India.
The loans are repayable in half yearly
installments by 2022 and 2025, respectively.

These dollar funds were placed as deposits
with Bank of India (USD 50 million), Canara
Bank (USD 50 million) and EXIM Bank (20
million) in the overseas branches in terms of
agreements with these Banks. The deposits
are amortized in half yearly installments
which are utilized for repayment of loans
from ADB, maturing by 2022 and 2025,
respectively. In lieu of the USD deposit,
these banks have subscribed to Special
Series Bonds issued by NHB for ¥ 564 Crores
(X 431.90 Crores is outstanding as on June
30, 2010). These Special Series Bonds are
repaid in half yearly installments by 2022
and 2025, respectively.

Revaluation of Foreign Deposits and
Borrowings/Forward Exchange Contracts

During the year, net loss of ¥ 1.92 Crores on
revaluation of foreign deposits and
borrowings has been recognized in the
Profit and Loss Account under head ‘Loss
/(Gain) on revaluation of Foreign Deposits
and Borrowings’.

In view of para 14.1, the foreign currency
funds borrowed from USAID have not been
revalued as the exchange loss is recoverable
from the Government of India.
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c) Amount recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss Account is charged under the head
Gratuity, Salary, Allowances & Terminal Benefits, Medical Expense to Retired Staff, Sick Leave
and Leave Fare Concession

Amountin?

as of June 30, 2010

Defined Benefits Gratuity Leave | Medical Sick Leave Leave Travel

Encashment Concession
Current Service Cost 971,271.00 745,027.00 | 432,033.00 1,082,517.00 1,176,708.00
Interest Cost 837,531.00 627,493.00 | 326,046.00 883,527.00 1,858,659.00
Expected return on plan assets - - - - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 2,998,458.00 2,396,659.00 | 10,594.00 533,348.00 4,713,892.00
Expenses/ 4,807,260.00 3,769,180.00 | 768,673.00 2,499,392.00 7,749,259.00
(Income) recognized in the
statement of Profit and Loss
Account by debit to expense /
credit to provision no longer
required Account

d) Investmentdetails of plan assets:
The Bank has not funded the liability as on June 30, 2010. As such there isno fair value of assets.

e)  ThePrincipal Actuarial assumptions used as at the Balance Sheet date:

153  As on June 30, 2010, the Bank has 18 163 As per National Housing Bank
outstanding forward exchange contracts for (Employees’) Pension Regulations, 2003,
an aggregate amount of USD 9.230 million. the Bank provides for Pension, a defined
During the year ended ]une 30/ 2010, NHB benefit retirement plan covering all
has booked ¥ 2.20 Crore towards gain on employees who have opted for pension
forward exchange contracts in the Profit plan. ' The scheme provides a monthly
and Loss Account under the head ‘Gain / pension payment to employees at
(Loss) on Forward Exchange Contract’. Of retirement or termination of employment.
the total gain, ¥ 0.22 Crore booked on The scheme is managed by a separate trust

. and the liability for the same is recognized
maturity of contracts. . . .
on the basis of actuarial valuation at the end

16. Employee’s Benefits (AS-15) of the year in addition to Bank’s monthly

16.1  The Bank has provided the liability towards contribution to the fund. During the year
employee benefits for Gratuity, Leave endef:l June 30, 2010, the Bgnk has

. . : contributed ¥ 1.45 Crore to Pension Fund
Encashment, Medical Retirement Benefits, .
. . and charged to Profit and Loss Account
Leave Travel Concession, Sick Leave and , .
) . ) . under the head ‘Staff Salaries, Allowances
Pension on actuarial basis for its permanent . o
. ) . and Terminal Benefits’.
employees in accordance with the revised ) ] o )
AS-15issued by ICAL 164  Defined benefit Obligations: Gratuity,
Leave Encashment, Medical Benefits, Sick

16.2 The Bank is tranSferring its contribution of Leave’ and Leave Travel Concession
provident fund to Reserve Bank of India in payable onretirement / termination
respect ofits employees who have opted for 4 Methodology used in actuary calculation:
Contributory Provident Fund. During the Actuary has used the Projected Unit Credit
year ended June 30, 2010, the Bank has paid Method to assess the plan’s liabilities
an amount of ¥ 0.03 Crore towards including those related to death and service.
contribution to Provident Fun.d and the b) Reconciliation of opening and closing
same has been charged to I?rOflt and Loss balances of present value of defined benefit
Account under the head St&}ff ) Salaries, obligations and the effects during the period
Allowances and Terminal Benefits’. attributable to each of the following;:

Amount in ¥ as of June 30, 2010

Change in benefit obligations Gratuity Leave Medical | Sick Leave |Leave Travel

Encashment Concession

Present Value of Obligation 10,806,848.00 | 8,096,689.00 | 4,207,045.00 | 11,400,344.00 | 23,982,694.00

at the beginning of the year

Current Service Cost 971,271.00 745,027.00 | 432,033.00| 1,082,517.00| 1,176,708.00

Interest cost 837,531.00 627,493.00 | 326,046.00 883,527.00 | 1,858,659.00

Actuarial (Gain)/ 2,998,458.00 | 2,396,659.00 10,594.00 533,348.00 | 4,713,892.00

Loss on Obligations

Benefits paid (1,444,871.00) | (1,755,072.00) | (76,083.00) -1 (3,863,146.00)

Present Value of Obligation 14,169,237.00 | 10,110,797.00 | 4,899,635.00 | 13,899,736.00 | 27,868,807.00

at the end of the year
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Defined Benefits | Gratuity Leave Medical Sick Leave Leave Travel
Encashment Concession

Discount Rate 7.75% p.a. 7.75% p.a. 7.75% p.a. 7.75% p.a. 7.75% p.a.

Salary Escalation| 5.50% p.a. 5.50% p.a. NA 5.50% p.a. 5.50% p.a.

Rate

Expected return

on plan assets NA NA NA NA NA

Mortality Rate | LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)
published table published table published table published table published table
of Mortality Rates | of Mortality Rates |of Mortality Rates | of Mortality Rates |of Mortality Rates

Retirement Age | 60 60 60 60 60

Withdrawal 3% at younger ages | 3% at younger ages | 3% at younger ages | 3% at younger ages|3% at younger ages
and reducing to 1% | and reducing to 1% | and reducing to 1% | and reducing to 1% |and reducing to 1%
at older ages at older ages at older ages at older ages at older ages
according to according to according to according to according to
graduated scale. graduated scale. | graduated scale. graduated scale.  |graduated scale.

Morbidity Rate | ---- | - 16%. Adjustments | ----- -

could be made later
depending on the
experience of the
scheme.
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f)  Changeinplanassets

Defined Benefits

Gratuity

Leave
Encashment

Medical

Sick Leave

Leave Travel
Concession

Fair value of plan
assets at the
beginning of

the year*

Expected return
on plan assets

Actuarial Gain

Benefits paid

Employer
contributions

Fair value of plan
assets at the end
of the year

*The Bank has not funded the liability as on June 30, 2010. As such there is no fair value of assets.

g) Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets

Amount in?

as of June 30, 2010

Defined Benefits Gratuity Leave Medical Sick Leave Leave Travel

Encashment Concession
Fair valueof plan | ~  —— | | e e e
assets at the end
of the year
Liability at the 14,169,237.00 10,110,797.00 4,899,635.00 13,899,736.00 27,868,807.00
end of the year
Net asset /(Liability) |(14,169,237.00) (10,110,797.00) (4,899,635.00) (13,899,736.00) (27,868,807.00)
recognized in
Balance Sheet

17.
171

17.2

Security Transactions of 1991-92

A sum of ¥ 237.20 Crore appearing in the
Balance Sheet under the head "Other
Liabilities" includes a sum of ¥ 237.06 Crore
representing the decreed amount received
from State Bank of Saurashtra (SBS), since
amalgamated with State Bank of India in
September, 2008, in a suit filed by NHB. This
amount will be adjusted on final disposal of
the appeal filed by SBS and NHB in the
Supreme Court.

The sum of ¥149.37 Crore appearing in the
Balance Sheet under the head "Other Assets"
represents the sum of ¥ 95.40 Crore paid by
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17.3

the Bank to SBS during 1991-92 for purchase
of securities and ¥ 53.97 Crore paid by the
Bank to the custodian pursuant to the orders
of the special court. Both the amounts and
interest thereon, if any, will be adjusted on
final disposal of the appeal filed by the SBS
and NHB in the Supreme Court.

A sum of ¥ 40.25 Crore was appearing in the
books of NHB as unclaimed amount since
1991-92. While passing a Decree in the year
1999 in favour of NHB in the above suit
against SBS, the special Court noted this fact
and directed NHB to deposita sum of ¥ 40.22
Crore with the Custodian, which was duly
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deposited. Provision of ¥ 35.29 Crore for
"Other Liabilities" interest has been made on
the above sum from 1991-92 till date of
deposit with the Custodian. The provision of
% 35.29 Crore and the unclaimed balance of
% 0.03 Crore is being shown under the head
" Other Liabilities " and will be adjusted on
final disposal of the appeal pending in the
Supreme Courtasreferred above.

The disputes between NHB & SBI and NHB
& Grindlays Bank (since amalgamated with
Standard Chartered Bank) have been settled
and no claim exists between the parties
against each other, However, any money to
be recovered from the assets of the late Sh.
Harshad Mehta by SBI and Grindlays Bank
(since amalgamated with Standard
Chartered Bank) in accordance with the

18.

19.
19.1

decrees passed in their favour by the Special
Court will be shared by them with NHB in
the agreed manner and will be accounted for
onactual receipt.

Segment Reporting

The Bank’s operations predominantly
comprise only one segment i.e. financial
activities. Hence, there are no separate
reportable segments as per the Accounting
Standard on “Segment Reporting” (AS-17)
issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Related Party Transactions
As per the Accounting Standard on “Related
Party Disclosures” (AS-18) issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
the necessary disclosure is made as under:

S. No. Name of the Related Party Nature of Relationship
1. Reserve Bank of India Corporate Body holding 100% capital
2. Shri S. Sridhar Chairman and Managing Director
of National Housing Bank
3. Central Bank of India (CBI) Shri. S. Sridhar is the Chairman and
Managing Director of Central Bank of India

19.2 Thenature & volume of transactions of the Bank during the year with the above parties were as follows:

(X Crore)
Particulars Corporate Key Management Personnel Other related
Body party (CBI)
Interest Income - - 9.79
Dividend received - - -
Interest Expense 60.09 - 0.10
Remuneration - 0.14 -
Termination Benefits - Term of appointment of the Chairman & -
payable Managing Director is governed by
Government guidelines. As such, payment
of leave encashment and gratuity is made
on the basis of demand, if any.
Principal amount of repayment| 3982.45 - -
Receivable as on June 30, 2010 - - 700.00
Payable (borrowings) as on 23.69 - 180.00
June 30, 2010
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Income tax

The provision for income tax of ¥ 136.00
Crore for the year (previous year -3 114.50
Crore) has been made as per the applicable
enactments, judicial pronouncements and
legal opinions.

The Hon’ble Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal has vide its order for AY 2002-03,
2003-04 and 2004-05 dated 26.02.2009 held
that:

The Bank is not liable to Income Tax under
the Income Tax Act 1961 for AY2002-03.
The Income Tax Department is in appeal
before the Hon’ble High Court against the
order passed by ITAT.

The Income Tax case for AY2003-04, before
ITAT in which the disallowance of claim
were made under section 36(1)(viii) and
disallowance of loss of ¥ 150.45 Crore
connected with Security Transaction of
1991-92, has been set aside and restored
back to the Assessing Officer for fresh
consideration.

Similarly Income Tax assessments, in
respect of AY2004-05, before ITAT in which
the disallowance under section 36(1)(viii)
was made, was also set aside and restored
back to the Assessing Officer for fresh
consideration.

Income Tax assessments in respect of AYs
2005-06 and 2006-07, in which the
disallowance under section 36(1)(viii) was
made, were also set aside and restored back
to the Assessing Officer for fresh
consideration vide ITAT’s order dated
31.07.2009.

As regard AY2007-08, the assessment has
been completed disallowing the claim of ¥
35.04 Crore under section 36(1)(viii) and
raising demand of ¥ 4.90 Crore which has
been paid by the Bank. The Bank has filed an
appeal before ITAT regarding disallowance
under section 36(1)(viii) subsequent to the
date of close of the year. The Bank is holding
provision of ¥ 69.30 Crore against the total
demand of% 71.61 Crore.
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(b)

20.5

21.
211

21.2

As regard AY2008-09, the assessment has
been completed disallowing the claim of
¥ 11.19 Crore under section 36(1)(viii) and
raising demand of ¥ 3.80 Crore which has
been paid by the Bank. The Bank has filed
an appeal before CIT (Appeals) against the
said order and appeal is pending. The Bank
is holding the necessary provision.

Finance [No.2] Act, 2009 has substituted a
part of the Explanation to clause [viii] of
sub-section [1] of Section 36 of the Income
Tax Act 1961 by which the activities of the
Bank have been specifically covered from
assessment year 2010-2011. As per the legal
opinion obtained, the claim of the Bank
under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax
Act for the years prior to the assessment
year 2010-11is not adversely affected in any
manner.

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities arising
on account of timing differences and which
are capable of reversal in subsequent
periods are recognized using tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or
subsequently enacted till the date of the
Balance Sheet. Deferred Tax Assets are not
recognized unless there is ‘virtual
certainty’ that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets will be realized.

Upto June 30, 2010, the Bank has recorded
net deferred tax liability of ¥ 82.30 Crore
which has been shown in the Balance Sheet.
A composition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities into major items is given below:

(X Crore)

()
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Particulars

30.06.2010

30.06.2009

Deferred Tax Assets:

Provision for Medical
aid to Retired Staff

Provision for Leave
Encashment

Provision for Gratuity

0.16

0.34

0.47

0.14

0.27

0.37

4 Provision for Leave 0.93 0.82
Travel Concession

5 Provision for Other 0.63 0.00
Expenses u/s 40(ai)
Total Deferred 2.53 1.60
Tax Assets (A)

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

1 Depreciation 1.02 1.02

2 Special Reserve u/s 83.81 77.09

36(1)(viii) of Income

Tax Act, 1961

Total Deferred 84.83 78.11
Tax Liabilities (B)

Net Deferred Tax 82.30 76.51
Liability (B-A)

21.3  During the year ended June 30, 2010, an
amount of ¥ 5.79 Crore has been debited to
the ‘Profit and Loss Account’ towards
deferred tax.

22, Home Loan Account Scheme

221  The Home Loan Account Scheme (HLAS)
was launched by NHB with effect from July
1,1989 all over the country and was operated
through Scheduled Banks and Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs). The HLAS has
been discontinued effective from March
1,2004.

22.2  The assets and liabilities referred to above
are identical and have been shown as contra
entries in the Balance Sheet.

223 The deposits under HLAS held by the
banks/HFCs aggregating ¥ 2.79 Crore
was disclosed in the balance sheet as
reported by the banks/HFCs as on
31.03.2010.

224  India Housing Finance and Development

Ltd., a housing finance company in the
private sector, which was one of the
participating HFC for mobilization of
deposits under HLAS, was advised by NHB
not to open new accounts/accept fresh
deposits under HLAS with effect from
01.10.1994 due to serious financial problem
faced by it. NHB being the principal under

A

the scheme, was obliged to meet liability to
pay account holders their dues. The Bank
assessed the initial liability of ¥ 0.49 Crore
as against verifiable claimants of IHFD
under HLAS and made provision of the
equal amount in 2004-05. As per the
approved procedure, claims for refund of
% 0.26 Crore was paid till June 30, 2010 and
balance of ¥ 0.23 Crore stood as liability as

on that date.

23. Other Expenditure
The break-up of other expenditure shown in
the Profitand Loss Accounts is as under:
X Crore
Particulars Current | Previous
Year Year
1. Repairs and 1.31 1.62
Maintenance
2. Research and 0.40 0.58
Development
3. Service Tax 0.31 0.10
4. Prior Period Expense 0.02 0.09
5. Conveyance Expense 0.70 0.76
6. Professional Fees 0.23 0.40
7. Conference Expense 0.15 0.45
8. Hospitality 0.09 0.14
9. Expenses on 0.86 0.79
IT related services
10. Club Membership Fees - 0.10
11. Payment to 0.92 0.64
outsourced services
12. Security Service 0.61 0.50
Expenses
13. Others 1.86 1.41
Total 7.47 7.58
24. Investment Fluctuation Reserve Account
As per RBI guidelines on prudential norms
for classification, valuation and operation of
investment portfolio for Fls, the provision
required to be created on account of
depreciation in the Available for Sale
category in any year should be debited to
the Profit & Loss Account and an equivalent
amount (net of taxes) or balance available in
the Investment Fluctuation Reserve (IFR)
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Account, whichever is less, shall be
transferred from Investment Fluctuation
Reserve Account to the Profit & Loss
Account. In the event provisions created on
account of depreciation in the available for
sale category are found to be in excess of the
required amount in any year, the excess is
credited to the Profit & Loss Account and an
equivalent amount (net of taxes, if any) is

of the said project from UNESCAP. The
account in respect of the amount received
and utilization thereof towards the cost of
study has been maintained separately and
grouped under the head as ‘others” under
‘Current Liabilities and Provisions’. Till
June 30, 2010, an amount of % 0.35 Crore has
so far been utilized and balance of ¥ 0.11
Croreis outstanding in the books.

appropriated to the Investment Fluctuation 27, United Nation Human Settlement Programme
Reserve Account. The Bank has received a revolving fund of
During the year, the Bank has transferred a % 0.55 Crore (equivalent to US$ 123,750) for
sum of T 6.59 Crore to Investment onward lending to Micro Finance
Fluctuation Reserve (IFR) due to reversal of Institutions towards Water and Sanitation
depreciation of investments in AFS Programme in India. The amount has been
category. shown separately under ‘Current Liabilities
25. Impairment of assets and Provisions’. Till June 30, 2010, the Bank
In the opjnion of the management, there is has disbursed ¥ 0.55 Crore and the same is
no impairment of any of the Fixed Assets of shown separately under the head ‘Loans
the Bank as per the Accounting Standards and Advances’. The Bank has earned an
28-Impairment of Assets. amount of ¥ 0.02 Crore towards interest on
2. Study on Pro-poor Housing the disbursement made under the
NHB and United Nations Economic and programme till June 30, 2010 and the same
Social Commission for Asia and Pacific has been considered as income of the Bank.
(UNESCAP) have jointly undertaken a 28. Investment - classification
Study on pro-poor housjng finance in select As stated, investments are classified into
countries of the Asia Pacific Region. Till “Held for Trading”, “Available for Sale”
June 30, 2010, NHB received USD 106,000 and “Held for Maturity” categories as per
(equivalent to ¥ 0.46 Crore) towards the cost the following details:
% Crore
Categories of Investments Ason As on
investment 30.06.2010 30.06.2009
Held to Maturity (HTM) a) GOI Dated Securities 58.19 0.00
b) Investment in Pass Through Certificates 0.15 0.32
of the SPV Trust of which NHB is Trustee
¢) Subordinated Bonds 45.00 45.00
Sub-total 103.34 45.32
Available for Sale (AFS) a) Units of Mutual Funds 0.00 673.00
b) Treasury Bills 749.90 447.38
¢) Stocks of Housing Finance Institutions 491 511
d) Building Material Company 0.53 0.53
e) GOI Dated Securities 0.00 66.00
Sub-total 755.34 1,192.02
Gross Investments 858.68 1,237.34
Less: Depreciation 0.53 7.29
Net Investments 858.15 1,230.05
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29. Contingent Liability
291 The movement in Contingent Liability as
required in AS29is as under:
[ Crore]
Particulars An on
June 30, 2010
Opening Balance as on July 1, 2009 129.67
Addition during the period 0.00
Reduction during the year (50.79)
Closing Balance as on June 30,2010 78.88

29.2  Capital commitments for contracts remaining to be

30.

31.

executed:

The Bank has entered into few contracts for
development of software. The total project
cost of these contracts is ¥ 2.01 Crore against
which the Bank has so far made payment of
% 1.20 Crore and the balance payment of
% 0.81 Crore has been shown under the
Contingent Liabilities.

Rural Housing Fund

During 2008-09, the Government of India
(GOI) announced formation of Rural
Housing Fund to be administered by
National Housing Bank. Reserve Bank of
India allocated ¥ 2,000.00 Crore under the
fund to be deposited by Commercial Banks
with NHB during financial year 2008-09 and
the Bank has received ¥ 1,763.46 Crore till
June 30, 2010. GOI has further allocated
% 2,000 Crore during the year 2009-10 and
the Bank has received entire allocation of
¥ 2,000 Crore till June 30, 2010 from
Commercial Banks.

As on June 30, 2010, the outstanding loans
and advances under Rural Housing Fund
was < 3,465.78 Crore.

Special Refinance Facility from Reserve
Bank of India

As part of measures to stimulate growth,
Reserve Bank of India announced on
December 11, 2008, a refinance facility of
% 4,000 Crore to National Housing Bank in
order to provide liquidity support to
Housing Finance Companies. This refinance
facility was extended by Reserve Bank of

A
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32.

33.

34.

India in terms of Section 17(4DD) of RBI Act,
1934. The facility was available at prevailing
Repo rate under the Liquidity Adjustment
Facility (LAF) of RBI. This refinance facility
was available to the Bank till March 31, 2010
and no amount is outstanding against this
facility as on that date.

Zero Coupon Bonds

NHB had issued Zero Coupon Bonds
(ZCBs) for a face value of ¥ 1,050 Crore,
discounted value being I 453.38 Crore.
These bonds were issued for a period of ten
years. The discount is amortised over the
tenure of the bonds. A sum of ¥ 59.63 Crore
has been amortised during the financial
year 2009-10, leaving an unamortized
balance of ¥ 510.72 Crore.

Interest Rate Swaps

The Bank had entered into 14 Interest Rate
Swaps for a notional principal amount of
¥ 1,500 Crore during earlier years with
various counter parties to hedge its floating
rate assets, out of which 2 swaps for a
notional principal of ¥ 400 Crore were
unwound during 2008-09 and 3 swaps for a
notional principal amount of ¥ 200 Crore
were unwound during the year ended June
30, 2010. The amount received on
termination of these IRS is recognized over
the remaining contractual life of the swap.
The outstanding deferred profitas onJuly 1,
2009 was X 3.15 Crore and the Bank has
earned a net profit of ¥ 6.55 Crore on
unwound swaps during the year. A total
profit of ¥ 2.30 Crore has been booked
during the year and balance deferred profit
of ¥ 740 Crore will be booked over the
remaining contractual life of the swaps. As
on June 30, 2010, the Bank has outstanding
9 IRS contracts with notional principal of
%900 Crore.

Provision for salary arrears

The Bank has made provision of ¥ 1.38
Crore on actual basis for payment of
salary arrears on account of wage revision
which is due from November 1, 2007
besides provision for Employee’s Benefit




35.

36.

37.
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as required under AS-15 as per revised
salary.

Shifting of Securities from Available for
Sale to Held to Maturity category

In terms of RBI guidelines, the Bank has
shifted investment in Government
Securities of ¥ 66 Crore (Face Value ¥ 55
Crore) from AFS category to HTM category
and has booked a loss of ¥ 7.51 Crore during
the year ended June 30,2010.

Securitisation

NHB is authorized to carry out
securitization transactions and issue
mortgage backed securities as trust
certificates of beneficial interest and act as
Trustee for the holders of such securities
under the National Housing Bank
Amendment Act, 2000 (Sections 14 (ea), 14
(eb), 14 (ec) and 18). During the calendar
years 2000 to 2007, NHB has completed 14
residential mortgage backed securitization
(RMBS) transactions involving 38,809
individual housing loans of six Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs) and one
Scheduled Commercial Bank, for I 862.20
Crore. The transaction involves assignment
and transfer of a pool of housing loans along
with the underlying mortgages, from the
primary lending institution to NHB.
Simultaneously, an express declaration of
trust is made by NHB in respect of the
mortgage debt, appointing itself as the
trustee for the benefit of the investors. Once
the assets have been declared property in
trust (“the Trust”), the Trust will issue Pass
Through Certificates to investors. During
the financial year 2008-09, 5 RMBS
transactions and their respective Special
Purpose Vehicle trust have been completed.
Similarly, during the financial year 2009-10,
1 RMBS transaction was completed. As on
June 30, 2010, 8 RMBS transactions totaling
to%95.63Crores are outstanding.

Loans and advances

Of the total outstanding loans and advances
of ¥ 19,836.66 Crore, loans and advances
amounting ¥ 5,800.78 Crore are secured by a
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38.

38.1

38.2

39.

charge on books debts, government
guarantee, bank guarantee and equitable
mortgage on fixed assets. Remaining loans
and advances of ¥ 14,035.88 Crore are
unsecured.

Consolidation of Special Fund with the
General Fund

The Voluntary Deposits (Immunities and
Exemptions) Act, 1991 was passed with the
objectives of providing certain immunities
and exemptions from direct taxes to persons
making voluntary deposits with the
National Housing Bank and exemptions
from direct taxes in relation to such
amounts. The amount so collected under the
Voluntary Deposits Scheme is required to be
kept in a Special Fund exclusively for the
purpose of financing slum clearance and
low cost housing for the poor. In terms of
National Housing Bank (Slum
Improvement & Low Cost Housing Fund)
Regulations, 1993, Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 30th June and Balance
Sheet as on that date are required to be
prepared each year in respect of the Special
Fund and audited by the Statutory Auditors
appointed by the Reserve Bank of India
under Section 40 (1) of the National Housing
Bank Act, 1987.

Accordingly, the Profit and Loss Account
and the Balance Sheet of the Special Fund
have been prepared as per the provisions of
the National Housing Bank (Slum
Improvement & Low Cost Housing Fund)
Regulations, 1993 and attached as Annexure
to these financial statements. The balance
lying in the Special Fund is included under
the head "Reserves" in the Bank's
consolidated Balance Sheet. Various assets
and liabilities of the Special Fund have also
been grouped in the consolidated Balance
Sheets under the respective heads.

Regrouping
Figures for the previous year have been
re-grouped, wherever necessary, so as to

make them comparable with those of the
currentyear.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

[ ]
| ."' | e Rure 2009-10

40. (a) Cash Flow Statement for the year ended June 30,2010

(X Crore)
A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Account 280.24
Adjustments for:
Provision for Tax 136.00
Provision for Wealth Tax 0.07
Provision for Deferred Tax 5.79
Depreciation on fixed assets 2.20
Depreciation on investments & amortisation expense 0.31
Loss on shifting of securities 7.51
Loss on revaluation of deposits and borrowings 1.92
Provision for Bad Debts u/s 36(1)(viia) of IT Act 22.00
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (0.01)
Gain on Forward Exchange Contract (2.20)
Provisions no longer required written back (0.97)
Provision and Contingencies (6.76)
Income from Investments (31.88)
Profit on purchase and sale of Mutual Funds (9.11)
Profit on Sale of Investments (1.84)
Dividend on Equity of Housing Finance Companies (0.05)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 403.22
Adjustments for Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Deposits with Banks (300.95)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances (2,974.77)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 128.68
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Liabilities (70.90)
Net cash from operating activities before taxes paid (2,814.72)
Less : Income Taxes Paid (60.37)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,875.09)
BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (A)
B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Assets (0.84)
(Increase)/Decrease in Investments (302.15)
Income from Investments 31.87
Profit on purchase and sale of Mutual Funds 9.11
Profit on Sale of Investments 1.84
Dividend on Equity of Housing Finance Companies 0.05
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NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING d. Share-holding pattern as on the date of the Balance Sheet:
ACTIVITIES BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (260.12) Capital of the Bank is wholly subscribed by the Reserve Bank of India
Add: Receipts from sale of equity of HFCs 0.00 41.2 Asset Quality & Credit Concentration:
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES AFTER EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (B (260.12) e. Per(;entage of Net NPAs to Net Loans and Advances : Nil (Previous Year-Nﬂ)
C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES f. Amount and percentage of Net NPAs under the prescribed asset classification categories : [R Crore]
Payments under Staff Benevolent Fund 0.17
. Particulars 30.06.2010 30.06.2009
Increase / (Decrease ) in Bonds & Debentures 4,769.59
0, 0,
Increase / (Decrease ) in Deposits 2,127.63 Amount % age Amount foage
Increase/ (Decrease) in Borrowings (4,443.48) Sub-Standard 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ( C) 2,453.91 Doubtful 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (681.30) Loss 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 689.58 Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8.28 g. Amount of provisions made during the year:
[R Crore]
40 (b) Schedule to Cash & Cash Equivalents Particulars 30.06.2010 30.06.2009
[¥ Crore] Standard Asset 0.00 0.00
Particulars At the beginning At the end of T orancare Assets ' ’
of the year the year - Bad debts ll/S 36(1)(Vlla) of the IT ACt, 1961 22.00 18.10
Cash in hand 0.00 0.00 - Investments 0.31 6.77
Balances with Reserve Bank of India 0.09 0.20 - Income Tax 136.00 114.50
Balance with banks-Current Account 16.49 8.08 - Fringe Benefit Tax 0.00 0.15
Investment in Mutual Funds 673.00 0.00 - Deferred Tax (net) 579 0.03
Cash and cash equivalent 689.58 8.28 ) ; ) ; . ; ;
h. Movementinnet NPAs: Thereisnomovementin Net NPA being Net NPA of the Bank is Nil (Previous Year-Nil)

i. Credit exposure as percentage to capital funds and as percentage to total assets:

41. Additional Disclosures as per RBI Guidelines

411 Capital: 30.06.2010 30.06.2009
Particulars 30.06.2010 30.06.2009 Particulars % age to % age to % age to % age to
a. (i) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) 19.59% 18.19% Capital Fund total assets Capital Fund | total assets
(if) Core CRAR 18.34% 16.94% - The largest single borrower 67.05% 7.82% 66.19% 7.90%
(ifi) Supplementary CRAR 1.25% 1.25% - The largest borrower group 85.68% 10.00% 77.35% 9.23%
- The 10 largest single borrowers 452.35% 52.78% 431.90% 51.56%
b. Amount of subordinated debt raised and outstanding as Tier II Capital: Nil (Previous Year-Nil) - The 10 largest borrower groups $ 234.60% 27.38% 202.10% 24.13%

$ NHB has only four borrower groups
c. Risk Weighted Assets:

j. Credit exposure to the five largest industrial sector as percentage to total loan assets: Not Applicable

[X Crore]
Particulars 30.06.2010 30.06.2009 41.3 Liquidity:
(i) On balance sheet items 13,512.63 12,986.95 k. Maturity Pattern of rupee assets and liabilities.
(ii) Off balance sheet items 36.86 86.36 l.  Maturity Pattern of foreign currency assets and liabilities
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[R Crore]
Items Less than More than | More than More than | More than Total
or equal to a year upto 3 years 5 years 7 years
1 year 3 years upto upto
5 years 7 years

Rupee Assets 10,139.25 7,488.63 3,069.96 1,033.22 313.77 22,044.83
Loans and Advances 8,039.19 7,488.62 3,039.96 1,018.22 250.67 19,836.66
Deposits 1,350.02 - - - - 1,350.02
Investments 750.04 0.01 30.00 15.00 63.10 858.15
Foreign Currency Assets 22.35 49.34 56.28 64.22 234.70 426.89
Total 10,161.60 7,537.97 3,126.24 1,097.44 548.47 22,471.72
Rupee Borrowings 8,199.94 4,294 .66 665.87 3,932.91 1,690.48 18,783.86
Foreign Currency Liabilities 23.28 50.72 56.88 63.89 206.15 400.92
Total 8,223.22 4,345.38 722.75 3,996.80 1,896.63 19,184.78
41.4 Operating results:
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
m. Interest Income as a percentage to average Working Funds 7.27% 8.25%
n. Non-interest income as a percentage to average Working Funds 0.17% 0.21%
o. Operating profit as a percentage to average Working Fund 2.14% 1.80%
p- Return on average Assets 1.35% 1.20%
q. Net Profit per employee (% in Crore) 3.15 2.62
41.5 Movement in the provisions:
L. Provisions for Non Performing Assets (Loan Assets) [ Crore]
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Opening balance as at the beginning of the financial year 10.00 10.00
Add: Provisions made during the year 0.00 0.00
Less: Write off, write back of excess provision 0.00 0.00
Closing balance at the close of the year 10.00 10.00
II. Provisions for Depreciation in Investments [ Crore]
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Opening Balance at the beginning of the financial year 712 0.53
Add: i) Provisions made during the year 0.00 6.59

ii) Appropriation, if any, from Investment Fluctuation Reserve Account during the year 0.00 0.00
Less: i) Write off during the year 0.00 0.00

ii) Transfer, if any, to Investment Fluctuation Reserve Account 6.59 0.00
Closing balance at the close of the financial year 0.53 7.12
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41.6 Restructured Accounts: [% Crore]
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
a)  Total Amount of Loan Assets Nil Nil
b)  Sub-standard/Doubtful Assets Nil Nil
41.7 Financial Assets Sold to Securitisation Company / Reconstruction Company: [R Crore]
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
a) No. of Accounts 0 0
b) Aggregative value (Net of Provisions) of Accounts sold to SC/RC 0.00 0.00
c) Aggregate consideration 0.00 0.00
d) Additional consideration realized in respect of Accounts transferred in earlier years 0.00 0.00
e) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value 0.00 0.00
41.8 Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps: [Z Crore]
Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
a) Notional principal of swap agreements 900 1100
b) Nature and terms of the swaps Fixed to Floating Hedge Fixed to Floating Hedge

Interest Rate Swap

Interest Rate Swap

¢) Quantification of losses which would be incurred 48.34 78.16
if the counter parties failed to fulfill their obligations
under the agreements
d) Collateral required by the entity upon entering NA NA
into swaps
e) Any concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps 48.34 78.16
f) The "Fair" value of total swaps book 39.34 67.16
41.9 Interest Rate Derivatives: Nil (Previous Year-Nil)
41.10 Investments in Non Government Debt Securities:
A. Issuer Categories in respect of investments made [X Crore]
Amount
Sr. | Issuer Amount Investment Below Unrated Unlisted
No. made through Investment Securities | Securities
private grade Securities held
placement held

0 @ G) @ 6) ©) @)
1 PSUs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2 Fls 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 Banks 45.00 45.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 Private Corporates 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 Others 0.15 0.15 0.00 0.00 0.15
7 Provisions held towards 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

depreciation

Total 45.15 45.15 0.00 0.00 0.15
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Previous Year

[ Crore]
Amount
Sr. | Issuer Amount Investment Below Unrated Unlisted
No. made through Investment Securities | Securities
private grade Securities held
placement held

» 1@ ©) 4) () Q) )

1 PSUs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2 Fls 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 Banks 45.00 45.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4 Private Corporates 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6 Others 673.32 0.32 0.00 0.00 0.32

7 Provisions held towards 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
depreciation
Total 718.32 45.32 0.00 0.00 0.32

B. Non performing investments

[R Crore]

Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
Opening balance 0.53 0.53
Additions during the year 0.00 0.00
Reductions during the year 0.00 0.00
Closing balance 0.53 0.53
Total Provisions held 0.53 0.53

41.11
41.12

Consolidated Financial Statements: FI has no subsidiary

Disclosure on Risk Exposures in Derivatives:

Qualitative Disclosure

The Bank has in-place derivative policy approved by the board which permits use of derivative products in
line with business goals of the Bank. The policy has delegated powers to enter into swaps only at very senior

level.

Counter party exposure limits are within the overall limits set for each counter party. The credit equivalent
of swaps are computed as per current exposure method as prescribed by RBI.

The Bank has the necessary infrastructure where the functions are well defined i.e Front Office, Back Office

& Mid Office.

The position of the swaps is continuously monitored. ALCO reviews the position on a weekly basis; the
valuations of the outstanding positions are monitored on a monthly basis. Further, the Board is appraised of
the position on a quarterly basis including the valuation of the swaps.

The Bank uses financial derivative transactions predominantly for hedging its assets/liabilities and for
reducing cost. The Bank currently deals only in plain vanilla over-the-counter (OTC) interest rate and
currency derivatives, for managing interest rate risks. The Bank shall use such bench marks where pricing is
transparent and that are permitted by RBL

The interest exchanged on the swaps is accounted on a accrual basis.
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b) Quantitative Disclosure [T Crore]
SI. | Particulars Currency Derivatives Interest Rate Derivatives
No. 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09
1 Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
a) For hedging 0.00 0.00 900.00 1,100.00
b) For trading 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2 Marked to Market Position
a) Asset (+) 0.00 0.00 39.34 67.16
b) Liabilities (-) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 Credit Exposure 0.00 0.00 48.34 78.16
4 Likely impact of one per centage change in
interest rate (100*PV01)
a) on hedging derivatives 0.00 0.00 12.03 25.00
b) on trading derivatives 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01 observed
during the year
a) on hedging
- Maximum 0.00 0.00 16.48 29.78
- Minimum 0.00 0.00 12.03 25.00
b) on trading
- Maximum 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
- Minimum 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
41.13 Exposures where the FI had exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year: Nil
(Previous Year - Nil)
4114  Corporate Debt Restructuring: Nil (Previous Year-Nil)
4115 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs
1. Concentration of deposits [X Crore]
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors Nil
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits Nil
2. Concentration of Advances [X Crore]
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 17,183.14
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances 86.62%
3. Concentration of Exposures [R Crore]
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers /customers 17,214.26
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers to Total
Exposure on borrowers/customers 86.47%
4. Concentration of NPAs [ Crore]
Total Exposure to top four NPA Accounts Nil |
41.16 Sector-wise NPAs:
SI. No. Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that Sector
1 Agriculture & Allied activities Nil
2 Industry (Micro & Small, Medium & Large) Nil
3 Services Nil
4 Personnel Loan Nil
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41.17 Movement of NPAs [¥ Crore]
Particulars Amount
Gross NPAs as on 01.07.2009 (Opening Balance) Nil
Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year Nil
Sub-total (A) Nil
Less: Nil
(i) Upgradations Nil
(ii) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts) Nil
(iii) Write-offs Nil
Sub-total (B) Nil
Gross NPAs as on 30.06.2010 (Closing Balance) (A - B) Nil

41.18 Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue [% Crore]
Particulars Amount
Total Assets Nil
Total NPAs Nil
Total Revenue Nil

41.19 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting Norms)

[Z Crore]
Name of SPV sponsors
Domestic | Overseas
Schedule I to XV form an integral part of accounts.
Signatures on schedules I to XV for identification.
K. N. Kumbhare N. Udaya Kumar R. K. Pandey
Regional Manager Deputy General Manager General Manager
R. V. Verma

Chairman & Managing Director

Directors

Vidyadhar K. Phatak Jayshree A. Vyas Shyamala Gopinath Lakshmi Chand

Kiran Dhingra Alok Nigam Sanjay Kumar Rakesh G. S. Sandhu

New Delhi, September 23, 2010
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For Aiyar & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 001174N

(A. K. Batra)
Partner
Membership No. 80169

ANNEXURE
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

2009-10
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(SPECIAL FUND)
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National Housing Bank Slum Improvement and
Balance Sheet
Previous Year Liabilities Current Year
% Crore % Crore
61.82 1. | Special Fund
(Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund) 61.82
2. | Reserves:
31.03 (i) Special Reserve in terms of Section 36(1)(viii) of 33.43
Income Tax Act, 1961
3.00 (ii) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 3.00
3. | Profit & Loss Account:
180.15 Balance as per last balance sheet 194.90
Add: Profit transferred from the Profit & Loss
14.75 Account annexed 9.73 204.63
4. | Current Liabilities & Provisions:
50.26 (i) Provision for Income Tax 56.06
1.30 (if) Provision for Standard Assets 1.30
6.81 (iif) Provision for Bad Debts u/s 36(i)(viia)(c) of IT Act, 1961 7.61 64.97
9.82 5. | Deferred Tax Liability 11.02
358.94 TOTAL 378.87
Profit & Loss Account
Previous Year Expenditure Current Year
% Crore % Crore
@ 1. | Other Expenditure @
2. | Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts
1.30 u/s 36(1)(viia)(c) of Income Tax Act, 1961 0.80
0.00 3. | Deferred Tax 1.20
8.85 4. | Provision for Income Tax 5.80
15.65 5. | Balance of Profitc/d 12.13
25.80 TOTAL 19.93
6. | Transfer to Special Reserve in terms of Section
0.90 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 2.40
14.75 7. | Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 9.73
15.65 TOTAL 12.13

@ Amount less than T 0.50 Lakhs.

K. N. Kumbhare N. Udaya Kumar R. K. Pandey
Regional Manager Deputy General Manager General Manager
R.V.Verma
Chairman & Managing Director
Directors
Vidyadhar K. Phatak Jayshree A. Vyas Shyamala Gopinath Lakshmi Chand
Kiran Dhingra Alok Nigam Sanjay Kumar Rakesh G. S. Sandhu
New Delhi, September 23, 2010
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Low Cost Housing Fund

as at 30th June, 2010
Previous Year| Assets Current Year
R Crore % Crore
1. | Cash and Bank Balances:
@ (i) Current Account @
90.00 (ii) Term Deposit with Banks 100.00 100.00
2. | Investments(at cost or market value whichever is less):
99.23 (i) Treasury Bills 136.40
23.30 (ii) Units of Mutual Funds _0.00 136.40
3. | Loans & Advances:
118.25 Direct Lending 102.88
4. | Other Assets:
7.19 (i) Interest Receivable on Bank Deposits 4.01
0.52 (ii) Interest Receivable on Investments 0.69
20.21 (iif) Advance Tax, TDS and Payment of Disputed Tax Demand, etc. 20.78
0.24 (iv) Amount Recoverable from General Fund 14.11 39.59
358.94 TOTAL 378.87

for the year ended 30th June, 2010

Previous Year Income Current Year
% Crore % Crore
1. | Interest on Loans & Advances and Bank Deposits :

7.76 (i) Loans & Advances 7.58
9.61 (if) Bank Deposits 7.88 15.46
6.11 | 2. | Income from Investments - 3.48
2.32 | 3. | Profit on purchase and sale of Mutual Funds 0.99
0.00 | 4. | Other Income @
25.80 TOTAL 19.93
15.65 | 5. | Balance of Profit brought down 12.13
15.65 TOTAL 12.13

@ Amount less than ¥ 0.50 Lakhs.

Notes forming part of Accounts
1.  Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account of Special Fund have been drawn in accordance with the provisions of
National Housing Bank (Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund) Regulation, 1993.
2. NHB (Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund) represent 40% of the amounts deposited by any person
voluntarily in accordance with the NHB Voluntary Deposit Scheme (VDS).
3.  TheBank doesnot charge staff expense or other operating expense to Special Fund Account.
As per our attached Report of even date
For Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Form No. 001174N

(A. K. Batra)
Partner

Membership No. 80169
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Senior Executives of National Housing Bank

IR, T, T
7T v ()

R.S. Garg

General Manager (Law)

A, qar
HET UdEdh

V.K. Badami

General Manager

e e B -
GECECED
R.K. Pandey

General Manager
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